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Content Themes

We have identified four key themes which are highlighted throughout the report.
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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package, identifying a care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly,

o
Fe
3

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
ameunts due under the lease.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

CSH is a leading provider of care-based community
housing in the UK.

CSH believes that access to a decent home is a basic
human right from which so much more can be achieved.
particularly for people who are living with a life-long
disability. With millions of people stuck on housing
waiting lists across the UX, cor trapped in long stay
hospitals, CSH became the first public company to bring
large scale equity investment into the sector.

The Company has the dual objectives of achieving both
positive financial returns and large scale measurable
social impact.
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Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2023

Company Overview
as at 31 March 2023

# Alternauve Performance Measures, Terms are detined n the Glossary.



Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and Profit Before Tax EPRA EPS?
Diluted EPS: -42.0% £25.5m -43.1% 4.43p -8.1%
Pence £ million Pence
2023 2023 2023
(419 | E EX
2022 2022 2022

7.23 44.8 4.82
2021 2021 2021

5.80 36.1 4,93
NAV per share* NAV NAV increase since
109.16p -1.0% £661.9m -2.0% IPO* -9.5%
Pence £ million Percent
2023 2023 2023
110906 | | 6619
2022 2022 2022

110.30 675.5 12.6
2021 2021 2021

108.30 673.8 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder
property? (Ordinary shares) Return®!
£978.1m +1.0% 5.70p +2.7% -16.5%

E million Pence Percent
2023 2023 2023
2022 2022 2022

968.8 555 1.6
2021 2021 2021

915.6 540 26,3

# Alternative Performance Measures Terms are defined 1n the Glossary.
1 on an Ordinary share held since launch {percentage not annualised).
2 investment property incdependently valued See note 15.0 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for details of the valuation.
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Key Achievements
Operational Highlights

697 properies £835 million 4,594 tenants based on supported by aCT05S 178 local
acquired’ invested’ with dependable tong-term 131 care authority parthers
accommeodation leases signed with providers
19 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its semi annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas’ assets

as ‘Contributes to Solutions’ according to the internationally recognised Impact
Management Project (IMP) dimensions of impact. TGE alsc notes that Civitas'
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing. easing the
kurden on residential or inpatient facilities.

1 over the life of the Company as at 31 March 2023

Levered IRR* since 1PO
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Past performance 1s not a reliable indicator of future performance.
* Alternative Performance Measure. See Appendix I for the calcufation.
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This is our sixth Annual Report, covering the year to

31 March 2023. [ am pleased to report that despite a
difficult economic backdrep in the UX, our portfclio has
continued tc perform strongly, delivering on average a
5% increase in rental income derived from cur inflation
adjusted leases.

Our Investment Adviser, Civitas Investment Management
Limited ("CIM", has centinued to work closely with our
Approved Providers to enhance further the quality of the
portfolio and to assist where needed in the process of
ensuring our rental income is received on a timely basis.

The net asset value of the Company at 31 March 2023 was
109.16 pence, a small decrease of 1.03% from 110.30 pence
per share as at 31 March 2022,

The Board declared a final dividend cf 1.425p. bringing
the full year dividend to 5.70p. in line with the minimum
stated intention

A difficuit challenge during the year was the sharp
ingrease in interest rates. | am pleased that in February
2023 the Company entered into a new debt facility for
£70.9m., which was partly used to repay the loan facility
with Lloyds. In addition, we also fixed our interest rate
exposure tc provide greater certainty. However, the
overall re-financing was achieved at a material increase
in ongoing interest costs. Full details are included in the
Investment Adviser's Report.

Cur share price has been disappointing over the year
under review, reflecting in part the broad derating of
real estate investments, higher interest rates and investor
concern about our sector. The Board has been reviewing
a number of possible actions to address this position.
The Company has continued to buy back shares - over
the past 12 months it has acquired 6,050,000 shares at an
average of 76.89 pence per share for a total investment
of £4.65 million. This has enhanced the NAV by 0.30% and
benefited the EPRA earnings.

Continuation Vote

At the annual general meeting cn 15 September 2022,
98.85% of those shareholders who voted have voted in
favour of the continuation of the Company.

Offer for the Company

Following the year end, on 9 May 2023 the Board
announced a recommended offer for the Company at 80p
per share in cash, from a subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings
Limited (CKA).

Whilst the Board believes that the Cffer undervalues the
long-term prospects of Civitas as expressed by net asset
value, we also recognise that Civitas, and its sector as a
whole, faces a number of challenges in sentiment which
the public markets are unlikely to overcome in the short to
medium term.

The Cffer provides liquidity to sharehoiders with the
opportunity to exit in full and in cash at a significant
premium to the current share price, in a time of
macroeconomic uncertainty.

Morecver, CKA, as a current investor in the social housing
sector, has a detailed understanding of the attractive
tundamentals of the real estate and the expertise of the
management team. CKA dces nct expect there 16 be

any disruption to tenants as a result of the Offer and will
be focused on the continuation of relationships with
Approved Providers. care providers and the Regulator

of Social Housing following the completion of the Offer.
The Board therefore considers the terms of the Offer to be
fair and reasonable and we have recommended it to cur
shareholders.

Outlook

Demand for the type of properties within the Company's
portiolic remains strong with independent forecasts
predicting that there will be continued growth for

many years to come in the need for additional units

of adapted accommodation. The Board remains
confident in the strength of the portfolio and its potentiai
revenue generation.

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

28 June 2023
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023
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Our Portfolio
By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%) Properties
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Investment Adviser’s Report

a high-performing portfolio.

Portiolio _
40% of residents fiving in Civitas properties receive over 50 hours of care per week.
High acuity portfolio
Provide hames to those who need long-term quality accommodation
Largest portfolio of SSH in England & Waies
Premium Fitch rating retained at ‘A’ secured and "A-" unsecured
Average rental growth of c.5%

Social Impact
s 4,594 high-quality bed spaces

e £1270 million savings to the public purse’
e 5 charitable relationships

Phase two work with E.ON
Centinued work across identified properties

Targeting 25% reduction in carbon emissions
Continued access to government grant funding socurces
Targeting minimum EPC "A-C" by 2030

Highly Experienced Team

The asset management team set up to work with and assist cur Approved Providers have
specialisms from:

e Local authority commissicning of specialist supported housing

e Senior level rents and housing benefit advisers

» Housing management and compliance
L ]

Property asset rmanagement
Comimissioning of care

1. Source: The Good Economy, Civitas Social Housing PLC, Annual Impact Report 2021, June 2021,



Introduction

Civitas Investment Management Limited (‘CIM") is the Investment Adviser to Civitas Social Housing PLC ("CSH") and is
the leading provider of care-based housing in the UK. CIM comprises a team of 39 individuals with a range of expertise
in specialist supported housing. real estate management and complex care needs CIM has the capacity and specialist
knewledge to manage the CSH portfolio at a granular level and has cultivated strong professional relationships across

the sector over the last decade.

Overview of Results

In the UK prior to the launch of the Company, equity

and private capital played a very small part in the social
housing sector. Gver time, UK demographics changed and
the number of adults with long-term, compiex care needs
has been steadily increasing.

This is reflected in a number of institutional investors
including aspects of social housing within their
investment strategies.

Results Highlights

e Six years of consistent rental growth and progressive
dividend payments that have increased from an initial
3.00p per share te 5.70p per share for the year ended
31 March 2023

e« A retained high-quality investment credit rating from
Fitch Ratings of A secured and A- unsecured since
March 2021, which CSH was the first to secure in
this sector.

e An actively managed portfolic of operational real
estate with a sector-leading team of professicnals
assisting and enabling high quality and longevity of
homes and income.

e Professional support to enakle Approved Providers to
enhance the quality of their delivery and demonstrate
long-term financial and operational independence.

e Targeting investments and homes which enable
the delivery cof higher end care as this is where the
greatest need exists and where the applicability of
exempt rents is clearly dernonstrated.

e An active and continuing programme working
with EON to permanently reduce carbon emissions
acress the portfolio. leading to lower energy costs for
residents and a more carbon neutral portfolio.

e Sector-leading partnerships with national and local
charities delivering real change and continuing to
enhance CSH's reputaticn as the most experienced
investor in social infrastructure in the UK

» CIM has a highly experienced asset management
team which has overseen some £25 million of physical
improvements to the portfolio since inception, largely
paid for by the vendors of the properties.

Sector-Leading Social Outcomes
ESG

Our ESG Policy is located at www . civitassocialhousing.com.
It provides an overview of the Company's investment
procedures and sets out the Board's commitment to a
continuous improverment process in its approach to

ESG integration.

ESG Rating Providers

CIM engages with the leading ESG rating providers to
set out the activities that are undertaken by CSH and

1o ensure these are profiled and evaluated correctly.
Notably, active participation in the 2022 GRESB Public
Disclosure Assessment has resulted in CSH retaining

an A score previously attained in 2021, whilst the peer
group average score has moved up to B. CSH is up

to second position within its Comparison Group (UK
Residential). Meanwhile, the Risk Rating Score for CSH by
Sustainalytics remains at 14.9 (Low Risk) as was reported
in February 2023

$£20Z SINNODOY ANV L40dTd
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

The latest independent report by The Good Economy
on CSH was published in November 2022 and notes
CSH's continued progress in delivering measurable
social impact. Sccial value analysis by The Good
Economy, carried out in March 2021, found that, overall,
the portfolio generated £127 million of social value

per vear, including fiscal savings to public budgets of
£75.9 million per year.

Of particular ncte with respect t¢ the portfolic:

» 41% of CSH's 697 properties have been brought into
the specialist housing sector for the first ime

o CS5H continues regular engagement with its Approved
Providers to monitor the quality of its stock

« [mprovement works have enhanced the energy
efficiency of homes

e 87% of respondents 1o the survey of residents carried
out by CIM in March 2021 reported that they were
satisfied with the quality of their home

e (SH Approved Provider partners have reported 99%
statutory compliance — considerably better than the
wider affordable housing sector.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CIM continues to work with EON {a leading UK energy
and solutions company) under a national framework
agreement in partnership with CSH tenants, to improve
the environmental performance of the portfolio. The
"fabric first” approach to reducing the portfolic's
carbon footprint includes the instailation of cavity wall
insulation, loft insulation, external wall insulation, air
source heat pumps and solar PV and battery storage to
identified properties within the portfolio. The installation
of these energy efficient measures, utilising available
government grants and other funding sources, will
opumise vaiue for the Company, our counterparties
and our shareholders. The collaboration with EON is
delivering significant environmental enhancements
withou! any cost to our Approved Providers

The Phase 2 retrcfit surveys will help to refine the
implementation programme and identify the best
method for reducing the total carbon dicoxide
emissions (and fuel costs) associated with individual
properties over the medium or long term The overall
energy performance of the portfolio, as identified

on Environmental Performance Certificates ("EPC")
reports data has improved over the last 12 months. The
proportion of properties with EPC Rating A-C is currently
¢.55% and the carbon footprint (estimated from property
characteristics) has reduced by 2% per Civitas tenancy
{from 2.65 tonnes of COy/tenancy in March 2022 1o

2.61 tonnes of COz/tenancy). The whole social housing

sector, and indeed the whole housing sector, continues
to require significant public investment if it is to meet the
current government guidelines on achieving net zero
carbon emissions by 2050.

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Current mental heatth legislation results in many pecple
with mental health issues or learning disability needs being
detained in large institutions that are often inappropriate
for the individuats. It is estimated by NHS Digital that there
was a rise in annual mental heatth detentions from 45,864 in
2016/2017 to over 53239 in 2020/2021

Once people are sectioned Into an institution 1t becomes
very difficult and costly to move them intc a supported
living community setting.

As a result of these concems, the Government comrissioned
an independent body chaired by Professor Sir Simon
Wessley in 2017. Currently in draft form in the Houses

of Parliament, the Mental Health Reform Act seeks to

raise the threshold for detaining people with a learning
disability and/or autism unless they have a coexisting
psychiatric disorder.

‘We believe that this Act will drive even more demand for
community housing and care settings which are already in
short supply, further securing the value and importance of
the C5H portiolio.

The CSH portfolio will further benefit from the following
broader market dynamics:

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall regulation of social housing is under review
with the main cbjective of delivering transformational
change for social housing residents and fulfiliing the
Government's 2019 manifesto pledge to “empower residents,
provide greater redress, better regulation and improve the
quality of social housing”™

The implication of this review for CSH's porifolio is
expected to be positive as it aims to bring landlords closer
to thelr tenants and more focused on addressing thelr
needs guickly. Cur Approved Providers are very close to
their residents’ needs and work in partnership with care
providers to ensure good quality service outcomes, all
supported by the granular asset management provided by
CIM every day.



Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Oversight) Bill

Thig bill, which iz under review, seeks 10 inprove

the regulation and outcomes of supported exempt
accommodation. This follows reported cases, particularly
of temporary housing, that should not qualify as

exempt accommodation.

Financial Review

As at 31 March 2023 the Net Asset Value of the Company was
£661.9 million, being 109.16 pence per share, a 103% decrease
on the 11030 pence per sharc at 31 March 2022, A niet

fair value gain on investment properties of £2.6 million

(2022: £12.3 million) was recorded in the year.

Operational cash flows increased moderately to

£39.5 million (2022: £39.1 millicn). Ongoing rental collections
throughout the year supported the Company’s healthy
operating cash flows despite further increases 1o the cost of
debt as all facilities were put onto a fixed basis.

Rental Growth and Dividend

The portfolio generated rental income (excluding
any insurance and service charge rechargeables)
of £531 millicn. representing ¢.5% increase over the
corresponding pericd last year.

The contracted rent 10l now increases through indexation
only as no new equity has been raised and therefore no
new investments have been made in the period.

During the vear, the Company declared and paid four
dividend distributions including one dividend of 1.3875p
and three instalments of 14250p.

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

CIM arranged the following debt facilities which fixes debt
on the portfolio at an average rate of 3.92% until August 2024
as is prudent in the current interest rate envircnment.

Remaining

Term at Loan
31Mar2d Trincipal
Llenders . _Facilty  (years) £'00c _ Allinrate
Scottish Widows Fixed 4.53 52,500 2.99%
Deutsche Bank Fixed 485 70,875 5.69%
AG. London
Branch
HSBC Fixed by 2.67 100.000 4.60%
Interest
rate cap
NatWest Tixed by 138 60,000 2.60%
Interest
rate swap
MEG Fixed 491 84,550 314%
3.92%

3.67 367,925

We have received terms from lenders to refinance the
NatWest facility which is due to expire in August 2024.

Governance

CIM continues to engage actively with the Company’'s
Approved Provider partners and care providers, offering
advice and shared learning.

The Board. comprised of five independent non-executive
Directors, carries out an annual Board performance
evaluation exercise and hosts periodic strategy sessions
in addition to regular planned Board meetings.

Summary

CIM continues to closely and proactively asset manage
the largest portfelio of specialist care-based housing in
the UK.

There is demonstrable demand in excess of supply
and significant further legislation that is likely to
continue to increase demand for the properties in the
Company's portfolio.

We continue to undertake our work with a view to both
enhancing the value of the portfolio and protecting the
interest of cur underlying tenants.

Civitas Investment Management Limited
Investment Adviser

28 June 2023

[
<
=5
3%
@
ZzZ0
S0
B E
Q
83
ca
za
v &
o~ Q2
ffia:!
o
“n

-
7]



CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

[
1Y

Asset Management Initiatives

The Asset Management Team understand the value of a good home. With nearly 100 years experience between them
working in the housing field, there is a lot of knowledge we can share

As part of our active asset management of the CSH portfolio, we work with and support our partners tackling issues and
finding solutions to help sustain the tenancies of the most vulnerable people living in our homes.

A recent example of this was with Cole Street and Hampden Road. These properties are managed by Trinity Housing
Association and are popular properties with long standing residents. However, Trinity had struggled to meet its housing
benefit potential. Officers from the team worked closely with Trinity and supported them to put the information and
evidence tegether for tribunal. Trinity wen the tribunal and the matter was resolved with a full backdate and rent
agreed. This was a great result for the team and for the tenants at the schemes.

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached two storey block of seven self-contained flats
constructed around the 1950s. Some external works were
identified as being required and a review was undertaken Flat1

at the asset. Assessment reports obtained suggested Flat 2
that replacing the heaters within the flats and other

minor works would improve the energy efficiency and, Flat 3
in most cases, improve the EPC ratings at the same time. Flat 4
We therefore tendered a programme of works over two

phases - the first phase just before the previcus Winter Fiat 5

pericd to replace the existing heaters with high heat
retention storage heaters - the second phase during the
following Spring/Surnmer period was tc undertake the Flat7
external works to remove the existing render. replace and
decorate to improve the exterior of the building. '

Flat &
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Caompany is to provide long-
term suitable homes for individuals with care needs;
acting in a sustainable manner is key to achieving

this aim. Properties that are owned by the Company
are tailored to meet the future needs of the tenants
and. where required, are actively asset managed

to provide long-term functionality and value to the
wider community.

Environment

During the investment due diligence phase, the Company
locks closely at the environmental impact of each
potential acquisition, and enccurages a sustainable
approach for maintenance and upgrading properties.
Through collaborating with specialist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expects from
each investment in the care-based housing sector 15
adopted by other companies in the sector.

Once within the portfolic, the properties of the Company
are actively managed, and the Investment Adviser
assesses whether there are opportunities to improve the
environmental efficiency of the properties, in addition to
other asset management initiatives. The Company has an
Environment, Social and Governance Policy which can be
found on the Company's website. This goes into further
detail about the Company's ESG approach and how 1t
integrates with investment strategy. Further details on the
Company's ESG approach can also be found on pages 37
10 46.

The Board has considered the requirements 1o disclose
the annual quantity of ernissions; further detall on this is
included in the Report of the Directors on page 52.

Diversity

The Company does not have any emplcyees or office
space and, as such, the Company does not operate a
diversity policy with regards tc any administrative and
management functicns.

Whilst recognising the importance of diversity in the
boardroom, the Company does not consider it to be

in the interest of the Group and its shareholders 1o set
prescriptive diversity criteria or targets. The Becard has
adopted a diversity policy in respect of appointments

to be made tc the Board and will continue to monitor
diversity, taking such steps as it considers appropriate
to maintain its position as a meritocratic and diverse
business. The Board's objective is to maintain effective
decision making, inciuding the impact of succession
planning. All Board appointments will be made on merit
and have regard to diversity regarding factors such as
gender, ethnicity, skills, background and experience.
This includes Director appointments to the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee and Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. See Corporate Governance
Statemnent on page 56

The Board comprises three rmale and two

fernale non-executive Directors. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with the Hampton-Alexander
Review's target of a minimum 33% representation of
women on FTSE 350 boards.

The Board is aware of the recommendations of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
part of the Board's succession planning. See Corporate
Governance Staternent on page 56.

The Board of Directors of the Company's subsidiaries,
which are non-cperaticnal, each comprise one female
and up to four male Directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
it now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 2015 The Company published its modern slavery
statement on 22 September 2021

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its knowledge,
the Company's principal advisers, which are listed in
the Company Informaticn section, comply with the
provisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015.

The Company's business is solely in the UK and therefore
is considered to be low risk with regards to human
rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's properties enabie the provision of care
to some of the most vulnerable people in the community,
ensuring safe and secure accommodation, tailored to
meet individual care needs. The Company has increased
the provisicn of care-based housing. bringing new
supply to the sector and providing homes to over 4,50¢
people All of the Company's properties enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating lccal jobs and
heiping to support local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
requirement to separately report on this area.

The Investrnent Adviser is an equal opportunities
employer who respects and seeks 10 empower each
individual and the diverse cultures. perspectives, skills
and experiences within its workforce.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors’ overarching duty is to act in good faith and
in a way that is most likely to promote the success of the
Company as set out in section 172 of the Companies Act
2006. In doing so, Directors must take into consideration
the interests of the various stakeholders of the Company,
the impact the Company has on the community and the
environment, take a long-term view on consequences

of the decisions they make, as well as aim to maintain a
reputation for high standards of business conduct and
fair treatment between the members of the Company.

Fulfilling this duty naturally supports the Company

in achieving its investment cbhjective and helps to
ensure that all decisions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way. In acccrdance with the requirements
of the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018, the Company expiains how the Directors have
discharged their duties under section 172 below.

To ensure that the Directors are aware of, and
understand, their duties, they are provided with the
pertinent information when they first join the Board

as well as recelving regular and ongoing updates and
training on the relevant matters. Induction and access
to training is provided for new Directors. They also
have continued access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and, when deemed necessary,
the Directors can seek independent professional advice
at the Company's expense. The Schedule of Matters
Reserved for the Board, as well as the Terms of Reference
of its committees, are reviewed regularly and further
describe Directors’ responsibilities and obligations and
include any statutory and regulatory duties. The Audit
and Management Engagement Committee has the
responsibility for the ongoing review cf the Company's
risk management systems and internal controls and,

to the extent that they are applicable, risks related to
the matters set out in secticn 172 are included in the
Company's risk register and are subject to periodic and
regular reviews and monitoring.

Long-term Success

The strategy of the Company can be found on pages

26 t0 29. Any deviation from, or amendment to, that
strategy is subject tc Board and, if necessary, shareholder
approval. The Company's business model, which can be
found on page 26. provides that the Board considers the
long-term conseguences of its investment decisions.

The Company grants long-term leases, generally 20 years
in length, to its tenants. The Company seeks 10 maintain
lasting relationships with its tenants and supports its
tenants in adapting properties to meet their needs,
particularly improving and enhancing properties. Further
details can be found on pages 37 to 46.

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered to
comptise {ts shareholders, 1ts employees, its customers
and its suppliers as well as the wider comrmunity in
which the company operates and impacts. The Company
is different in that as an investment trust it has no
employees and, in terms cf suppliers, the Company
receives professional services from a number of different
providers, principal among them being the Investment
Adviser.

Through regular engagement with its stakeholders,

the Board aims to gain a rounded and balanced
understanding of the impact of its decisions. Feedback
from stakeholders is gathered by the Investment Adviser
in the first instance and communicated to the Board in its
regular quarterly meetings and otherwise as required.

The importance of stakeholders is taken into account

at every Board meeting, with discussions involving
careful consideration of the longer-term consequences
of any decisions and their implications for stakeholders.
The following section explains why these stakeholders
are considered of importance to the Company and the
actions taken to ensure that their interests are taken into
account by the Board as part of its decision making.

@m0
2=
5
3z
= w»
=z O
59
=
-
[w]
g3
5 &
4z
o O
g
“n

—a
-



CIVITAS SOCIAT HQUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

-
o

Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakeholders

Shareholders
Continued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
critical to the
existence of the
business and the
delivery of the
long-term strategy
of the business.

Key areas of interest

Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis
Strategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

ESG performance
and sustainability
Climate Change
Dividend

How we engage

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and places great importance

on communication with the sharehcolders of the Company. The Board 1s
responsible for the content of communication regarding corporate issues
and for communicating its views to shareholders. The Board aims tc ensure
that sharehclders are provided with sufficient information to understand
the risk/reward balance to which they are exposed by the holding of
shares in the Company. Active engagement with shareholders is carried out
throughout the year and regular communication is undertaken to ensure that
they understand the performance of the business. The Board is committed

to maintaiming cpen channels of communication and to engaging with
shareholders in a manner which they find rmost meaningful, in order tc gain
an understanding of the views of shareholders. These channels include:

Annual General Meeting — The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voting and participation from shareholders at the AGM, at which
sharehclders have the opportunity to meet the Directors and Investment
Adviser and to address questions to them directly The Investment Adviser
attends the AGM and provides a presentation on the Group's performance and
its future outloock. The Cocmpany values any feedback and questions it may
receive from shareholders ahead of and during the AGM and takes action,

as appropriate. The Board wag pleased to note that all resolutions proposed at
the Company’s AGM on 15 September 2022 were approved by shareholders.

Publications - The Annual Report and Half-Year Results are made available

on the Company's website. These reports pravide shareholders with a clear
understanding of the Group's portfolic and financial position. In addition 1¢ the
Annual and Half-Year Reports, regularly updated information is available on
the Company website, including quanerly factsheets, key policies, the investor
relations policy and details of the investment property portfcho. Feedback and/
o questions the Company receives from the shareholders help the Ccmpany
evolve its reporting aiming 1o render the repons and updates transparent and
understandable.

Shareholder meetings — Sharehclders are able to meet with the Investment
Adviser and the Company's Joint Brokers throughout the year and the Investrent
Adviser provides information on the Company on the Company's website.
Feedback from all shareholder meetings with the Investment Adviser and/or the
Joint Brokers, and shareholders’ views, are shared with the Board on a regular
basis. The Chairman and cther members of the Board, including the Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement
Commitlee, are available 1o meet with shareholders to understand their views on
governance and the Company’s performance where they wish to do so.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakeholders

Shareholders  «

Continued
shareholder
support and
engagement are
critical to the
existence of the
business and the
delivery of the
long-term strategy
of the business.

Key areas of interest

How we engage

Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis
Strategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

ESG performance
and sustainability

Climate Change
Dividend

Shareholder concerns - The Board gives due consideration to matters

raised by shareholders. In the event shareholders wish to raise issues or
concerns with the Board or the Investment Adviser, they are welcome to
write tc the Company at the registered office address set cut on page 131.

In line with increasing sharehoclder focus cn Environmental, Social and
Governance ('ESG") matters, the Board requests regular updates from the
Investment Adviser. The Board retains overall responsibility for ESG issues
and the Company's operational performance. Implementation of ESG
matters are undertaken by the Investment Adviser on behalf cf the Board.

Furthermecre, ESG reporting has been disclosed on pages 37 to 46 in the
Annual Report and the Board is open to discussion with shareholders on
this topic if requested.

Investor relations updates - The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a combination of institutional investors and private client brokers,
the Board receives regular updates on investors’ views and attitudes
from the Company's Brokers and the Investment Adviser. The results of
these meetings are reported to the Board as part of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Investment Adviser and Brokers.

Included in the Report of the Directors on page 51 are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly) and at Board meetings, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
trading activity, share price performance and any shareholders’ feedback,
as well as an update from the Company's Investor Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser on any publications or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of its
shareholders and potential investors, the Investment Adviser maintains
regular contact with them and alsc undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback is taken into account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend policy.

Following the year end, the Board recommended an offer to shareholders
of 80 pence for each share held in the Company from Wellness Unity
Limited (a whelly owned subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited). During
the Takecver Offer process, the Board engaged with shareholders and
received their views on the Takeover Offer. which it tock into account
during its discussions. Further information cn the Board’s decision in
relation to the Takeover Offer can be found on pages 25 and 52.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakeholders

Investment
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
an investment
vehicle through
which they can
obtain exposure
to the Company's
portfolic of
properties. The
Investment
Adviser's
performance

is critical for

the Company

1o successfully
deliver its
investrnent
strategy and
meet its objective
to provide
shareholders
with an attractive
level of income,
together with

the potential for
capital growth.

Key areas of imerest

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company

Operational
excellence

Long-term
development of
its business and
TESOUrces

ESG performance
and sustainability

How we engage

The asset management of the Company's portfolio is delegated to
the Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance
with the Company's objectives and policies. At each Board meeting,
representatives from the Investment Adviser are in attendance to present
reports to the Directors covering the Company's current and future
activities, portfolio of assets and its investment performance over the
preceding pericd.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the
Investment Adviser is crucial as the Board and the Investment Adviser
both aim to continue to achieve consistent long-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective. Important components of the
culture of both the Company and the Investment Adviser are:

operating in a fully supportive. co-operative and open environment
and maintaining ongoing communication with the Board between
formal meetings;

e encouraging open discussion with the Investment Adviser, allowing
time and space or original and innovative thinking:;

e« recognising that the interests of stakeholders and the Investment
Adviser are for the most part well aligned, adopting a tone of
constructive challenge;

s drawing on Board members' individual experience and knowledge to
support the Investment Adviser in its monitoring of and engagement
with other stakeholders; and

e willingness to make the Board members’ experience available 1o
support the Investment Adviser in the sound long-term development
of its business and rescources, recognising that the long-term health
of the Investment Adviser is in the interests of shareholders in the
Company.

Other service
providers

In order to
function as a REIT
with a premium
listing con the
London Stock
Exchange, the

Company relies on *

a diverse range of
reputable advisers
for support
in meeting
all relevant
obligations.

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
comrmercial
objectives with
the Company
Operational
excellence

Long-term
development
of the service
providers’
businesses

Sustainability

The Company's main functions are delegated to a number of service
providers, including the Administrator, the Company Secretary, the AIFM,
the Registrar, the Corporate Brokers and the Depositary, each engaged
under separate contracts. The Board maintains regular contact with its
key external providers and receives regular reporting from them, both
through the Board and Committee meetings. as well as outside of the
regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views,
are routinely taken intc account. Through its Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, the Beard formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the
key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and
are appropriately remunerated to deliver the expected level] of service.
The Audit and Management Engagement Ccramittee also reviews and
evaluates the control environment in place at each key service provider.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued
Qur stakeholders _K&y areas of interest
Care providers & Current
and future
performance
s  Welfare of
tenants

Tenants .

Lease obligations
Void
management

Greater
independence
Maintaining high
level of care
Improved
personal
outcomes

How we engage

At the outset, it is important to note that the Company docs not have
any legal or operational responsibility for the delivery of care in the
properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the Investment
Adviser have taken the view that they wish to have a detailed
understanding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly, the [nvestment Adviser
maintains an active dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the time of
acquisition of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
diligence with respect to the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed to deliver care into the particular
properties. This includes the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQC rating and the nature of the SLA agreement covering voids between
the care provider and the Approved Provider.

The Investment Adviser is noted as having demonstrated considerable
expertise and understanding of the care taking place within its
properties.

The Company's properties are adapted for the use of individuals with
long-term care needs within a community setting with the specific
aim of achieving better personal outcomes and independence for the
individuals.

The sector in which the Company operates is regarded as having
achieved significant success in delivering these positive outcomes
compared to long-term older style remcte institutional care.

On a regular basis, members of the Investment Adviser visit properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider partners to see
first hand the nature of the housing and care provisicn that is being
delivered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the Investment Adviser has continued to engage with its tenants. This
is supported by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbeing of tenants is discussed in detail.

In addition, the Company undertakes resident case studies and surveys
through careful and considered interaction via the care provider to
assess the positive impact our properties and asscciated specialised care
have had on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Key areas of interest

Ipproved
Providers

Regulator of
Social Housing
(RSH)

Current

and future
performance
Sustainability
Compliance
and property
management
Welfare of
tenants

Lease obligations

How we engage

The Company's Approved Provider partners are an important part of the
investrment model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefit
and subsequent payment of rent, the maintenance of the properties
under the full repairing and insuring leases and, most importanily, the
safeguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies
with the Approved Providers.

The Investment Adviser works closely with the Company's Approved
Provider partners to improve standards and governance and to introduce
practices and procedures that make the Company's investment processes
ever rore robust.

The Investment Adviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider partners, liaising monthly on compliance, health and safety.
maintenance and future-proofing schemes, as well as hosting quarterly
seminars 1o discuss current themes/trends affecting the sector and to
troubleshoot. This serves as an opportunity to build relationships and
share best practice.

The Investment Adviser is supported by the establishment of The Social
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-profit community interest company
operated independently of the Company whose stated aim is t¢ enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leases to increase skills and
experience and to provide funding to promote enhanced perfcermance.
Membership is open to any Approved Provider that holds Civitas leases
and the effect of membership is to transfer ownership of the Approved
Provider to the social housing family. Auckland Homes Sclutions was the
first Approved Provider to join and has now recruited a very experienced
and senior executive team and board of management. Qualitas
community benefit society has also joined the CIC.

Pin'ancial and
operational
viability
Governance
Compliance with
health and safety,
and regulatory
standards

Safety and
wellbeing of
underlying
tenants

The Company is not itsel? Iegulatéd i:y the RSH, but itis impbriant 10
maintain open and regular dialogue to ensure that the Company and the
RSH are working together to improve the sector.

The Investment Adviser has a regular and ongoing dialogue with the RSH
and with the Approved Provider partners regulated by the RSH.

The Company also publishes responses to the regulatory judgements of
the RSH regarding the Approved Froviders working with the Company as
part of the RSH's general review of Approved Providers engaged in the
provision of property services for vulneraple people as announced

in May 2018. This demonstrates the Company's desire to maintain a
dialogue with the RSH and its desire to see that the positions improve
where needed.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Cur stakeholders

Other regulatory
authorities

The Company can

only operate with
the approval of

its requlaters who

have a legitimate
interest in how
the Company
operates in the
market and treats
its shareholders.

Local authorities

Lenders
Availability of
funding and
liquidity are
crucial to the
Company's ability
to take advantage
of investment
opportunities as
they arise.

Key areas of interest

e Current and

How we engage

Compliance
with statutory
and regulatory
requirernents

Governance
based on best

practice guldance

Better reporting
to shareholders
and other
stakeholders

e Provision of

safe and secure
properties of a
high quality
Sustainability
for long-term
placements

future financial
performance of
the business

Openness and
transparency
Proactive
approach to
comImunication

Operational
excellence

The Compauy regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and
statutcry obligations and follows voluntary and best practice guidance,
and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on

its shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the
lenger-term.

The Board receives quarterly regulatory compliance monitoring updates
from the Investment Adviser.

The Board receives quarterly compliance updates from the AIFM regarding
the Company's compliance with its investment policy and the Investment
Adviser's compliance with the Investment Management Agreement.

The Board also has access to the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, statutory and governance
matters for consideration by the Board at its quarterly meetings and as
and when required.

Itis important for the Company to build and maintain relationships with
local authorities as they have an important role in identifying areas

of high demand, agreeing rents and referrals to the Company’s asset
management initiatives.

The Company will engage with the local authority commissiconer either
directly. or through specialist consultants, Approved Provider and care
provider partners as part of the Company's due diligence 1o ensure that
each property being acquired has been commissioned by the relevant
local authority and that rent levels have been discussed and agreed.

The Company has arranged debt facilities from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meetings and
presentations to ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialogue helps to support the credit relationships.

The Company has reaffirmed its Investment Grade High Credit Quality
Rating from Fitch Ratings Limited of "A” (senior secured) and a Long-Term
IDR (Issuer Default Rating) of "A-" with a Stable Qutlook.

This will enable the Company to pursue its strategy in relation to debt
funding, in addition to continuing to work with the Company's existing
lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relaticnships.

During the year, the Board considered and closed a five year term debt
facility with Deutsche Bank AG. Further information can be found on
page 25.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement
Continued

Gur stakehalders Key areas of interest How we engage
Communities e Acceptance A key component of the Company's portfolio is that the properties within
The Company’s of care in the it are set within community environments so that individuals are able as
assets rely on a community part of their care plan to interact with the local cornmunity rather than
strong, pasitive e Availability of being isolated.
nectio it
3\2& fhe 10131 iz;:]zlnfte;cﬂmes for This is achieved ip consultation with local lauthorities in determining
comrmunities in that the initial settings are appropriately diversified within the respective
which its business comimunity and are not clustered in a way that would lead to isolation.
Operates. This assists the individuals and also ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-to-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensure positive relationships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's properties create employment within the local community for
both housing and care workers.
Charity partners e Delivering The Company supports a number of crganisations whose objectives
needed support  are to provide improved outcomes for vulnerable adults affected by
to vulnerable homelessness and other care needs.
adults

The Company cornmits targeted financial support 1o fund specific
programrnes which help those affected by homelessness by teaching
them skills and offering support 1o prevent them from being in that
position again.

¢ Improved
wellbeing of
vulnerable adults

e ESG performance
and sustainability The Company ensures reguiar calls and meetings with our charity
partners to update ¢n progress and prejects being undertaken, as well as
attending events in support of their work.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Principal Decisions

Principal decisions have been delined as those that have
a material impact to the Group and its key stakeholders.

In taking these decisions, the Directors considered their
duties under section 172 of the Act Principal decisions
made during the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

In 2022, the Board considered and agreed a new
approach to the Company’s lease model with the goal
of supporting additional regulatery compliance and
addressing perceptions of risk. The new regulatory
clause enables Approved Providers to achieve greater
alignment between income receipts and lease liakilities,
set achievable capital solvency requirements against
lease obligations and demonstrate a further degree of
risk sharing

The new lease clause has, following detailed negotiation
including legal input received approval from the boards
of two initial housing assoctations with whom it had
been discussed. The Company had previcusly sought
and obtained formal written confirmation from its
valuers that the inclusion of a clause of this type within
the Company's new and existing leases will not of itself
cause a diminution in the value of those leases or in the
underlying assets.

Takeover Offer

As announced on § May 2023, the Board made the
decision to recommend to sharehclders an all-cash offer
of 80 pence for each share of the Company by Wellness
Unity Limited (a wholly cwned subsidiary of CK Asset
Holdings Limited).

Althcugh the Board believes the cffer undervalues

the long-term prospects of the Company. the Board
recognises that the Company and the sector in which

it operates faces a number of challenges in light of the
current macro environment and cutlook. This includes
the considerable negative sentiment in the public
markets towards the Company and the social housing
sector which the Board believes are unlikely tc be
overcome in the short to medium term and will continue
to have a material impact on the Company’s share price
prospects. In addition, despite delivering on revenue,
NAV and dividend growth since IPO, the Company's
shares have traded for some time at an entrenched
discount to NAV.

On 23 June 2023, the Offer became unconditional.

Updates to Debt Arrangements

bunng the year, the Board considered and closed a new
five year term debt facility of c.£71 miliion with a major
European bank lender.

The facility was deployed in full tc redeem the
Company's existing facility with Lloyds Bank of

£60 million as well as providing additional liquidity. As a
result, all of the Company's debt facilities are at 100% fixed
or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

During the year, the Board menitored the decline in the
Company's share price and in response, the Board agreed
the implementation of a share buyback programme
under certain parameters, which is being cperated by the
Company's Joint Brokers.

Further information on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page 50.
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established in 2016 with the purpose
of delivering long-term responsible, stable returns to
investors and achieving positive measurable social
impact and ESG benefits on a large scale. It should
achieve this ag a result of intreducing long-term eguity
capital into the social housing sector with a particular
focus on care-based community housing. By doing so.
this would form a bridge between equity investors and
the sccial housing sector and bring together aspects of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed the largest portfolio
of care-based community housing in the UX that provides
long-term homes for more than 4,500 individuals across
half the local authorities in England and Wales.

As a result of this success, the Company extended its
mandate to be able to enter into transactions directly
with the NHS and with leading charities with an interest
in the provision of specialist housing that has a strong
care or support element, is consistent with public policy
and whose costs are met by the public purse for which it
offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company’s investment objective is to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income, together
with the potential for capital growth from investing in a
portfolic of Social Homes, which benefits from infiation
adjusted long-term leases or cccupancy agreements with
Approved Providers and to deliver, on a fully invested
and geared basis, a targeted dividend vield of 5% per
annum! which the Company expects to increase broadly
in line with inflation,

Investment Policy

The Company's investment policy is to investin a
diversified portfolio of Social Homes throughout

the United Kingdorn. The Company intends to meet

the Company's investment objective by acquiring,
typically indirectly via Special Purpose Vehicles,
pertfolios of Social Homes and entering into long-term
inflation adjusted leases or occupancy agreemernts

for terms primarily ranging from 10 years to 4C years
with Approved Providers, where all management

and maintenance obligations will be serviced by the
Approved Providers. The Company will not undertake
any development activity or assumme any development or
construction risk. However, the Company may engage in
renovatlng or customising existing homes, as necessary.

The Company may make prudent use of leverage to
finance the acquisition of Social Homes and to preserve
capital on areal basis.

The Company is focused on delivering capital growth
and expects to hold its Portfclio over the long term and
therefore it is unlikely that the Company will dispose
of any part of the Portfolic. In the unlikely event that a
part of the Porticlio is disposed of, the Directors intend
10 reinvest proceeds from such disposals in assets in
accordance with the Company's investment policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company invests and manages the Portfclio with the
objective of delivering a high-quality, diversified Portfolic
through the following investment restrictions:

e the Company only invests in Social Homes located in
the United Kingdom;

e the Company only invests in Social Homes where the
counterparty to the lease or occupancy agreement is
an Approved Provider,

& 1o lease or cccupancy agreement shall be for an
unexpired period of less than 10 years, unless the
shorter leases or occupancy agreementis represent
part of an acquisition of a portfolio which the
Investment Adviser intends 1o recrganise such that
the average term of lease or occupancy agreement is
increased to 15 years or above;

s the aggregate maximurn exposure to any single !
Approved Provider is 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company is fully invested;

& no investment by the Company inn any single
geographical area, in relaticn to which the hcuses
and/or apartment blocks owned by the Company are
located on a contiguous or largely contiguous basis,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Asset Value of the Company;

e the Company cnly acquires completed Social Hornes
and will not forward finance any developrent of new
Social Homes;

e« the Company does not invest in other alternative |
investment funds or closed-end investrnent
cornpanies; and

¢ the Company is not engaged in short selling.

The investment limits detalled above apply at the time of
the acquisition of the relevant investment in the Portfolioc
once fully invested. The Company would not be required
1o dispose of any investment or 1o rebalance the Portfolio
as a result of a change in the respective valuations of its
assets.

Gearing Limit

The Directors seek to use gearing to enhance equity
returns. The level of borrowing is set on a prudent basis
for the asset class and seeks to achieve a low cast of
funds. whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying
security requirements and the structure of both the
Portfolio and the Company.

1 The dividend yield is based on the original IPO price of 100 pence per Ordinary share. The target dividends are targets only and da not represent a protit forecast.
There can be no assurance that the 1argets can or will be met and should not be taken as an indication of the Company’s expected or actual future results,
Accordingly. potential investors should not place any reliance on these targets in deciding whether or not 10 invest in the Company or assurme that the Company
will make any distributions at all, and should decide for themselves whether ot not the target dividend yields are reasonable or achievable



Strategic Overview
Continued

The Company may, following a decision of the Board,
raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the
aggregate porrowings of the Company is always subject
1o an absolute maximurn of 40% of Gross Asset Value
calculated at the time of drawdown. Current gearing is
35.61% (2022: 34.43%)

Debt is secured at asset level, whether over a particular
property or a holding entity for a particular series of
properties, without recourse to the Company and also
potentially at Company level with or without a charge
over the Portfolio (but not against particular assets),
depending on the optimal structure for the Company and
having consideration tc key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of debt, debt type and maturity profiles.
Otherwise there will be nc cross-financing between
investments in the Portfolic and the Company will not
operate as a common treasury function between the
Company and its invesiments.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose to utilise derivatives for
efficient portfolio management. In particular, the
Directors may engage in full or partial interest rate
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the risk of interest
rate increases on borrowings incurred in accordance
with the gearing limits as part of the management of the
Portfolio

Cash Management

The Company invests in cash, cash equivalents, near
cash instruments and money market instruments.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")

REIT Status

The Directors conduct the attairs of the Company so as to
enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for the purposes
of Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 (and the
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Directors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culture ameng the Board and in its
interaction with the Investrnent Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will support the delivery of its
purpose, values and strategy. The Board seeks to promaote
a culture of openness, debate and integrity through
ongoing dialogue and engagement with its service
providers, principally the Investment Adviser.

As detailed in the Corporate Governance Statement,

the Company has a number of policies and procedures

in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good
governance, including those relating to diversity and
Directors’ conflicts of interest. The Board assesses and
monitors compliance with these policies as well as the
general culture of the Board through Board meetings and.
in particular, during the annual evaluation process which
is undertaken by each Director (for more information, see
the performance evaluation section on pages 56 and 57}

The Board's culture itself is one of openness,
collaboration and constructive debate to ensure the
effective contribution of all Directors, particularly in
respect of the Board's decision making. Consideration
of our stakeholders is embedded in the Beard's decision
making process. Please see our section 172 Statement on
pages 17 to 25,

Explanation

Measure

Increase in NAV
per share

Target to achieve capital appreciation whilst
maintaining a low risk strategy from enhancing

Result

NAV inc_rease of 11.2p per share 11.4%
from 1PO (2022: 12.3p per share 12.6% from 1PO)

the quality of cash flows from investments, by

physical improvement of properties and by

creating a significantly diversified, high-quality

portfolio.

share targeted a dividend of 5.70p per share.

For the year ende&i March 2023, the Company " Total dividend of 570p per share declared_for the

Number of local
authorities,
Approved
Providers and
care providers

Target risk mitigation through a diversified
portfolio {once fuily invested) with no more

the capital of the Company is fully invested.

Loar: 1o Targeted total debt drawn no more than 40% of
Gross Assets gross assets.
(Leverage)

than 25% exposure to any one local authority or
single Approved Provider and no more than 20%
exposure to any single geographical area. cnce

As at 31 March 2023;

178 local authority partners 2022: 178 local
authority partners)

19 Approved Providers (2022: 18 Approved Providers)
131 care providers (2022: 130 care providers)

The Company's largest single exposure is to Falcon
Housing Association CIC and currently stands at19%
(2022: 19%). The largest geographical concentration is
in the South West, being 14% (2022: 16%).

- Leverage as at 31 March 2023 of 35.61% of grdgi
assets (2022: 34.43%).
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Definition

Strategic Overview
Continued

EPRA

The Company is a member of the European Public Real Estate Asscciation ("EPRAT). EPRA has developed and defined
the following performance measures to give transparency. comparability and relevance of financial reporting

across entities which may use different accounting standards. The Company is pleased to disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance. These are all Alternative Performance Measures of
the Company.

EPRA Earnings EPRA Net Reinstatement

Value (“NRV”)

EPRA NAV metric which
assumes that entities never
sell assets and aims to
represent the value required
to rebuild the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets
(“NTA"™)

EPRA NAV metric which
assurnes that entities buy
and sell assets, thereby
crystallising certain levels of
unavoidable deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (*“NDV")

EPRA NAV metric

which represents the
sharehalders’ value under
a disposal scenaric.
where deferred tax,

Earnings from operational
activities.

CIVITAS SOCTAL HQUSING FLC
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Purpose

Performance

A key measure of a
company’s underlying
operating results and an
indication of the extent 1o
which current dividend
payments are supported
by earnings.

financial instruments and
certain other adjustments
are calculated to the full
extent of their liability, net
of any resulting tax.

The EPRA NAV set of metrics make adjustments to the NAV per the financial statements to
provide stakeholders with the most relevant information on the fair value of the assets and
liabilities of a real estate investment company, under different scenarios.

EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
£ £ £ £
2023 2023 2023 2023
26,929,000 653,780,000 653,780,000 673,645,000
2022 2022 2022 2022
29,810,000 673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000
202 2021 2021 2021
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
{Basic and diluted) pence (diiuted) pence {diluted) vence {diluted) vence
26233 2023 2023 2023
107.82 111.09
2022 2022 2522 2022
4.82 109.96 109.96 110.74
2021 2021 202. 2021
4983 108.38 108.38 107.97

Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance. For detailed workings reconciling the above
measures to the [FRS results, please see Appendix 1 to these financial statements on pages 122 to 125.



Definition

Purpose

Performance

Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY")

Annualised rental
income based on the
cash rents passing
at the balance
sheet date, less
non-recoverable
property operating
expenses, divided
by the market value
of the property
with {estimated)
purchasers’ costs.

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield (“NIY™)
This measure
incerporates an
adjustment to the
EPRA NIY in respect
of the expiraticn of
rent-free periods

(cr other unexpired
lease incentives such
as discounted rent
periods and stepped
rents).

A comparable measure for portfolio
valuations. These measures should make it
easier for investors o judge themselves, how
the valuation of portfclio X compares with

perticlio Y.

EPRA Costs Ratio

Administrative and
operating costs
{including and
excluding costs

of direct vacancy)
divided by gross
rental income,

A key measure to
enable meaningful
measurement

of the changes

in a company's
operating costs.

EPRA LTV

Debt {including net
payables but net

of cash balances)
divided by the market
value of property
(including net
receivables).

A key (shareholder-
gearing) metic

tc determine the
percentage of debt
comparing to the
appraised value of
the properties.

EPRA Vacancy Rate

Estimated Market
Rental Value ("ERV") of
vacant space divided
by ERV of the whole
portfolio.

A "pure’ (%) measure of
investment property
space that is vacant,
based on ERV.

EPRA NIY

%

2023

2022
5.28

2021
§5.24

EPRA Topped-up
NIY
%

2023

2022
528

2021
524

EPRA Costs Ratio?

of
b

2023
2022
20.20

2021
20.33

EPRA LTV

EPRA Vacancy
Rate
%

2023

2022
0

2021
0

Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance. For detailed workings recanciling the above
measures to the [FRS results, please see Appendix 1 to these financial statements on pages 122 to 125.

1 The ratios inclusive of vacancy costs are the same as the ratio exclusive of vacancy costs for 2022, 2021 and 2020.
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The Board considers that the risks detailed below are the principal risks facing the Group currently, along with the risks
detailed in note 31 0 to the financial statements. These are the risks that could affect the ability of the Company to deliver
its strategy. The Board confirms that the principal risks of the Company, including those which would threaten its future
performance, solvency or liquidity, have been robustly assessed throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, taking into
account the emerging risks such as the longer term, climate change risk, cyber security risk and recruitment of staff at
counterparties risk, and that processes are in place tc continue this assessment

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee has divided the Company's risks into the following risk type
categories:

e Strategy and Competitiveness;

» Operational, including Cyber Crime;
* Investment Management; and

s Accounting, Legal and Requlatory.

Each risk contained in each category is reviewed for its impact and probability by the Audit and Management
Engagement Comrnittee at least twice during the year

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee takes responsibility for overseeing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board and advises the Board on the principal risks facing
the business.

Further details of risk management processes that are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 57 and 58. The principal and emerging risks and uncertainties relating to the Group are regularly reviewed
by the Board along with the internal controls and risk management processes that are used to mitigate these risks.
The Board acknowledges that the Takeover by Wellness Unity Limited may result in increased risk both during the
transition and subsequently. Specifically, the Directors have not had detailed visibility of the oiferor's post completiocn
funding for the group or the detailed plans behind the intentions statements included within the announcement.
Oversight and monitoring during this period will take on critical importance. The Board has identified one new
principal risk during the year (as set out in the list of principal risks and uncertainties). The risk asscciated with a
disruption to share price due to negative sentiment in the social housing sector was identified as having the highest
impact and likelihocd. The risk associated with promoting the Company to generate investor demand was removed
as a principal risk by the Board during the year as the Takeover QOffer by Wellness Unity Limited has reduced the need
for the Company to generate additicnal investor demand. Further details on this and the other principal risks and the
management of those risks are described below:

Very High

High
-
|3}
« .
0, Medium
E
—
Low
Very Low
Very . : . Very
unlikely Unlikely Possible Likely Likely
Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management
Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1. Strategy and Competitiveness risk o _ lmpact - _  How managed/mitigated _ .
Tho Company's share price The Cullipdily is ldlgeied Lhe Beard 1s committed to maintaining Impact:
is disrupted due to negative by & short seller or activist open channels of ccmmunication with High
sentiment towards the social sharehelder leading to sharehoclders and engaging in ways
housing sector following a a fall in the Company's shareholders find most meaningful, in
targeted attack by a short seller share price and a order to gain understanding of shareholder  Probability:
and pollution frorm other events in -~ widening of the discount views. Further information on the Board's Likely
the secior. 10 NAV. engagement with shareholders can be
This risk remained at the same Significant numbers of found on pages 17 to 25.
level as the year ended 31 March shares may need to be The Board seeks to provide full disclosure
2022 repurchased leading to on the counterparties and the structure of
a fall in the size of the transactions so that all stakeholders are
Company and liquidity kept reliably informed on the Company's
implicaticns. business dealings.
The Board regularly reviews the
Company's buyback policy to ensure this
is in alignment with the interests of the
Company and shareholders. The Board
is also mindful of the possibility to issue
shares and regularly reviews its policy in
this area t¢ ensure that it is consistent with
the Company's strategy. It receives regular
updates from the Company's brokers to
help inform its decisions in this regard.

2_Strategy and competitiveness risk o Impact _How managed/mitigated o o I
The Company and its operations Any change in the The Company focuses on niche real estate Impact:
are subject to laws and regulations  laws, regulations and/ sectors where it believes the regulatory Very high
enacted by naticnal and local or government policy framewcrk and underlying demand
governments and government affecting the Company dynamics tc be robust.
policy. and its operagons may The [nvestment Adviser has strong industry ;m?sgl]lty:
This risk rernained at the same have a materiai »a_dverse contacts and has good knowledge on y
level as the year ended 3! March effect on the ability of the  policy opinion and direction.

2022. Company o successiully ™ ]
pursue 1ts investment e Board ol?tams regrular updateg
policy and meet 1ts {rom professwr}al adv1se'rs o mothr ‘
investrent objective developments in reguiation and legislation.
and on the value of the
Company and the shares.

3. Strategy and compe(i‘:virgss risk_ . Impact . HOJ rpgna_ged!ﬁilg‘gatad o . o
As a result of competition from The rate of capital The Company has strong links with vendors Impact:
other purchasers cf social housing deployment would drop, and a robust pipeline of future acquisitions. High
properties, th¢ Compar-ay S abll.ltyr decreasing returns to The Board regularly reviews the pipeline
to deploy capital effectively within  shareholders. of potential aCQUISILo q tors th .

a reasonable imeframe may be p q Ns and monitors tne Probability:
market landscape. Unlikely

restricted or the net initial yields at

which the Company can acquire The Board is aware of the current

properties may decline such that competitive social housing market and

target returns cannot be met. recognises the impact this may have on
the Company's ability to deploy capital

This risk remained at the same effecuvely.

level as the year ended 31 March

2022.
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

4. Inves_lmen( l_nana_gemenl risk
Tenant defaulting under the terms
of a lease.

Impact -
Loss of rental income in
the short term.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022.

5. Investment management nsk

___How managed/mitigated

The portfolio is highly diversiﬁed o t?educe Impaét: 7
the impact of default. Extensive diligence is  Medium
undertaken on all assets, which is reviewed
and challenged by the Board.

i ) Probability:
The Investment Adviser works proactively Likely

with Approved Providers to address any
potential concerns.

The Board is provided with regular updates
on the tenants with any concerns raised for
discussion.

The Board has noted that the Company's
histaric level of defaults has been
irnjrmatrerial,

How managed/mitigated

. Impacy ;
The valuaticn of the
Company's assets would
fall, decreasing the
NAV and yields of the
Company.

The value of the investments made
by the Company may change from
time to time according to a variety
of factors, including movements

in interest rates, inflation and
general rmarket pricing of similar
invesumnents.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022

6. Investment management nsk Ilmpact

The current macroeconomic
environment has increased the
level of risk around the Company’s
financing arrangements regarding
borrowing terms and covenants.

terms increase the
finaneing costs reducing
returns to shareholders.

This was identified as a new risk
during the year.

7 Investment management sk Impact i

The Company would
overpay for assets
impairing shareholder
value reducing rental
incorme and therefore
returns.

Due diligence may not reveal all
facts and circumstances that may
be relevant in connection with an
investment and may not prevent
an acquisition being materially
overvalued or rental siteams being
atrisk

This risk rernained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022.

Less fa\fourable borréwingw The Investment Adviger, Al?l\}l»and

The Company invests in projects with Impact:

stable, predetermined, long-term leases in High

place with CPI or CPI plus 1% indexation

and its strateqy is not focused on sale of

propertes. Frobability:
Possible

The Board receives regular updates on

factors that might impact investment

valuations.

How managetﬂn}ggaled o

Impact:

Depositary monitor covenants in place with  Medium
debt providers and present to the Board on
a quarterly basis.

Probability:

The Investment Adviser leverages the Possible

relationships it aiready has in the market
to form long term partnerships with debt
providers at rates it already has achieved
on gimilar projects within the same
macrc market.

The Investment Adviser reports 1o the
Board on discussiens with banks which will
highlight at the earliest opportunity if this
risk has increased.

_ How managed/miugated . I
The Company undertakes detailed due
diligence on the propertes, their condition,
the proposed rental levels - benchmarking
against comparable schemes using both
external consultants where required and
its own proprietary database — and on the
Approved Providers and care providers
involved in each property to ensure that the
purchase price is robust.

lmpa&:
High

Probability:
Unlikely

The Board considers the due diligence
undertaken when approving acquisiticns.




Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

8. Investment management Tisk

Loss of key staff at the [nvestment

Adviger

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022.

Impact

Negative investor
sentiment leading to a
reduction in share price.
Reduction in ability 1o
saurce off market and
favourable deals.

Impact

The Company fails to respond to
issues related to climate change,
either directly as enhancements
to properties or indirectly via its
climate change reporting.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022.

Decrease in the value of

the Company's assets and

a negative impact on the
Company's share price.

10. Operaticnal, including cyber cnime

Impact

Serious accident or poor
management amongst Approved
Providers due to staff shortages
and loss of competence.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2022

Emerging risks

Repurati_onal dah"l_age for

the Company.

__ljl_uw managed/mitigated

The Board considers the risk of the Impact
Investment Adviser losing key staff and the High
succession plans the Investment Adviser
has in place.
Probability:
The Board has noted the ongeoing . w
- . Unlikely
expansion of the Investment Advisers
support team.
Howman;&;[mitigated - o
Regular review and consideration by Impact:
the Board including the input of climate High
change specialists at the Investment Frobability:
Adviser. Unlikely
Advice received from external professional
advisers.

_How n’l’ainiag;adjmltigaled o }
Reporting from Approved Providers and Impact:
monitoring of Approved Providers by the High
Investment Adviser. Probability:

Unlikely

Emerging risks are considered during the regular

risk review, and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they arise during the year. Input from the
Investment Adviser on emerging risks is considered by
the Audit and Management Engagement Committee.

Key emerging risks identified and considered during the

year include:

e Long-Term Climate Change - the impact of climate
change, over the longer-term on the business. The
Company is committed to understanding ESG risk,
including the particular impact of climate change
on the business. Climate change poses an indirect
risk tc the Company's operations, the environment
and society, and the Board is aware that appropriate
action is required to reduce its impact. The Board
uses the updates from the Investment Adviser as they
reiate 1o the performance of the company and the
impact of long-term ciimate change to help manage/

mitigate this risk.

e Cyber Security — the impact of a cyber security breach
within the Company or its service providers. The
Audit and Management Engagement Committee
reviews and monitors the cyber security controls of
the Company's service providers on a regular basis to
manage/mitigate this risk.

Please see the Company's ESG Report on pages 37 to 46
for further details.

The Listing Rules require premium-listed commercial
companies to disclose in their annual report whether
they have reported on how climate change affects

their business in a manner consistent with the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD’), and to provide an
explanation and other information if they are unabile

to do se. In addition, the UK Government intends (o
introduce mandatory climate-related disclosures to
supplement the requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Board has chosen not to adopt the requirements early
and expects these to be applicable to the Company in the
financial year 2024.
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews the position of the Company
and its ability to continue as a going concern at its
meetings. The financial statements set out the current
financial position of the Company.

As at 3] March 2023, the Company held cash balances of
£35.6 million (net of operating and financing amounts
due). The Board has evaluated the financial position

of the Company which has maintained its premium
investment grade rating from Fitch Ratings Ltd - a well
established rating agency with a strong familiarity with
the alternative healthcare real estate space, which gives
the Company confidence in the ability to raise future
debt and/or equity capital in order 1o fund the Company’s
investrnents for the long term and to facilitate the
payment of dividends to sharehelders. Based on these,
the Board believes that the Company is in a position to
manage its financial risks.

Various forms of sensitivity analysis have been
performed, in particular the financial performance

of tenants and a reduction in passing rent. As at

31 March 2023, the passing rent would have to drop by
approximately 11% before any of the Company's interest
cover covenants are breached The property values
would need to fall by around 13% before breaching the
loan to value covenant.

The Company's performance in the event of severe
but plausible downside scenarios used for viability
are equally applicable {for going concern. At the date
of approval of this report, the Company has sufficient
headroom within its financial loan covenants. The
Company alsc benefits from a secure income stream
from leases with long average unexpired term leases.

Leverage is prudently maintained at a level of less than
40% of Gross Asset Value.

The Company's articles of association include a
requirement {or the Board tc propose an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting following the
fifth anniversary from the initial public offering of the
Company for the Company to continue in its current form
(the Continuation Resolutionj On 15 September 2622, at
the Annual General Meeting, sharehclders representing
298,478,435 voted in favour of the continuation of the
Company being 98 .85% of those who voted.

On 9 May 2023 an announcement was made to the market
for an all-cash offer of the Company from Wellness Unity
Limited. a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asset
Holdings Limited (CKA). On 23 June 2023, when the offer
became unconditional, CKA subsequently became the
ultimate contrelling party of the Company, and a related
party under IAS 24 The Group's existing committed debt
facilities contain a standard change of control clause
which has now been triggered due to the offer becoming
unconditional. This could result in the existing committed
debt facilities being withdrawn. The Group does not have
visibility of the post completion funding for the Group at
this time. Therefore, this could create some uncertainty as
to the Group's going concern position. The Directors note
the detailed intentions statement included within the
announcement on 9 May 2023 which states that CKA does
not envisage making any changes to the management
team noer any disruption to any counterparties or

to the underlying tenants. The conditions cutlined

above indicate a material uncertainty which may cast
signmificant doubt upon the Group and the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not include the adjustments that would
result if the Group and the Company were unable to
continue as a going concern.

Having considered all of the above, the Board is of the
opinion that the going concern basis adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial staternents
is appropriate

Viability Statement

The Directors present the Company's viability statement
which summarises the results of their assessment of
the Company's current position, its principal risks and
prospects over a period to 31 March 2028

The Company acquires high-quality property with a
particular focus on property providing care for the long
term. The properties acquired are on long-term full
repairing and insuring leases in a sector of the market
with very high levels of need. The cost base of the
Company is proportionately low compared to revenue
and there is a high level of certainty over cost to be
incurred On this basis, the Company 15 expected to be
viable well beyond the five-year term considered in the
Company's testing below.

The assumptions underpinning the forecast cashflows
and covenant compliance forecasts were sensitised

10 explore the resilience of the Company to the
potential impact of the Company's principal risks and
uncertainties.



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a five-year period for
the following reasons;

i) the Company's long-term forecast covers a five-year
pericd;

if) the length of service level agreements between
Approved Providers and care providers is typically five
years; and

iii) the Company’s leases are typically 25 years on fully
repairing and insuring leases, enabling reasonable
certainty of inCome over the nexl [ive years.

The Company's tive-year forecast incorporates
assumptions related 1o the Company’s investment
strategy and principal risks from which performance
results, cash flows and key performance indicators are
forecast. The principal risks are set cut on pages 30 to 33,
Of these risks, those which are expected to have a higher
impact on the Company's longer-term prospects are
those related to the current macroeconormic environment,
which has increased the level of risk around the
Company's financing arrangements regarding borrowing
terms and covenants. The risk associated with a
disruption to share price due to negative sentiment in
the social housing sector being identified as having

the highest impact and likelihood. The Company has
considered its strategy over a longer term and, in light

of the inherent demand for the Company's properties
and the vulnerable nature of the ultimate tenant, the

risk of change in future housing policy is considered

to be limited. The principal risks are mitigated by the
Company's risk management and internal control
processes, which function on an ecngoing basis.

The Board, via delegalion to the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, monitors the effectiveness of
the Company's risk management and internal control
processes on an ongoing basis, The monitoring activities
are described in the Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee on pages 60 to 62 and

include direct review and challenge of the Company's
documented risks, risk ratings and controls, and review
of performance and compliance reports prepared by

the Company's key suppliers and the independent
external auditors.

The Board of Directors has carried out a robust
assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing
the Company. including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, selvency and
liquidity. Where appropriate, the Company's forecasts are
subject to sensitivity analysis, which involves applying
severe (but plausible) conditions and {lexing a number of
assumptions simultanecusly.

The sensitivities performed were designed to provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance in the event of severe but plausible
downside scenarios, taking full account of mitigating
actions that could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact
or occurrence of the underlying risks outlined below:

e 10% of tenants defaulting under a lease The outcome of
this scenaric reduces profits on average over the five
year forecast by 18% per annum and reduces cash by
£20 million. However, the Board remains comfortable
that dividends could be pald and any liabilities could
be settled as there is still a sufficient level of cash in the
business. Therefore the business remains viable over
the five year period and

» deterioration in economic cutlook, or a change in
government housing policy which ¢could impact the
fundamentals of the social housing sector, including
a negative impact on valuations and a 5% reduction
in annual rents. The outcomne of the 'severe downside
scenario’ was that the Company's covenant headrcom
on existing debt (the level at which the investment
property values would have to fall before a financial
breach occurs) reduces by 13%, prior to any mitigating
actions such as asset sales, which indicates that
covenants on existing facilities would not be breached.

The remaining principal risks and uncertainties, whilst
having an impact on the Company's business, are

not considered by the Directors to have a reasonable
likelihcod of impacting the Company's viability cver the
five-year period, therefore the scenarios outlined above
are the only ones that have been specifically tested.

Based on the resulits of their assessment, notwithstanding
the material uncertainty ansing trom the offer from CKA,
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in cperation and meet
its liahilities as they fall due over the five-year period of
their assessment.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO)) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023 March 2022

2.61 2.65

Source: Civitas retained EPC data :
Fnergy Performance Certificates (EPCs) are issued All rental properties are legally required to have an EPC g
following the energy survey of a preperty by an energy in the UX and a gocd energy rating indicates that the i
assessor. EPCs illustrate the energy efficiency of properties  residents of the property will benefit from: ;
and give a property an energy rating from A {very s Lower energy bills - energy efticient properties will 25
efficient) to G {inefficient). Each EPC is valid for 10 years and result in comparably lower resident consumption and F
includes a list of recommendations that provide guldance therefore reduce energy bills §
on how the energy efficiency of the property could be s Lower carbon footprint - increasing the energy 1]
improved to reduce energy bills and carbon emissions, F

efficiency of the properties will lower carbon emissions
e Improve property value - improving the energy

rating will also likely enhance the value and ensure

consistently low void levels at the properties.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

A| 08%
0.2%
Bl 39.8%
I 1 0.9 %
ol R R T R R o A%
40.9%

36.3%

Source: Civitas retained EPC data

Domestic/Homes

These refer to dwellings, whether a house Or apartment,
where one heating system serves a singie household.
For Civitas, these proper pecialist adaptations
and care provision but are still regarded as domestic
homes.

Doumestic propernties typically use less energy and have
lower carbon footprints than non-domestic/higher
aculty properties
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction —~ EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas Portfolio tdomestic and non domesng, Energy Poriormancs

Certitteates (EPCY - March 2023

Civitas continues to improve the overall energy perfcrmance, with a

continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvement works, renovations and

scheduled post-completion works.

EPC Distribution across the Portfolio at 31 March 2023

AQG2Z

Civitas SSH properties tend to offer larger accommodation for tenants than conventional social housing or other private

dwellings. The properties are predominantly street properties built pre 1940 with solid walls.

As shown in the table below, the energy performance of the Civitas portfolio compares favourably against the
perforrmance across all housing tenures as reported in the 2020/21 English Housing Survey (EHS). Civitas SSH properties
have a larger proportion of detached and semi-detached properties compared to social rented and private rented

dwellings.

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%)' (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band

Mean

SAP

AlB [ D E F G Rating

Owner occupled 2.9 40.0 46.8 7.8 2.2 03 65.7
Private rented 20 41.5 41.7 8.8 37 12 649
Social rented 35 6852 28.1 2.3 0.7 0.2 701
All tenures 3.0 445 427 71 2.2 05 663
Civitas domestic (March 2023) 11.0 409 36.4 11.7 0.0 0.0 67.1

Source: English Housing Survey (2021) Annex Table 2.8 Energy etficiency rating bands, by tenure, 2021 & Annex Table 2.7: Mean SAP rating, by tenure, 2021




E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

-ON

The collaboration with EXON has been based on the
adoption of a "fabric first” approach to reducing the
portfolio’s carbon footprint. Detailed retrofit surveys
identify the potential to install cavity wall insulation. loft
insulation, external wall insulation, air source heat pumps
and solar FV and battery storage at targeted properties.
The installation of these energy efficient measures {(where
considered viable), utilising available government grants
and cther funding sources, maximises value for the
Company and for our counterparties. The environmental
enhancements are being delivered at no cost to our
Approved Providers.

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

Working with Approved Providers, the ongoing

Phase 2 retrofit surveys are being undertaken to refine the
implementation programme and identify the best method
for reducing the total carbon dioxide emissions {and

fuel costs) associated with individual properties over the
medium or long term. The cverall energy performance of
the portfolio, as identified on Environmental Perfermance
Certificates (EPC) reports data, has improved over the last
12 months. The proportion of properties with EPC Rating
A-C is currently ¢.55% and the carbon footprint (estimated
from propeny characteristics) has reduced by 2% per Civitas
tenancy (from 2.65 tonnes of CO2/tenancy in March 2022 to
2 61 tonnes of COZ/tenancy).

A single storey cottage built during the late 1800s. Capital works were required te make some improvements to the
general appearance of the property and deliver energy improvements to create an uplift in the energy rating.

CSH initiated two professional surveys - the first to understand the requirements to undertake necessary repairs and
improve the asset condition - the second to understand the energy improvement options available. The works were
carefully planned and resulted in an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

e New UPVC windows and front door installed
External wall insulation

Repairs to roof and loft space

Additional insulation into the loft space
Replacement modern kitchen

Deccration throughout including flooring upgrades
Installation of high heat retention storage heaters
Additional ventilation installed

The EPC rating has improved from a G to an E.

CSH is in the process of installing a dual tariff electricity meter which will continue to improve the EPC rating to D.
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Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published THE

November 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — November 2022

TGE. independent social inpact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated

impact objective and the target outccmes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has madea
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for
supported housing
across the country.

“The portfolio continues ic
provide homes for people
with a range of support
needs, including learming
disabilities, physical
disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective

“Ctvitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stock
by running a retrofit
programme alongside
energy supplier EON.”

Contribute
Towards

GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas has consistently
provided support for
charitable organisations
whose activities align with
the Fund’s core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

Outcomes

000

©

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living in Civitas
properties receive
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

Supply
InCrease the
supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of properties
new to social
housing at the point
of acqguisition

69% of properties
in the 40% maost
deprived local
authorities

Quality

Improve the
quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with Approved
Providers, signing
off on adaptions to
ensure properties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
Teported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

Wellbeing
Improve the
wellheing of
residents

Value

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

$3% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
between

their previcus
accommeodation and
their current home

£3.51 is created
in social value
for every £1

of annualised
investment



Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supported and worked with the following charities since IPO:

The House of
St Barnabas

LOWDON

the

care
workers'
chariy

The Choir with No Name

The results of an anonymous 2022/23 survey about the experience of choir members at choir

demonstrate the consistently positive impact and the value of CWNN work in improving the

lives of people impacted by homelessness:

» 89% reported a sense of belonging at choir

* 90% feel valued at choir and said choir improved their confidence

* i0% have made weaninglul {iendships at choir

* 84% said cheir helps them feel less isolated

88% said choir helped them feel more optimistic about life

* 83% reported a greater sense of purpose and fulfilment as well as feeling motivated to try
new things

* B0% reported improved mental health

The House of St. Barnabas

The House of St. Barnabas is a social enterprise member's club that helps London's hcmeless
people back into work, through its Employment Academy.

Employment Preparation Programme:

« 100% of working graduates are satisfied with their job hours

« 95% are satisfied with their job security

« B2% are satisfied with their pay

« 95% have overall job satisfaction

« §7% say our mentors have had a positive impact on their quality of life

WISH
WISH is a mermbership-based network for women working across every discipline of UK housing,
with a focus on championing positive outcomes for women working in the sector. Civitas support
contributes to the championing of positive cutcomes for women working in the sector.

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity is dedicated to improving the health and wellbeing
of our community through cooking workshops, recipe bags, community foad shops, “check
and chatter” programmes and surplus food collection and distribution. Civitas supports

Little Sprouts with the operational costs of the charity, particularly during COVID-19. The funds
were used to open a turther community shop which uses food as an engagement tcol to help
address physical, social, mental and financial issues.

The Care Workers’ Charity
The Care Workers' Charity (CWC) exists to help care and support workers through crisis using
financial support and support centres. Civitas support funds training of mental health “first aiders”
to provide each CWC member company, with the training and tools to provide better mental
health support to the care workers.
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Cheir with No Name (CWNN) has been running cheirs
involving people impacted by homelessness since 2008,
growing from a first rehearsal in London with just five
people, to six thriving choir communities, singing with
over 700 people and performing for tens of thousands of
peopie across the UK every year. We currently have choirs
in London, Liverpog), Brighton, Birmingham, Cardiff and
Coventry, with plans to launch more choirs over the next
few years.

The Cheir with No Name formula is simple, but it works:
weekly choir rehearsals all year round followed by a

hot meal together, and exciting, aspirational gigs for
everyone toc work towards and look forward to. Our choirs
are supportive, safe spaces for people going through a
tough time, empowering them to feel more able to tackle
the challenges they face. We are currently evolving our
way of working into a more co-produced and culturally
democratic approach, with choir members getting rmore
involving in the design and delivery of their choirs, which
is a really exciting transformation for the organisation.

Creative programmes are extremely effective in achieving
positive cutcomes for people impacted by homelessness.
They tackle inequality, increase social inclusicn and
challenge prejudice. It can help people tc progress

their wider interests, which is especially important in
reducing anxiety and loneliness that can often affect
people impacted by homelessness, even when they
maove on to independent accommodation. We support
members 10 make friends, improve their wellbeing, build
confidence and skills, and positively impact their personal
circumnstances outside of cheir

In our most recent 2023 member survey, 89% said they
felt a sense of belonging at choir, 30% said it helped
increase their confidence, 83% said being in choir gave
them an increased sense of purpose and fulfilment and
75% reported that their panticipation in choir has helped
them achieve at least one positive life change outside
choir, including securing housing, finding work or better
management of addictions. We are extremely proud of
these results.

We established our partnership with Civitas Social
Housing Plc in 2017 and have been extremely grateful
Tecipients of ongoing support for the costs of delivering
our weekly rehearsals and foot stomping gigs every year.
Thanks to Civitas, we can keep our doors cpen, the music
playing and our members singing: providing something
to look forward to every week and gigs to work towards; a
chance to socialise with their friends, eat a hot dinner, and
ultimately feel seen and heard.

A word from our choir members:

Ruthie's Story

14

‘When I first started singing with CWNN 1 was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christmas concetrt, I was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved. I think it's because you just feel like you're
in a really safe space and that people genuinely care
about you. It just feels very loving and authentic.

There's been so many unforgettable moments and
50 many emotional moments. It's amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the big thing is, trust. It's been
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and notice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well, It's been consistent. It

doesn’t stop. ’ ’

Richard's Story

(14

I've sung all my life so when I heard ahout the Choir
with No Name I thought it could be for me. I was
living at the Salvation Army at the time, The best thing
about choir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs - I don't think 1 could've done
it without choir, When I talk to people who aren't sure
if CWNN is for them I say, ‘Come along once, I'll 5it next
to you and if you don't like it you don't have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and so far,
they've all come back! I'm so happy to have found
CWNN. In my first rehearsal 1 was so nervous, but by
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. I'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that’s huge. ’ ,




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of St Barnahas

The House of St Barnabas is a social enterprise and charity
that works to support people affected by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Our vision is of a future
where lasting good work, a secure home and a supportive
network are a reality for those affected by homelessness.

Underpinned by our vibrant members’ club in Soho, our
Employment Academy provides on site employment
and skills raining for pecple who have expertienced
homelessness.

We work with around 100 people every year and 79% of
graduates report their quality of life has improved since
participating in the Employment Academy.

Our mentoring component is the key to our SucCcess

and, thanks to support from Civitas, we are closer to
succeeding in our mission of "Good Work, Good Home" for
all our graduates.

Mentoring at the House of St Barnabas is not traditional
in the way that professional mentoring requires a similar
set of knowledge and experiences. It is relationship-based
mentoring which is based around interpersonal skills

and communication. The purpose of the role is to work
together with Employment Academy staff to support
pecple into work and help them progress.

Our mentors have had a positive impact on quality-of-life
changes for 97% of respondents,

Jill and Ellen

Ellen began her journey as a mentor by participating

in our two-day training, which provides extensive
preparation for this very special role. She quickly followed
up by attending the mentoring "speed dating” event
where she met several recent graduates looking to be
paired with a mentor. However, she was contacted by

the Mentoring Team to ask if she would be interested in
mentoring somecne she hadn't had the chance to meet
because they couldn't attend the "speed dating” event due
to childcare responsibilities,

This is how Ellen met Jill

Jill and her young daughter found themselves homeless
in 2021. Jill didn't have a job and didn't kncw what she
wanted 1o do either Unsure of where to ge or what to

do, she turned to a social worker for help, who arranged
temporary accommodation for Jill and her daughter.

Then Jill was put in touch with House of 5t Barnabas. After
graduating from the Employment Preparation Prcgramme,
she had the opportunity 1o be paired with a mentor.

Ellen and Jill met for their first mentoring session at the
British Library. They quickly connected cver the {act that
Jill had a five-year-cld daughter and Ellen has experience
of bringing up young children in Londcn. Ellen had lots
of suggestions for free activities for children. This built
Jill's confidence to attend galleries and museums with her
daughter, which she had never done before.

As they developed their mentoring relationship, Ellen
also helped Jill to update her CV and cover letter. She
also encouraged Jill 1o sign up for free computer literacy
courses and provided support with Jill's application for
a winter fuel allowance as well as making sure that she
received her Christmas benefit bonus.

Jill has since secured a job as barista at a Soho members’
club on a part-time basis so she can balance her childcare
responsibilities.

Jill's Story

66

I didn't know what to expect from the House of St
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, I thought it
wasn't really for me. But after my first week, I Ioved it!
Everyone there understood what I was going through,
day by day I felt more confident and more comfortable
being there. It felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk to, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it's definitely more than just a course.
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Governance
Frameworks

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

The Impact Management Project:

+ Is a glabal forum for building
consensus on how to measure,
manage and report impact

+ Is a practitioner community of
over 3,000 organisations and
investors

» Provides a set of norms

and a shared and holistic

understanding of impact

Has five core dimensions of

impact: What? Who? How much?

Contribution and Risk.

Sector Specific

Operating Principles for

*ﬂ Impact Management

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management

The Operating Principles are a
framework for investors for the
design and implementation of their
impact managemeni sysiems;
Ensuring that impact
considerations are integrated
throughout the investment
lifecycle

[mplemented through different

ypes of systems,

» each of which can be designed
10 fit the needs of an individual
institution

« Do nct prescribe specific tcols
and appreaches, or specific
impact measurement frameworks

¢ Industry participants are
expected 1o continue 1o
learn from each other as they
implemen: the Principles

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas participates in the following frameworks
which don't issue a grading.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GTALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals

In 2015, UN countries adopted
the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Developrment and its 17
Sustainable Development Goals
{"SDGs"):

« The SDGs call for worldwide
action among governments,
business and civil society to end
poverty

» Create a life of dignity and
opportunity for all, within the
boundaries of the planet

+« Companies are encouraged to
select which goals are aligned
with their business activities
and report on how they are
working 1o achieve them.

CSH is an early adopter of the Sustainability Reporting Standard for Social Housing (the Standard'). The Standard,
developed through a collaboration between housing asscciations, banks, lenders and investors, has over 100
signed up early adopters and endorsers.

« Over 190 signed up adopters and 20 endorsers

« 12 themes and 48 criteria for ESG reporting by housing associations
» Qualitative and guantitative and are identified as core and enhanced requirements to demonstrate

strong ESG performance

social and governance (ESG) performance
» Aligned to international frameworks and standards including the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(UNSDGs), Glokal Reporting Initiative (GRI), SASB (Sustainability Accounting Standards Board), ICMA {Internaticnal
Capital Market Association) and LMA {Lcan Market Association) Principles

Will help the sector establish a credible, meaningiul, and consistent approach to reporting iis environmental,




United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives

Provide high-quality, energy efficient homes

@ Acquire High-Quality Homes incorperating adaptations for people with
lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.

and improve health and wellbeing of

vulnerable individuals requiring a high level

of care

Local job creaticn during construction
Satisfy Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/
refurbishments and care providers on
responsihle employment terms, including
living wage
Offer local apprenticeships and contribute 10
local community events

DECEHT WORK AND
ECANUMIC CROWTH

Provide Value for Mcney for public care and
housing budgets by enabling vulnerable
individuals to move out to institutional and
residential settings

Provide Value for Money

Buy and convert existing and newly
completed properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetuity

Increase Supply

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity
1o deliver high-quality service and outcomes
for residents over the long term

Green lease terms to be agreed with the
counterparties

Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

]@ Build Quality Partnerships

PARTRERSHIPS
FAR THE BOALS

@

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviset, has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners throughout the last

year, providing shared advice and learning through:

0 0 0 0 — g

Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance | Monthly and quarterly
key operaticnal staff monitoring i meetings to review
strategic priorities
L and key performance ;
) indicators
J \ J

g U

Regular seminars

N

|

i

1

y/

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping 10 build resilience within the organisations.

&

Monthly

CIM has continued to undertake monthly governance

and health and safety monitoring across the portfoiio.

Approved Providers have demonstrated resilience
and continued high levels of compliance with health
& safety standards.

Seminars

CIM hosts quarterly Approved Provider seminars on a
regular basis. The next seminar is expected to be held
in Summer 2023
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Governance

Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such

as GRESB (formerly Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.
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eEPRA

What is it?

GRESB is the leading sustainability benchmark
for the glohal real estate sector. Assessments take
place annually and are guided by factors that
investors and the industry consider t¢ be material
issues in the sustainability performance of real
asset investments. The benchmark assessment
covers more than 850 property companies, REITs,
funds and developers.

MSCI ESG Ratings provide insight into ESG

risks and opportunities within multi-asser class
portfolios. MSCI rate 7,000 companies according
1o their exposure 10 industry significant ESG risks
and their ability to manage these 1isks relative to
industry peers.

Sustainalytics measure how well companies
proactively manage the environmental, social and
governance issues that are most material to their
business. It is based on a structured, chjective and
transparent methodology. The ESG ratings provide
an assessment on companies” ability to mingate
risks and capitalise on opportunities.

EPRA BPR Guidelines focus on making the
financial statements of pubiic real estate
companies clearer and more comparable
across Europe. This is designed to enhance the
transparency and coherence of the sector as a
whole and play an importan: role in attractung
global flows of capital into the European listed
property sector.

EPRA sBPR Guidelines provide a consistent way
of measuring sustainability performance. The EPRA
sBPR are raising the standards and consistency

of sustainakility reporting for listed real estate
companies across Eurcpe.

In recognition of property companies that have
successiully adopted EPRAs BPR or sBPR Guidelines
and which have submited an assessmen? of their
periormance against the guidelines, EPRA holds
annual EPRA BPR and sBPR Awards. Based on the
assessment performed by ZPRAs independent
external partner, *he surveyed companies are
awarded eizher a Geld, Silver, or 3ronze Award.

How is CSH rated?

*

CSH retained its A score following
the GRESB Public Disclosure
Assessment 2022

Peer Group Average score of B,
CSH is up to 2* position within its
Comparison Group (UK Residential).

CSH MSCI ESG raring of BB.

CIM has made relevant policies
available to MSCI and other rating
agencies through hosting on

the CIM website on behalf of the
Company.

This should be reflected in future
rating assessment

CSH has an ESG Risk Rating score
of 14.9 (Low Risk) on Sustainalytics.

CSH received a Gold Award for
EPRA BPR reporting in 2022. This
is an improvement on the Silver
Award received in 2021

CS5H submission for EPRA sBPR
assessment remains under
consideration
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michael has over 40 years’ experience 1n the investment
industry as a portfolic manager and cf running institutional
businesses and retail businesses at Fidelity and Gartmore. He

serves as a trustee director of the BAT UK Pension Fund. the Male 60%
Deutsche Bank UK pension schemes and as a trustee of the o
Cooper Gay (Holdings} Limited Retirement Benefits Scheme., Female 40%
Michael has previously served as a non-executive Director of

several investment trusts and a number of industry associations,

Michael has an M.A. in Economics from Cambridge University.

Michael was appcinted to the Board on 24 October 2016 and has
served as Chairman since his appointment.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Carcline Is a chartered accountant with over 25 years experience at Ernst & Young LLP During that time,
she specialised in the asset management sector and developed extensive experience of investment
trusts. She was a member of varicus technical comrnittees of the Association of Investment Companies.
She is also a non-executive director and audit committee chair for JP Morgan Global Emerging Markets
Income Trust ple, International Biotechnology Trust plc and abrdn European Logistics Income ple.

Caroline was appointed to the Board an 24 October 2016 and has served as Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chair since her appointment

Peter Baxter, Director

Peter has over 35 years’ experience in the investment management industry. He 1s a director of Snowball
Impact Management Lid a sccial Impact investment organisation, and a trustee of Trust for London, a
charitable foundaucn He 1s also a non-executive director of BlackRock Greater European Investment
Trust plc. Previcusly, he served as Chief Executive of Old Mutual Asset Managers (UK} Ltd, and has
worked for Schroders and Hill Samuel in a vanety of investment roles. He holds an MBA from London
Business School and is an associate of the Society of Investment Professionals.

Peter was appointed to the Board on 24 October 2016 and 1s the Senior Independent Director and
Nomination and Remuneration Commtiee Chairman.

Alastair Moss, Director

Alastair is a property development lawyer with over 20 years' experience and is a partner at Hill
Dickinson. He was a non-executive director of Notting Hill Genesis Trust. He 15 also a former Chairman
of the Investment Committee of the City of London Corporation, its Property Investment Board and 1ts
Planning and Transportation Committee. He is a Trustee of Marshall's Charity. He has also been a board
member of Scho Housing Association and was a member of the Area Board of CityWest Homes. He was
a Councillor at Westminster City Council for 12 years, including his tenure as Chairman of the Planning &
City Development Committee.

Alastair was appointed to the Board on 24 October 2016.

Alison Hadden, Director

Alison has over 30 years experience in the housing industry and has held a number of Executive
positions at several major housing associatuons, in¢luding CEO at Paradigm Housing. In these roles, she
has worked with many of the stakeholders in the industry. including the Regulator of Social Housing.
She is currently Vice Chair and a member of the Governance Comrnittee of Peaks and Plains Housing
and Chair of Heyford Regeneration, a for-profit Housing Association operating in the Cherwell area.

Alison was appointed 1o the Board on 21 November 2018,
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Principal Activities

The Company is a clesed-ended investment company
dand 18 a Kk11 which was incorporated 1in England and
Wales on 29 September 2016. The Company is the holding
company cf a number of subsidiaries and its Ordinary
shares were admitted to trading on the Main Market

of the Londen Stock Exchange on 18 November 2016.

The Company invests in properties or property-holding
SPVs, either directly or via a wholly-cwned subsidiary.

in accordance with the Company's investment objective
and policy

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments is
contained in the Chairman's Statement and Investment
Adviser's Report. The principal risks and uncertainties are
detailed on pages 30 to 33. See note 33.0 for a summary of
the post balance sheet events.

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are shown on page &

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares during the year:

Fourth gquarterly " 13875p per share

dividend paid on 28 June 2022
First quartérly 7 o 1425-1:-; per share
dividend paid on 9 September 2022
Second guarterly o 1425p per share
dividend paid on 9 December 2022
Third quarteﬂy 77777 o 1.425p pér share
dividend paid on 10 March 2023

Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

- _]".425p per share
paid on 9 June 2023

“Fourth quarterly
dividend

No final dividend is being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the Board are listed on page 48.

All Directors served throughout the pericd under review.

The Board consists solely of non-executive Directors,
each of whom is independent of the Investment Adviser.
The Company has no executive Directors or employees.

In accordance with Board policy, all Directors will retire
and, being eligible, will stand for re-election at the AGM.

Performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and
individual Directors is carried out in accordance with the
procedure set out on pages 56 and 57.

No Director is under a contract of service with the
Company and no Director or any perscns connected
with them had a material interest in the transactions
and arrangements of the Company. Details of Directors’
remuneration are set cut in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 64 10 67.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the securities
of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 67.

Through their Letters of Appcintment, the Company
has provided indemnities to the Directors, to the extent
permitted by law and the Company’'s Articles, in respect
of liabilities which may arise in connection with claims
relating to their performance or the performance of the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no other
qualifying third-party indemnities in force.

The general powers of the Directors are contained
within the relevant UK legislation and the Coempany's
Articles of Association. The Directors are entitled to
exercise all powers of the Company, subject to any
limitations imposed by the Articles of Association or
applicable legislation. As set out on page 50, the Articles
of Association may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
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Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

At the AGM held on 15 September 2022, the Directors were
authorised to issue equity securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £610,736 (being approximately 10% of
the issued Ordinary share capital).

The Company was also authorised to disapply
pre-emption rights in respect of equity securities and

to issue equity securities for cash up to an aggregate
nominal amount equal tc £610,736 (being approximately
10% of the issued Ordinary share capital).

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM held on 15 September 2022, the Directors were
granted the authority to buy back up to 91,549,383 Ordinary
shares, being 14.99% of the Ordinary shares in issue at the
time of the passing of the resolution.

During the year, the Board maintained the Company’s
share buyback programme, under which a total of
6.050,000 shares have been purchased into treasury for an
aggregate arnount of £4,624,947 50 (nominal value £60,500,
representing 0.97%) as at 31 March 2023

The authority to buy back up to 91,549,383 shares will
expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company
or on 30 September 2023, whichever is earlier, when

a resolution for its renewal will be proposed. Further
information will be contained in the Notice of AGM, which
will be circulated to shareholders in due course.

Current Share Capital

As at 31 March 2023, there were 622,461,380 Ordinary
shares in 1ssue, of which 16,075,000 shares were held in
treasury, representing 2.6% of the Company's total issued
share capital The total voting rights of the Company as at
31 March 2023 was 606,386,280,

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary Shares

Each Ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote

on a show of hands and, on a poll, to one vote for
every Ordinary share held. The right to attend and
vote at general meetings of the Company may be
restricted where a shareholder has falled to provide
information pursuant to a notice served under secticn
79% of the Companies Act 2006. The Crdinary shares
carry the right to receive dividends declared by the
Company. Provided the Company has satisfied all of
its liabilities, during a winding up of the Company,
the holders of Ordinary shares are entitied to all of the
surplus assets of the Company.

Transfers of Shares

There is no restriction on the transfer of the Company’s
shares other than transfers to more than four joint
transferees and transfers of shares which are not fully
paid up or where the transferor or any other person whom
the Company reasonably believes 1o be interested in the
transferor's shares has been duly served with a notice
pursuant to section 793 of the Companies Act 2006,

There are no special rights with regard to control attached
to securities; no agreements between holders of securities
regarding their transfer known to the Company; and no
agreements which the Company is party to that might
affect its control following a successful takeover bid.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Asscciation may only be
amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of
the sharehoclders.

As at the date of signing this Report, the total voting
rights of the Company was 606,386,380.

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The Board has appointed the [nvestment Adviser, Civitas
Investment Management Limited, tc provide investment
advice and o asset manage the property portfclio and the
associated day-to-day activities, including management
of tenanted properties and marketing activities. CIM is a
specialist investor in social housing property, with a focus
on specialist social housing. and has extensive experience
in social housing and real estate investment.

The duties of CIM include the sourcing of investment
opportunities that meet the Investment criteria of the
Company, controliing the acquisition of approved
properties, asset management of all properties within
the portfolio, ongoing monitoring of the properties and
tenants, maintaining compliance with all relevant rules
and regulations, and providing marketing and investor
relations services to the Company.

Details of the fees payable 1o the Investment Adviser are
described in note 8.0 of the financial statements. The
basis for the calculation of the Investment Adviser's fees is
based upon the IFRS NAV.

The agreement with CIM is terminable on not less than
12 months notice by either party, such notice not to expire
earlier than 30 May 2025.

The performance of the Investment Adviser has

been reviewed on an cngoing basis throughout the
pericd by the Board at its quarterly meetings. A formal
annual evaluation is also carried cut by the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee

The Board considers a number of factors including
investmen! performance, the guality and guantity of
investment oppoertunities presented, the skills and
experience of key staff and the capability and resources
of the Investment Adviser to deliver satislactory
performance for the Company. The Board is satisfied with
the performance of the Investment Adviser and considers
its continued appcintrent to be in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board has noted the intention of Wellness Unity
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asset Hoidings
Limited) to maintain Civitas Investment Management
Limited as Investment Adviser to the Company once the
Takeover is completed. On 23 June 2023, the Takeover Offer
became unconditional.
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AlIFM

G10 Capital Limited ("G10" or the "AIFM"} has been
appecinted as the Company’s AIFM with effect from

24 August 2017. The AIFM currently receives a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis points of the Company's total NAV for its

services and the agreement i5 terminakble on three months’

notice by either pany.

Depositary

Indos Financial Limited was appointed as the Company’s
Depositary with effect from 1 June 2018. The Depositary
provides cash monitoring, safekeeping and asset
verification and cversight functions as prescribed by the
Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive. The
Depositary receives an annual fee of £59,000, net of VAT.
plus 0.006% cf the first £350 million of any new equity
capital raised per annum and 0.00%% of further equity
raised per annum, subject to a maximum fee of £150,000
per annum. The agreement is terminable on six months'
notice by either party.

Administrator

The Company has appeinted Link Alternative Fund
Administrators Limited ("Link") as the Administrator

of the Company and its subsidiaries, with effect from

28 February 2018, to undentake the accountancy and other
administrative duties of the Cornpany. Link is a specialist
administrator for investment funds, providing support
functions and expertise tailored for this industry.

The Administrator receives a fixed base fee for the
provision of its services to the Company as well as an
entitlernent to additicnal variable fees for duties relating
to corpoerate activities. The agreement is terminakle on at
least six months notice by either party.

The duties of the Administrator include the maintenance
of all Company and subsidiary bocks and records,
excluding those maintained Ly the Investrnent Adviser,
monitoring compliance with applicable relevant rules and
regulations and other administrative duties as required.

Company Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited was appcinted as the
Company Secretary to the Company with effect from

28 March 2018, The Secretary receives a fixed fee for the
provision of its services to the Company. The agreement
was for an initial period of one year and thereafter

autormatically renews for successive pericds of 12 meonths,

untess terminated by either party on at least six months’
notice,

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers is reviewed

on an ongoing basis throughout the period by the

Audit and Management Engagement Committee and
formally once a year. The Committee considers a number
of factors including performance of duties, the skills

and experience of key staff, and the capability and
resources of the service provider to deliver satisfactory
performance for the Company.

The Board is satisfied with the performance of the service
providers appointed by the Company and considers their
continued appointment t¢ be in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 31 March 20273, the Company had been informed of
the following disclosable interests in the share capital of
the Cocmpany:

Number af Percentage of

Crdinary  Total Voting
——— o shares ~~ Rights
Investec Wealth & Investment Limited 62.653.811 10.33
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB 60661367 10.00
(publ)
Standard Life Aberdeen 30492544 5.03
Massachusetts Financial Services 30,300,144 500
Company
Tilney Smith & Williamson Limited  28,844.825 4.76
Legal & General Group Plc (Group) 18,233,740 3.01
BlackRock, Inc Below 5%

Continuation Vote

In accordance with its Articles, the Board proposed an
ordinary resclution that the Company should continue
in its current form to shareholders at the AGM held on
15 September 2022. As the resolution was approved by
shareholders, the Company will therefore continue its
business as presently constituted and will propose a
further continuation resolution at the AGM in 2027. The
Board is mindful that, as the Takeover Cffer by Wellness
Unity Limited {a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of
CK Asset Holdings Limited) has on 23 June 2023 been
declared unconditional. the resolutions proposed and the
format of the Company's future AGMs may be impacted.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The listing rule 9.8.4 cutlines a series of requirements
for listed companies to disclose certain items. The
Directors confirm that the Company is required to make
a disclosure in respect of the diversity requirements
outlined in Listing Rule 9.8.6 (9). This disclosure can

be found on page 36. There are no further disclosures
required in relation to Listing Rule 9.8.4.

Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financial instruments in its
operations. The financial instruments of the Company at
31 March 2023 comprised trade receivables and payables.
other debtors. cash and cash equivalents, non-current
borrowings, current borrowings and derivatives.

Other than its fixed interest rate debt facilities, it is the
Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of all financial
instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position is equal to their fair value.

For a more detailed analysis of the Company's financial
risk management, please refer to note 31.0 of the
financial statements.
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirements to disclose
the annual gquantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent for activities for which the Company
is responsible, The Board kelieves that the Company

has, from a formal repening perspective, nc reportable
emissions as this reporting falls under the lessees’
responsibility as part of the terms of their fully repairing
and insuring leases; emissions produced from either

the registered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed to fall under the
responsibility of other parties; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard. In relation to
the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).
implemented by The Companies (Directors’ Report) and
Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)
Regulations 2018, for the year ended 31 March 2023 the
Group is considered to be a low energy user.

Regardless of the obligations of other parties, the
Company takes the issue of environmental enhancement
and emissions sericusly as part of its overall ESG strategy
and is evaluating the portfolio, working with housing
managers, 1o consider where it can bring about further
enhancements and improvements.

Further details can be found in the Envircnmental,. Social
and Governance report on pages 37 to 46.

Political donations

No political donations were made by the Company or its
subsidiaries during the year or the prior year.

Charitable Donations

In addition to its direct investments, the Company plays
a broader part within the cormnmunities in which it
works. Whilst recognising the practical limitations that
ali financiai investors face, Civitas supports voluntary
orgarusations that are active within the broader housing
and homelessness environment. Civitas also intends, as
pan of its broader financial and operational reporting, to
provide a commentary on the positive soclal change
anhd impact that resuits from the investments that have
been made.

The following charitable donations were paid during the
year

Chanty

Donation
Choir with No Name o £17.350
House of St Barnabas £30,728
WISH £6.690
The Care Workers Charity £10,000
Total_ B | £64768

Independent Auditors
In the case of each Director in office at the date the Report
of the Directors is approved:

» so far as the Director is aware, there 1s no relevant
audit information of which the Group and Company's
auditors are unaware; and

¢ they have taken all the steps that they ought t¢ have
taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Group and Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its willingness
to continue to act as auditors of the Company and a
resolution {or its re-appointment will be proposed at the
2023 annual general meeting. The Board is mindful that,
should as takeover offer by Wellness Unity Limited (a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings
Limited) has on 23 June 2023 been declared unconditional,
the resolutions proposed and the format of the Company's
AGM may be impacted.

Takeover Offer Process

On 9 May 2023, the Company announced that the Board had
reached agreement with Wellness Unity Limited (a whally
owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited)
(the "Offeror”) cn the terms of a recommended all-cash
offer for the entire issued share capital of the Company, to
be implemented by a Takeover Offer (the "Offer”).

Under the terms of the Offer, each shareholder will be
entitled to recejve 80 pence in cash for each share held
in the Company. [n addition, shareholders who were on
the register at the close of business on 13 May 2023 were
entitled to receive and retain the fourth quarter dividend
of 1425 pence (in respect of the period 1 January 2023 to
31 March 2023).

Further on 22 May 2023, the Company issued a circular to
shareholders with respect to the recommmended cash cffer,
which set out, that for shareholders to accept the Offer a
Form of Acceptance must be received by the Recelving
Agent no later than 21 July 2023. Subsequent to this, the
date for sharehoclder Form of Acceptances to be received
by the Receiving Agent was brought forward to 23 June
2023, On 23 June 2023, the offeror anncunced that the offer
was declared uncanditional

The Board, which has been advised by the Company’s
Joint Brokers (Panmure Gordon and Liberum) as to the
financial terms of the Offer, considers the terms of the Offer
1o be fair and reasonable,

The Offercr has indicated its intention (subject to the Offer
being declared unconditional with the Offeror obtaining
75 per cent or more of the voting rights of the Company):
1o delist the Company from the London Stock Exchange
Main Market for listed securities and thereafter re-register
the Company as a private limited company as soon as
practicable following the cancellation of listing and
trading of the Company's shares. This process will take
place following the release of the Annual Report.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statement, the Report of the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report form part of the Report of
the Directors

Approval
The Report of the Directors has been approved by the Board.
By order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secretary
28 June 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require listed companies to disclose
how they have applied the principles and complied

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

to which the issuer ig subject The provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code {“UK Code”), as issued by the
FRC in July 2018, are applicable to the year under review
and can be viewed at www frc.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (AIC Code”) as issued by the AIC in February
2019. The AIC Code addresses all the principles set cut in
the UK Code, as well as setting out additicnal principles
and recommendations on issues that are of specific
relevance to the Company as an investment company.
The FRC has confirmed that AIC member companies
who report against the AIC Code will be meeting their
obligations in relation to the UK Code and the assoclated
disclosure requirements of the FCA. The AIC Code can be
viewed at www.theaic.couk.

The Board considers that reporting against the principles
and recommendations of the AIC Code provides
shareholders with full details about the Company's
corporate governance compliance.

Statement of Compliance

Except as set out bejow, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the AIC Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2023,

Provision 23: Directors are not appeinted for a specified
term, as all Directors are non-executive and the Board
believes that a Director's performance and their
continued contribution to the running of the Company
is of greater importance and relevance to shareholders
than the length of time for which they have served as a
Director of the Company, Each Director is subject to the
election and re-election provisions set out in the Articles
which provide that a Director appointed during the year
is required to retire and seek election by shareholders
at the next annual general meeting following their
appointment. Thereafter the Directors intend to offer
themselves for re-election annually and will aim to not be
on the Beard for more than nine years.

The UK Code includes provisions relating to:

e the role of the chief executive; and
executive directors remuneration.

The Board considers that these provisions are not relevant
to the position of the Company, being an externally
managed investment company. In particular, all of the
Company's day-to-day management and administrative
functions are outsourced to third parties. As a result,

the Company has no executive Directors, employees

or internal operations. The Company has therefore nat
reported further in respect of these provisions.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board

is responsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs. including corporate strategy.
corporate governance, risk agsessment and overall
investment policy. The Directors have overall
responsibility for the review of investment activity and
performance, and the supervision of the Investment
Adviser which is responsible for the day-to-day asset
management of the Company's portfolio.

The Board corisists of five non-executive Directors. It
seeks to ensure that it has an appropriate balance of
skills and experience, and considers that, collectively, it
has substantial recent and relevant experlence of public
company management, the UK real estate sector, social
housing and investment companies. All the Directors are
independent of the Investment Adviser and the AIFM.

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters reserved
for decision by the Board, including inter alia,
determining the Company's investment objective and
policy, and gearing and dividend policies. This schedule
of matters reserved for the Board is available on the
Company's website.

The Directors ensure that risks are effectively managed
through robust policies and procedures, supported by
the right values and culture. The Board's primary focus
is the sustainable long-term success of the Group to
deliver value for shareholders, taking into account other
stakeholders.
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The Board is responsible for investment decisions. other
than 1o the extent delegated to the AIFM and/or the
Investment Adviser, and the appointment, supervision
and monitoring of the Company's service providers,
including amongst others, the AIFM and the Investment
Adviser The Board is responsible for the interim and
annual financial statements ¢f the Company and. in
conjunction with the AIFM, also approves the periodic
calculation of the Net Asset Value.

The Chairman, Michael Wrobel, was independent of

the Investment Adviser at the time of his appointment
and is deemed by his fellow Directors to continue to be
independent in character and judgement and {ree of
any conflicting relationships. He leads the Board and

is responsible for its overall effectiveness in directing
the Company. In liaisen with the Company Secretary, he
ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Mr Wrobel considers himself to have
sufficient tirme to commit 1o the Group's affairs. He has no
significant commitments other than those disclosed in
his hiography on page 48 The role and responsibilities of
the Chairman are clearly defined and set out in writing, a
copy of which is available on the Company's website.

Peter Baxter is the Senior Independent Director of

the Company. He provides a sounding board for

the Chairman and serves as an intermediary for the
other Directors and shareholders. He also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chairman and takes the lead in the annual evaluation
of the Chairman by the other Directors. The role and
responsibilities of the Senior Independent Director are
clearly defined and set out in writing. a copy of which is
available on the Company's website,

The Board has no set policy for the length of tenure of
Directors although it keeps in mind the recommendations
of the AIC Code during succession planning. it is the
Board's policy for all Directors to stand for re-election
annually. Recommendations for election/re-election of
Directors are made on an individual kasis following
rigorous review. Directors are appoeinted under letters of
appeintment, copies of which are available for inspection
at the registered office of the Company and at the AGM.

Board Operation and Culture

The Board meets formally at least quarterly, but also
meets on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considering
potential transactions and associated due diligence
The Board will meet to consider and, if appropriate,
approve the acquisition of properties recommended

by the Investment Adviser The Investment Adviser
prepares an Investment Proposal Paper ("IPP7) in 1espect
of the proposed acquisitions which includes details

of the transaction and due diligence reparts. Upon
review of the [PP, the Board contemplates the structure
of the transacton, any risks attached to the proposed
transaction and how thege would be mitigated/managed,
and the impact of the transacticn on the value of the
Group's property portfolio, following advice from

the valuers.

For the purpose of monitoring the portfolio, the Board
receives periodic reports from the AIFM and the
Investment Adviser, detailing the performance of the
Company. The Beoard delegates certain responsibilities
and functions to the Audit and Management Engagement
Comrmittee, which has written terms of reference.

To assist the Board in the day-to-day operations of the
Company, arrangements have been put in place to
delegate authonty for performing certain cperations to
the AIFM, the Investment Adviser and other third-party
service providers, such as the Administrater and the
Company Secretary.

The Chairman demonstrates objective judgement,
promotes a culture of openness and debate, and
facilitates effective contributions by all Directors. The
Directors are required to act with integrity, lead by
example and promote this culture within the Company.

The Board seeks to ensure the alignment of the
Company's purpose, values and strategy with the culture
of openness, debate and integrity through ongoing
dialogue, and engagement with the Investment Adviser
and the Company's other service providers. The Board
and the Investment Adviser operate in a supportive,
co-cpérative and open envircnment.

The Board schedules yearly meetings with the board of
the Investrnent Adviser, one of the purposes of which is
1o receive an insight into the culture of the Investment
Adviser.
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The culture of the Board is considered as part of The number of Board, Audit and Management

the annual performance evaluation process which Engagement Committee and Nomination and

is undertaken by each Director. The culture of the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year
Company's service providers is also considered by the ended 31 March 2023 along with the attendance of the

Audit and Management Engagement Committee during Directors is set out below:

the annual review of their perfcrmance and while

Audit and

congidering their continuing appeintment. )
Management Nomination and
The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability - Q“iﬁzﬁ; e mmities e"éi?:ﬁi.i’z
insurance on behalf of the Directors at the expense of Number Number Number
the Company, which was in force during the year ended 7 oend aended 1oattend awsmdes toatend  auended
31 March 2023 and remains in force as at the date of this Michael
report. The Board has agreced arrangements whereby Wrobel 4 4 3 3 1 1 [2]
Directors may take independent professicnal advice Alastair ,°.
in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has 8
; g - - . Moss 4 4 3 3 1 1
also indemnified the Directors in accordance with the y :
provisions of the Articles of Association. Alisen o
Hadden 4 4 3 3 1 1 o
Independence of Directors Carocline 2
i . , . Gulliver 4 4 3 3 1 1 "
The independence of all Directors is reviewed as part of Z
the annual assessment of the Board. Peter 2
Baxter 4 4 3 3 1 1 a
i = e a

The Board has determined that each Director remains
independent in character and judgement and is free of
any relationships or circumstances that threaten their
independence of the Company or its Investment Adviser.
In particular, none of the Directcrs have ever been
executives of the Company or the Investment Adviser,
have had a material direct or indirect relationship

with the Company or its stakeholders. have received .
disproporticnate fees. have close family relationships Committees

with stakeholders or represent significant shareholders. The Company operates through the Board and its two
Board committees, narmely the Audit and Management

Engagement Committee and the Nominaticn and
Remuneration Committee {the “Comimnittees”). The Board
evaluates the membership of the Committees on an
annual basis.

The Board is scheduled to meet on a quarterly basis.

In addition to these meetings the Board alsc met on
three occasions to approve the NAYV and dividend
declarations and on a further 11 occasions on an ad hoc
basis.

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agenda is approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance of
each meeting to the non-executive Directors and other
attendees. A typical agenda includes: an analysis of

perifolio performance and exposure; an update on Audit and Management Engagement

the investment pipeline; the Company's financial Committee
performance; updates on investor relations; statutory and  The Audit and Management Engagement Committee
regulatory compliance: and any corporate governance comprises all Directors. Caroline Gulliver, the Chair of

malters. Relevant papers on the items included on the
agenda are circulated in good time to the members of
the Board and its Committees, in advance of the meeting.

The Investment Adviser attends the Board meetings
together with representatives from the AIFM and
Company Secretary. Representatives of the Company's
other advisers are alsc invited tc attend Board and
Committee meetings from time to time.

the Audit and Management Engagement Committee,
is a Chartered Accountant and is considered 1o have
recent and relevant financial experience. The Audit
and Management Engagement Committee as a whole
has competence relevant tc the real estate investment
company sector.

The Chairmean is a member of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee. but does not chair it. His
membership of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee is considered apprepriate given the small
size of the Board and the Chairman's kncwledge of

the financial services industry. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audit and Management Engagement
Comimittee is available from the Secretary and on the
Cempany's website
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The Committee meets at least three times a year and
reviews the scope and results of the external audit, its
cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity
of the external auditors, including the provision of
non-audit services.

The Committee also reviews the terms of the AIFM
agreement and the Investment Adviser agreement, and
examines the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control systems and the performance of the AIFM,
Investiment Adviser, Administrater, Depositary, Company
Secretary and Registrar, and other service providers.

The Report of the Audit and Management Engagernent
Committee is set out on pages 60 to 62.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commaittee is
comprised of all Directors and the Chairman is the Senior
Independent Director. Peter Baxter. The Nomination

and Remuneration Comirlittee meets as required for the
purpose of considering recruitiment to and removals from
the Board: levels of remuneration paid to the Directors;
and review of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Remuneration Policy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneration and Nomination Cormmittee is
available on the Company's website and is available by
request from the Company Secretary.

Board Diversity

The Board acknowledges the FCA rules on diversity and
inclusion on company boards.

The Board is comprised of a mixture of individuals who
have an appropriate balance of skills and experience to
meet the future opportunities and challenges facing the
Company. Appointments to the Board are made primarily
on mertit, though the Board understands the importance
of diversity in corporate govermance and takes into
consideration a variety of demographic attributes

and characteristics when making decisions on its
composition. The Board 1s aware of the new Listing Rule
that is on a ‘comply or explain’ basis which incorporates
the recornmendations of the Parker and Hampton-
Alexander Reviews which considered how ethnic,
cultural and gender diversity could be improved on UK
boards. The Board has discussed the new ethnic diversity
disclosures required, namely, that from accounting
periods starting on or after 1 April 2022

a) at least 40% of individuals on the Board to be women;

b) atleast one senior Board position to be held by a
woman: and

c) atleast one individual on the Board to be from a
minority ethnic background

In accordance with Listing Rule § Annex 21, the below
table, in prescribed format, show the gender ¢f the
Directors at the year ended. The data below was
ceilected through self-reporting by the Directors.

Numbaer of

Numberof  Percentage on  semior positions
Gender 1dentity or sex Board members the Board (%} on the Board
Men 3 60 2
Wornen 2 40 -
Not specified/prefer
not to say - _ _
o o ) Number of
Number of ~Fercentage on senior positions
Ethnic background Board members the Board (%) on the Board ,
White British cr other
White (including
minority white
groups) 5 100 2
Mixed/Muluple Ethnic
Groups - _ _

Asian/Aslan British

Black/African/

Caribbean/Black

Briush - - _
Other ethnic group

including Arab - - -
Not specified/prefer

not 1o 5ay - _ _

The Board is mindful that, at present, it does not comply

with the new ethnic and gender representation in

senior position diversity requirements and, the Board,

via the Nomination and Remuneration Commiittee, is

taking appropriate steps to ensure that Beard succession '
planning takes these diversity requirements into

consideration.

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the induction of new Directors has been
established, including the provision of an induction pack
containing relevant information about the Company,

its processes and procedures and meetings with the
Chairman and relevant persons at the Investment Adviser.

Performance Evaluation

For the year under review, the Board underncok

an internal performance evaluation by way of
guestionnalires designed 1o assess the strengths and
independence of the Board and the Chairman, individual
Directors and the performance of the Board's Committees
The areas considered are:

o the frequency and effectiveness of Board and
Committee meetings;

e the size composition and relevant experience of the
Board;
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s the independence and perfcrmance of the Directors
and the Board: and

s 1he Llaining requiremnents of each Director.

The evaluation process is facilitated by the Company
Secretary under the Chairmans direction and structured
to provide Directors with an opportunity to express
their views in addition t¢c answering specific questions.
Peter Baxter, as the Senior Independent Director, leads
the appraisal of the Chairman. The Board undertock an
external Board performance evaluation in 2021 and is
cognisant of their advantages. It will keep this option
under regular review.

The Company seeks to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills and experience that are complementary
and enable the Board to operate efficiently.

All of the Directors have agsessed their other ongoing
commitments and are satisfied that they can comrmit the
time necessary 1o execute their duties to the Company.

No significant issues were identified during the evaluation
process. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
considers that all of the current Directors make an effective
contribution and have the requisite skills and experience
to continue to provide able jeadership and direction for
the Company. It was agreed that all Directors should be
recommended for re-election at the next AGM. The Board
is mindful that, should as Takecgver Offer by Wellness
Unity Limited (& wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK
Asset Holdings Limited) hag on 23 June 2023 been declared
unconditicnal, the resolutions proposed and the format of
the Company's AGM may be impacted.

The Beard concluded that each Director brings considerable
expertise and experience tc the Board and the Board
operates with good independent thought and challenge.

All Board members have assessed their ongeing
commitments and are satisfied that they can commit the
time necessary to execute their duties to the Company.

The Board also uses the performance evaluation as an
cpportunity to review and discuss strategic issues for
the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a statutory responsibility to avoid
situations where a conflict of interest exists, or may

exist, between the Company and an entity that the
Director is either directly ar indirectly involved with.

The Board has procedures in place to identify potential
conflicts and resolve any that should arise. In the case of
a conflict of interest. the nature and extent of the conflict
are assessed against the existing internal control structure,
and the results of this assegsment and actions taken to
resolve the conflict are documented in the minutes of
the relevant Board meeting, No confilicts of interest arose
during the period.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is of prime importance 1o the

Company and is considered equally with all other
business management activities to ensure protection of
stakeholders, be they tenants, advisers, suppliers, visitors
or others. The Board regularly discusses health and safety
issues with the Investment Adviser,

The Company is committed to fostering the highest
standards in health and safety as it believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preventahle. All
our stakehoiders have a responsibility to support the aim
of ensuring a secure and safe environment, and all our
stakeholders are tasked with responsibility for achieving
this commitment.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the systems of internal
control relating to the Company and its subsidiaries,
and the reliability of the financial reporting process and
for reviewing their effectiveness, ensuring that the risk
management and control processes are embedded in
day-to-day operations.

An ongoing formal process. in accordance with the

FRC Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control

and Related Financial and Business Reporting, has been
established for identifying. evaluating and managing the
principal and other risks most likely to impact the Group.
This process, which is regularly reviewed, together with
key procedures established with a view 1o providing
effective financial control, has been in place throughout
the vear ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
Report.

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee has
in place a formal procedure for perferming an ongoing
rocbust assessment of the Group's risk management

and internal control systems. A risk matrix has been
established against which the risks identified and the
contrels in place to mitigate those risks can be monitored.
The risks are assessed on the basis of the likelihood of
them happening, the impact on the business if they were
to occur and the effectiveness of the controls in place

to mitigate them. In arriving at its judgement of what

rnisks the Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company's operations in the light of the following factors:

s the nature and extent of risks which it regards as
acceptable for the Company to bear within its overall
business objective;

« the threat of such risks becoming reality;

e the Company's ability to reduce the incidence and
impact of risk cn its perfermance; and

e the cost to the Company and benefits related to the
Company and third parties operating the relevant
controls.
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The risk ratrix is reviewed twice a year by the
Committee and at other times as necessary. The principal
risks facing the Company are set out on pages 30 to 33 of
this Annual Report, together with the processes applied
to mitigate those risks.

On an annual basis, the Committee reviews the control
reports of its key service providers and the auditors note
any deficiencies in internal controls and processes that
have been identified during the course of the audit.

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee 13
mindful of these key risks as well as considering evolving
and emerging risks such as the impact of the ongoeing
Ukraine-Russia conflict, long-term climate change and
cyber security which have the potential to affect the Group.
The Committee ensures that the Board takes appropriate
advice and debates the issues facing the Group.

At each Board meeting, the Board receives reports from
the Investment Adviser, the Administrator, the AIFM and
the Breker in respect of compliance activities, Company
financial performance and financial position.

The controls, which are regularly reviewed, aim 10
ensure that the assets of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accounting recerds are maintained, and the
financial information used within the business and for
publication is reliable. The risk management process
and Company systems of internal controls are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve the Company’'s objectives and can only provide
reasonabie, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Directors have carried out a review of the effectiveness
of the Company's risk management and internal control
systems as they have operated over the period and up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report. During the course
of the review, the Beard has not identified nor been advised
of any fallings or weaknesses which it has determined 1o be
significant.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness of
establishing an internal audit function and, having regard
to the structure and nature of the Company's activities,
has concluded that the function is unnecessary. The Audit
and Management Engagement Comrnittee will review

on an annuai basis the need for this function and rmake
appropriate recommendations to the Board.

Financial Reporting

The Board operates the following key controls in relation
to financial reporting:

¢ the Board and Committee members review quarterly
management reports and supporting documents that
are provided by the Investment Adviser;

e the Board has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and payments to third parties; and

e the Committee members and Board review all
financial information and anhouncements prior
to publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibility as
integral 1o how it conducts its business. It is committed to
being a good corporate citizen and behaving responsibly
with a demonstrated transparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the following
principles to its operations:

Business Conduct

The Company’s investment decisions are made on the
basis of generating shareholder value and ensuring

the long-term success of the business. The selection of
suppliiers witi be made independently by the Company's
Directors upon advice from the Investment Adviser

and in the best interests of the Company. The Board

will ensure that appropriate controls are in place to
guarantee independence from the supply chain.

All customers and suppliers will be treated fairly and
responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial support to
political parties or politicians.

The Company is resclutely cpposed to bribery and
corruption. The Company will not use any illegal or
improper means to further its business interests, nor will
it accept any forms of inducements intended to influence
its investment decisions.

Governance

The Company will prctect the interests of its shareholders
and other stakeholders through compliance with relevant
legal and regulatory environments, and through effective
management of business risk and opporntunity.

The Board will ensure that its members are truly
independent, are competent and have the resources and
support required tc perform their duties optimally, and
that the Board's decisions are made in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The performance
of the Board will be regularly reviewed, and Directors will
retire as and when deemed appropriate by the Beard in
accordance with best practice.
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Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims to be a socially respensible investor
and believes that it {s important to invest in specialist
social housing properties in a responsible manner in
respect of environmental. ethical and social issues. The
Investment Adviser's evaluation procedure and analysis
of the properties within the portfolio includes research
and appraisal of such matters, and takes intc account
environmental and sccial policies and other business
issues.

Further details on the social impact of the Company's
investments are included in the Social Impact report from
The Good Economy, a summary of which can be found
on page 40.

The Company recognises that environmental protection,
resource efficiency and sustainable development are
necessary to ensure that envircnmental damage 1s
limited and furthermore that, where relevant, positive
actions should be taken to improve the existing
envircnment for future generations.

Transparency

The Company aims to be transparent. and to ensure
that it comrmunicates with its shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
understanding of its business.

The Company maintains accounting documentation
that clearly identifies the true nature of all business
transactions, assets and liabilities, in line with the
relevant regulatory, accounting, and legal requirements.
No record or entry is knowingly false, distorted.
inccmplete, or suppressed.

All reporting is materiaily accurate and complete and

in compliance in all material respects with stated
accounting poelicies and procedures The Company does
not knowingly misstate or misrepresent management
information for any reason, and the Company expects the
same to apply to its suppliers.

The Company may be required to make statements

or provide reports to regulatory bodies, government
agencles or other government departments, as well as to
the media. The Company ensures that such statements or
reports are correct, timely, and not misleading, and that
they are delivered through the appropriate channels.

The Company provides, through its website, its Annual
Report and other statements, appropriate infoermation
to enable shareholders and stakeholders to assess

the performance of its business. It complies with

the applicable laws and regulations concerning the
disclosure of information relating tc the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that its properties which
are associated with the provision of health services
provide significant value-adding facilities in the
communities where it invests,

Relations with Stakeholders

Details regarding the Company's engagement with its
stakeholders are set out within the Strategic Report on
pages 17 to 25.

Approval

The Corporate Governance Statement has been approved
by the Board

By order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secretary

28 June 2023
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee (the
“‘Committee”) oversees the financial reporting process for
the Company, with consideration of the internal controls
and risk management of the Company, and cversight of
the Company's compliance with accounting standards
and regulatory requirements. It also oversees the
performance of the Investment Adviser and the Company's
adminijstrative and company secretarial support.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Committee is chaired by Caroline Gulliver and
cornprises all the Directors. The Committee operates within
written terms of reference which are available on the
Company's website as determined by the Board.

The principal functions of the Committee are to:

» oversee the financial reporting process for the
Company and moenitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group, including
their compliance with accounting standards and
regulatory requirements;

s advise the Board, where requested. on whether the
Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy;

e review and monitor the internal financial control and
risk management systems of the Comparny:;

s monitor and review annually whether an internal
audit function is required;

e review the Investment Adviser's whistleblowing
arrangements;

= approve the appointment. re-appointment or
remaval of the external auditors, and approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement;

» manage the relaticnship between the Company
and the external auditors. including reviewing their
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process;

¢ develop and implement a pelicy on the engagement
of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;
and

s  Taview and monitor the performance of and
contractual arrangements with, the Investment
Adviser the AIFM and other service providers.

It is within the Committee’s terms of reference for its
mermbers to seek independent professional advice, at the
Company'’s expense, as required in the furtherance of its
duties.

Meetings

The Committee meets three times a year: on two
occasions, part of the meeting is held with the external
auditors without the Investment Adviser present. The
Committee met three times in the financial year and the
meetings were attended by each member as set out cn
page 55

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluation of the performance of the
Committee is disclosed on pages 56 and 57.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process for identifying.
evaluating and managing the principat and emerging risks
faced by the Group. Further details can be found on pages
57 and 58.

The principal risks and uncertainties icentified from the risk
register and a description of the Group's risk management
procedures can be found on pages 3010 33.

Activities During the Year

The Committee considered the Annual Report, Half-Yearly
Report, any other formal financial performance
announcements and any other matters as specified
under the Committeg's terms of reference and reperted to
the Board on how it discharged its responsibilities.

The Committee discussed and considered the external
audit performance, cbjectivity and independence, the
external auditors’ re-appointment, accounting policies
and Alternative Performance Measures, significant
accounting judgements and estimaites, the need for an
internal audit functicn and the risk register.

The Committee concluded that an internal audit
function weould provide minimal additional comfort
at considerable extra cost to the Company. Internal
assurance is achieved by the existing system of
maonitoring and reporting by third parties which the
Committee views as appropriate and adequate. The
external auditors are also provided with third party
internal contrels reports and additional information.
as requested.

During the year, the Commitiee also conducted a
comprehensive review of the key agreements with

its service providers, and a detailed review of the
periormance, compaosition, personnel, processes and
internal control systems of the AIFM, a review of all of
the Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers. The discussion included an assessment of
performance and suitability of the services provided
in the context of the fees paid to each provider and a
review of the termination period of each agreement.

The Committee considered the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement, to ensure it continues to reflect
the commercial arrangements agreed between the
Company and the Investment Adviser and was satisfied
that this was the case.

The Committee discussed and considered the Takeover
Offer by Wellness Unity Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited), including the
work undernaken by the Company 1n relation to the offer,
its impact on the Company's risk profile and on going
concern.
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Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Committee considered the key accounting estimates
and judgements underlying the preparation of the
financial statements focusing specifically on:

Valuation of Investment Property
The valuation of the property portfolio is crucial to the
statement of financial position and reported results.

After discussion with the Investment Adviser, the
Committee has determined that the key risks of
misstatement of the Company financial statements relate
to the valuation of investment property.

The valuations of the investment properties at the end
of the financial year were independently performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited ("JLLY, whom the Committee
considers to have sufficient expertise, experience and
local and naticnal knowledge of social housing and
supported housing 1o undertake the valuations.

JLL also conducts initial valuations of properties on
acquisition. The Directors have ensured that JLL has
approprnate procedures in place to ensure there are no
independence conflicts with the services provided to
the Company.

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Committee that
the method of valuation has been applied consistently
during the year. It further confirmed that, during the
course of the period, JLL was regularly challenged by
the Investment Adviser on the assumptions used in the
valuation of the Company's investment properties to
ensure rchust and appropriate methods were being
applied. The Investment Adviser discusses these areas of
challenge with the Committeg,

The auditors met separately with JLL and repcrted back
to the Committee cn its challenge of the valuations

and assumptions. The auditors were satisfied that

the valuations had been prepared using appropriate
methods and assumptions, and had been prepared in
accordance with RICS Valuation - Professional Standards.

As explained in note 15.0 to the financial statements,
the approach adopted by the Company is to recognise
investment properties at fair value, with the fair value of

the property being based on valuations pertormed by JLL.

The revaluation of the investment properties gave rise to
a revaluation gain of £2,640.000 in the pericd.

Takeover Offer

The Committee considered the valuation work
undertaken by JLL {as instructed to act for the Company.
Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited and Liberum Capital
Limited) with respect to the Takecover Offer by Wellness
Unity Limited (a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK
Asset Holdings Limited). The valuation methedelogy used
by JLL was consistent with that used during the valuation
for the year ended 31 March 2023 and had the same
valuation date.

Maintenance of REIT Status

There are a nurnber of conditions that a company (or
principal company of a group REIT) needs to satisfy in
order to become a REIT and remain within the regime.
The UK REIT regime affords the Group a beneficial tax
treatment for income and capital gains, provided certain
criteria are met. There is a risk that these REIT conditions
may not be met and additional tax becomes payable by
the Company. The Board regularly reviews the REIT tests
that are performed by the Administrator.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has maintained
its REIT status throughout the year.

Going Concern

The Committee considered the Company's Going
Concern and Viability Statement for the year ended

31 March 2023 in light of the Takeover Offer and its impact
on the Company's debt positicn. It agreed the wording
used in the Independent Auditors Report which makes
reference to the material uncertainty identified.
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Misstatements

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Committee that
it was not aware of any material misstatements made
intentionally to achieve a particular presentation.

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentations and reports from the
Investment Adviser, the Committee is satisfied that the
financial statements appropriately address the critical
judgements and key estimates, both in respect of the
amcunts reported and the disclosures.

The Committee is also satisfied that the significant
assumptions used for determining the value of assets
and liabilities have been appropriately scrutinised and
challenged and are sufficiently robust. Accordingly., the
Committee has concluded that the Annual Report and
financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable and has recommended their
approval to the Board on that basis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenure

As a result of the UK's implementation of the EU's
mandatery audit firm rotation requirements, the Company
is required to ensure that the external auditors’ contract
is put out to tender at least every ten years. with the
proviso that no single firm may serve as the Company's
external auditors for a period exceeding 20 years.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was first appointed as the
Company's auditors with effect from March 2017, 1t is
intended that the external audit will be put out 1o tender
no later than for the financial year commencing 1 April
2026, which is ten years after the Company’s initial listing.

Saira Choudhry 1s the audit partner allocated to the
Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE. The audit of
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
is her second as senior statutory auditor of the Company.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

As part of its annual review of the effectiveness of

the external audit process. the Committee obtained
assurance on the quality of the external audit from its
own evaluation, the audit feedback documentation and
from correspondence and discussions with the audit
partner, Investment Adviser and the Administrator.

The auditors demonstrated a good understanding

of the Group, and had identified and focused on the
areas of greatest financial reporting risk. Its reporting
to the Committee was clear, open and thcrough. The
Committee has assessed the professional scepticism and
challenge of management judgement by the auditcrs
and is satisfied that the auditors have demonstrated
these. For example, the external auditors conducted a
review of the work conducted by JLL in evaluating the
investment property valuations in which the external
auditors showed appropriate professional scepticism
and challenge of judgement. The Committee assessed
the challenge provided by the external auditors via the
external auditors reports provided at the year end and
half year end meetings and questioned the external
auditors as appropriate. The Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chairman also met with the
external auditors throughout the audit and half-yearly
review processes i ensure that the external auditcrs
were aligned with the Committee’'s expectations. The
Committee considered the advice included in the

FRC Practice Ald on Audit Quality when making this
judgement

The FRC's Audit Quality Inspections Report on the audits
carried out by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was also
considered by the Committee. On the basis of these
factors and assessments. the Committee has concluded
that the external audit process has been effective,

The Committee assessed the external auditors’
independence, qualifications, relevant experience,
and effectiveness of audit procedures. In advance of
each audit, the Committee obtains confirmation from
the external auditors that they remain independent
and that the level of non-audit fees are not an
independence threat.

Non-audit Services

The Committee has put into place a policy for the
provision of non-audit services to the Company by the
auditors which is in line with the recommendations set
out in the FRC's Guidance on Audit Committees (2016) and
the requirements of the FRC's Revised Fthical Standard
{2019]. The general intention of the Committee is to avoid
the provision of non-audit services by the auditors, other
than the review of the half-yearly report, as these have
the potential 10 compromise the independence of the
auditors, The Committee acknowledges that in certain |
situations it may be appropriate for the external auditors
to provide such services to the Company for a variety of
reascns including cost effectiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relationship between the Board and

the external auditors. All non-audit fees are approved by
the Committee in advance Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significant, the Committee considers the
appropriateness of the independence safeguards put in
place by the auditors.

The total fees paid tc PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP during
the period, net of VAT, totalled £441.000 (2022: £402,000) of
which £83.000 (2022: £44,000) was concerning non-audit
services for the review of the half-yearly report and

£nil (2022 £62,000 for non-audit services concerning a
planned Bond [ssue which was postponed).

The auditors were selected for the non-audit services
relating to the postponed Bond Issue following careful
consideration by the Committee. The Committee
believed that the ability for the auditors to audit the
Company's financial statements independently would
not be impacted by this work. It is standard practice for a
Company's external auditors to undertake this task.

Note 9.0 1o the consclidated financial statements

details all services provided and total fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial year !
ended 31 March 2023. The Committee considers

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP to be independent of the

Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking into account the performance and effectiveness of
the auditors and the confirmation of their independence,
the Committee has recommended to the Board that a
resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
the Company's auditors be put to the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman. Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

28 June 2023
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presents the
Report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
Peter Baxter, as Chairman, and the entire Board, all of
whom are non-executive Directors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the Board and are available on
the Company's website.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s principal
duties are as follows:

Nomination

e toreview the structure, size and compacsition of the
Board, including its skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity, including gender and ethnicity:

e 1o consider the succession planning of Directors,
taking into account the challenges and opportunities
facing the Company and the skills and expertise
needed on the Board in the future;

* to be responsible for identifying and nominating
candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise;

s toreview annually the time required from
non-executive Directors;

e toreview the results of the Board performance
evaluation as it relates to Board composition and
succession planning;

* toreview annually petential confilicts of interests of
Directors as disclosed to the Company and develop
appropriate processes for managing such conlflicts; and

s toreceive and consider updates from the Investment
Adviser on its own succession planning activities.

Remuneration

e« 10 determine and agree with the Board, a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy
on the remuneration of the Company's Chair, Audit
and Management Engagement Comrnittee Chair
and non-executive Directors;

e totake into account all factors when considering
the Remuneration Policy which it deems necessary.
including relevant legal and regulatery requirements,
the provisions and reccmmendations of the AIC Code
of Corporate Governance and associated guidance;

s 10 review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance
of the Remuneration Policy;

» 1o obtain reliable, up-to-date information about
remuneraton in cther companies of comparable
scale and complexity and market practice generally;

= 10 be responsible for establishing the selection
criteria, selecting, appointing and setting the terms
of reference for any remuneration consultants who
advise the Committee; and

e to ensure that contractual terms on termination, and
any payrents made, are fair to the individual, and the
Company, that failure is not rewarded and that the
duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised.

Activities During the Year

The Committee meets at least once per year. During the
year, the Committee has:

e considered the Board's remuneration in view of the
responsibilities and time commitments for overseeing
the affairs of the Company, in light of the Articles of
Association as well as the level of dividend paid to
shareholders during the year,
reviewed the Director's skill matrix;
considered the Board's current succession plan, and
agreed that it would be prudent for the Board to
phase the recruitment of additional Directors going
forward to allow progressive rotation of Directors and
facilitate effective succession planning;

s appointed a Sub-Committee to be responsible for
conducting the recruitment process (o identify a new
candidate for appointment tc the Board;

» engaged recruitment agency. Odgers Berndston, 1o
assist with the search for a candidate;

o reviewed the results of the Board's 2023 performance
evaluation process, the details of which can be found
on pages 56 and 57; and

e satisfied itself that each non-executive Director
serving at the end of the year temains independent
and continues 1o have sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities to the Company.

The Company is supportive of the new Listing Rules
being issued by the Financial Conduct Authority

on diversity and inclusicn on company boards. The
Committee is considering a range of candidates from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversity policy can
be found cn page 56.

The Directors’' fees were considered by the Committee in
February 2023. During its consideraticn, the Committee
took into account the factors of clarity, simplicity, risk,
predictability, proportionality and alignment of Company
culture, It alsc obtained the most up-to-date industry
remuneration comparison te ald in its decision-making.
Please see the Directors’ Remuneraticn Report on pages 64
to 67 for details on Director remuneration.

Peter Baxter
Chairman, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

28 June 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Polic
v

Introduction

The Rermuneration Policy of the Company is set by

the Board. A resolution to approve the Rermnuneration
Policy was passed at the AGM of the Company held

on 15 September 2022. The pclicy provisions set out
below will apply until the Remuneration Policy is

put to shareholders for approval at the AGM of the
Company in 2025. There are no changes proposed 10
the Rermnuneration Policy. The Remuneration Policy is
binding and sets the parameters within which Directors’
remuneration may be set.

Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is 1o pay its
non-executive Directors fees that are appropriate for
the role and the amount of time spent in discharging
their duties, that are broacdlly in line with those of
comparable real estate investment companies and that
are sufficient to attract and retain suitably qualified and
experienced individuals.

Directors’ Remuneration Components
Component ; [}Er_(-.jctor
Annual fee Chairman

Annual fee Non-executive Directors

7Ac1ditibhal fée "Chair%éf the Audit an& Managerr:nem

“Additional fee  All Directors

Expenses All Directors

Rate at 1 Apnil 2023
{and 1 Apnil 2022} Purpose of Remuneration

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may also be reviewed when new non-executive Directors
are recruited to the Board. The Directors of the Company
are entitled to such rates of annual fees as the Board

at its discreticn shall from time to time determine. The
Chairman of the Board and the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chairman are entitled to receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflecting their additicnal duties and responsibilities.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addition to the annual fee, under the Company’s
Articles of Association, if any Director is requested to
perform any special duties or services outside their
ordinary duties as a Director, they may be paid such
reasonable additional remuneration as the Board may
from time to time determine

£532,000 Commitment as Chanmah of a public
_ company’ B
£34,000 Commitment as non-executive Directors of

__ . apubliccompany’ o
£5,000 For additicnal responsibkilities and time
comImitment?

Discretionary For extra or special services performed in

their role as a Director?

n/a Reimbursement of expenses incurred in the
performance of duties as a Director®

1 The Company's policy is for the Chairman of the Board to be paid a tugher fee than the other Directors to reflect the more onerous role.
2 The Company's Anticles oi Asseciation limit the aggiegate fees payable to the Board of Directors 1o £250.000 per annum
3 The Company's policy is for the Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement Committeée to be paid a higher fee than the other Directors to reflect the more

onerous role

4 This 1s a provision of the Company's Articles. Additional fees would only be paid in exceptional circumnstances in relation to the performance of extra or special

services

5 Directors are entitled ta claim expenses 1n Tespect of duties underiaken in connection with their role as a Director
The Company has no employees Accordingly. there are no differences in policy on the remuneration of Dnrectors and the remuneration of employees
No Director is entitled to receive any remuneration which i1s performance-related As a result, there are no performance conditions in relation to any elements of the

Directors' remuneration in existence to set out in this Remuneration policy.

Directors’ and Officers’ liakility insurance cover is
maintained by the Company on behalf of the Directors.

Directors are entitled to be paid all expenses properly
incurred in attending Board or shareholder meetings
or otherwise in or with a view to the performance of
their duties.

As all Directors are non-execulive and there are no
employees, the Company does not operate any share
option or other long-term incentive schemes and the
Directors’ fees are not subject to any performance criteria.
No pension or other retitement benefit schemes are
cperated by the Company for any of its Directors



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No Director has a service contract with the Company. The
Directors are appeinted under letters of appointment.
Their appcintment and any subsequent termination or
retirement is subiect to the Articles of Association. The
Directors’ letters of appeintment provide that, upaon the
termination of a Directcr's appointment, that Director
must resign in writing and all records remain the
property of the Company. The Director's appointment
can be terminated in accordance with the Articles of
Association and withcut compensation. There is no
notice period specified in the Articles of Asscciation for
the removal of Directors and all Directors are subject 10
annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneration package for any new Chairman or
non-executive Director will be the same as the prevailing
rates determined on the bases set out above. The Board
will not pay any introductory fee or incentive to any
person to encourage them to beccme a Director, but
may pay the fees of search and recruitment specialists

in connection with the appointment of any new
non-executive Director.

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees being
patd to Directors would be taken into consideration by
the Board when reviewing levels of remuneration.

Remuneration Report

The Board presents its Directors’ Remmuneration Report

in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Reguiations 2013. An ordinary
resclution for the approval cf the Directors’ Remuneration
Report will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company's auditors to audit certain
required disclosures. Where disclosures have been
audited, they are indicated as such. The auditors’ opinicn
is included in the auditors report on pages 71 to 78.

Annual Statement from the Chairman

I am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

During the year under review, the Board, via the
Nomination and Remuneration Comrnittee, was
responsible for setting the Company's Remuneration
Policy and Directors’ fees.

The report from Nomination and Remuneration
Committee can be found on page 63.

The Directors are remunerated for thelr services at such
rate as the Directors shall from time to time determine.
The Board has set three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman, one for cther Directors, and an additionai

fee that is paid to the Director who chairs the Audit

and Management Engagement Committee Fees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remuneration
Policy. The fee for any new Director appointed will be
determined on the same basis.

Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 March 2023 were

at a level of £33,000 per annun for the Chairman and
£34,000 per annum for other non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee received an additional fee of £5,000 per
annum.

There were no cther payments for extra or special
services in the year ended 31 March 2023.

At the AGM held on 3 September 2019, shareholders
approved the amendment to the Company's Articles of
Association which increased the maximum aggregate
annual remuneration payable to Directors from £200,000
ta £250.000.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved
at the AGM held on 15 September 2022. There will be
no significant change in the way the Remuneration
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will next be presented
to shareholders for approval at the Company's AGM in
2025.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served during the year received the following emolurnents:

Taxable

Director _ . Fees __kenefits
Michasel Wrohel (Cﬁa?man) o ?5_3,000 ) —
Alastair Moss £34,000 -
Alison Hadden £34,000 -
Caroiine Gulliver £39,000 -
Peter Baxter £34,000

Total o  £194000

The amounts paid to the Directors were for services as
non-executive Directors. Taxable benefits included in the
above table are in respect of the amounts reimbursed to
Directors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
by them in the performance of their duties. There are no
variable elements in the remuneration payabile to the
Directors.

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the total
aggregate remuneration and benefits in kind of the
Directors of the Company is subject to a maximum of
£250,000 in any financial year. Any change to this would
require shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Directors do not have service contracts with the
Company but are engaged under letters of appointment
under which there is no entitlement to compensation for
loss of office. Directors are subject tc annual re-election
by shareholders

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

- £194000

_.._Year ended 31 March 2022 B

Cnahg; Taxable Change

Total o I_ﬁ __ Fees 5 bene_hti Total tc_EDZZ

—  £53,000 192% £52.000 —  ES2000  4.00%
£34.000 216%  £33280 ~ £33280  4.00%
£34.000 216%  £33280 - £33280  4.00%
£39,000  1.88% £38280 ~  £33280 633%
£34,000  216% £33280 - E33280  4.00%
000 g0l - £190120

Company Performance

The following graph cornpares the performance for the
period from IPC on 18 November 2016 to 31 March 2023,
the total shareholder return of the Company's Ordinary
shares relative to the FTSE All-Share Index and FTSE
Real Estate Index. Although the Company has no formal
benchmark, these indices have been selected as the
FTSE All-Share represents all companies of a similar
capital size, and the constituents of the FTSE 350 Real
Estate Index are UK-based real estate companies and are
therefore considered to represent the most appropriate
comparative.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

The table below sets out, in respect of the year ended
31 March 2023:

a) the remuneration paid to the Directors; and

b) the distributions made to shareholders by way of
dividend.

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 Mareh 2023
£'000

Directors'_?émuneration 194 190
Dividends paid to Ordinary
shareholdﬁrL 34,47597 34.@%

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There is no requirement under the Company's Articles
of Association or the terms of their appointment for
Directors to held shares in the Company.

As at 31 March 2023, the Directors (including their
connected persons) had beneficial interests in the
following numtkber of shares in the Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ordinary Ordinary
shares __ shares

200,000 120,598

Michael Wrobel

Alastair Moss 11,766 11,766
Alison Hadden 31,937 -
Caroline Gulliver 58.832 58.832
Peter Baxter 82,065 82065

There have heen no changes to Directors’ share interests
between 31 March 2023 and the date of this Report. Each
Director has accepted the recommended all-cash cifer
made by Wellness Unity Limited for the entire issued
share capital of the Company (the "Offer”) in respect of
their own beneficial holdings.

None of the Directors or any persons connected
with them had a material interest in the Company's
transactions, arrangements or agreements during
the year.

000

Voting at AGM

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved at

the AGM held on 15 September 2022 and the Directors’
Rernuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approved at the AGM held on 15 September 2022. The
votes cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

Votes for' Votes against
% ol votes *% of votes Votes Total
Resglution _cast B cast withheld votes cast

To approve
the Directors’
Remuneration
Report

To approve
the Directors’
Remuneration
Policy

99.65% 0.35% 266,554 296,369,243

_ 9963% 0.37%

283,007 296,369243

1 Votes 'for' include discretionary proxy votes granted to the Chairman by
shareholders.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company is committed to ongoing shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes.
Where there are substantial votes against resclutions

in relation to Directors’ remnuneration, the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vote and will detail any
resulting actions in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
Both the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the Directcrs’ Remuneration Policy resolutions were
approved by shareholders at the AGM on 15 September
2022. The Board received no feedback from shareheclders
on these resclutions.

Approval

The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financia}l
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements
in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Xingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law).

Under Company law,. Directors rmust not approve the
financial statements unless they are satistied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Cornpany and of the profit or loss of
the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

e state whether applicable UK-adopted international
accounting standards have been followed for the
Group financial staternents and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent: and

s prepare the financial staterments on the going concern
basis unless it {s inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection ¢f
fraud and other irreqgularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group's and Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and Company and
enable themn 10 ensure that the financial statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the Company's financial statements published
on the ultimate parent Company's website. Legislation

in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ Confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's and Company's
position and performance, business mmodel and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are
listed in the Board of Directers, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge:

e the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financia! position and profit of the
Group:

¢ the Company financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, give a true
and fair view cf the assets, liahilities and financial
positicn of the Company; and

s the Group Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces.

Approval

This Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was
approved by the Board and signed on its bhehalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023

il )



Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternative Investment Fund
Manager (the "AIFM") are each domiciled in the United
¥ingdom, the FCA Handbook rules requite Uial, arnong
other things, the AIFM makes available the following
information to shareholders of the Company under the
AIFMD (as implemented in the UK) and to notify them of
any material change to information previously provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company's
website: www.civitassccialhousing.com.

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)}(a)(b)(h))

The investment strategy and objectives of the Company.
the types of assets it may invest in and the investment
techniques it may employ, associated risks and any
investment restrictions are laid out in the investment
objectives and policy and other sections of the

Annual Report.

For information abcut the circumstances in which

the Company may use leverage, the types of sources
permitted and the associated risks and any restrictions
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangerments, shareholders are directed to the
disclosures contained in the investment objectives and
policy secticn of these financial statements as well as
specific AIFMD related disclosures further below.

Under the FCAs Listing Rules, to which the Company is
subject, it needs the pricr approval of its shareholders to
make a material change to ity investment pclicy.

Since the Company is closed ended without redemption
rights, liquidity risk management is limited to the
liquidity required toc meet the Company's obligations in
relation o its financing arrangements. ‘The AIFM utilises
varicus risk assessment methods to measure the risk of
portfclio illiquidity to meet the Company's obligations.
This measurement enables the provision of managerent
informaticn to the AIFM and the Board of the Company to
enable these risks tc be monjtered and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23()(c)

The Company is a public limited company listed on the
London Stock Exchange. The Company is incorporated
under the laws of England and Wales. The constitutional
document of the Company is its articles of association
which may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of its shaieholders Upon the purchase

of shares, an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Company. A shareholder’s liability to the Company will
ke limited to the amount uncalled on their shares.

As the Company is incorporated under the laws

of England and Wales, it may not be possible for a
sharehaolder located outside that jurisdiction to effect
service of process within the local jurisdiction in which
that shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a substantial portion of the assets of the Company
may be located outside a local jurisdiction in which
a shareholder resides and, as a result, it may not be
possikle to satisfy a judgement against the Company
in such leocal jurisdiction or to enforce a judgement
obtained in the local jurisdiction’s courts against

the Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1x{d).
(e) and ()

The AIFM (G10 Capital Limited) is a private limited
company with its registered office at 3 More London
Riverside, London SE1 2AQ. G10 Capital Limited is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FRN 648953). It has been appointed by the
Company to manage the Ccmpany under an AlfrM
Agreement with effect from 24 August 2017.
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The AIFM is responsible for portfolic management
and risk management and monitoring of the assets of
the Company and has discretionary authority over the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s assets,
with power to give guarantees and undertake cther
transacticns on behalf of the Company subject to the
provisions of the AIFM Agreement. The AIFM is also
responsible for ensuring compliance with the AIFMD.

The AIFM's duties under the AIFM Agreement are owed
to the Company as a whole rather than directly tc the
sharehclders, whether individually or in groups. The
Board of the Company is responsible under the AIFM
Agreement [or representing the Company in its dealings
with the AIFM.

In crder to comply with its regulatory obligations, the
AIFM holds professional indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and (f))

Indes Financial Limited (the “Depositary”) has been
appointed as the Depositary of the Company under

a Depositary Agreerment in accordance with AIFMD
requirements. The Depositary is a company incorporated
in England (registered number 08255973) whose
registered office is at 54 Fenchurch Street, London

EC3M 3JY. It is authorised to act as a Depositary by the
FCA {FRN 602528). The Depositary is responsible for
safekeeping of the Company's investments, including
helding in custody those investments which are required
to be held in custody and verifying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other investments, and
for cash monitoring.
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depositary’s duties under the Depaositary Agreement
are owed to the Company as a whole and not directly to
shareholders, whether individually or in greups.

The investments of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held in custody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1)(d))

The independent auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
The auditers’ duties, which are set out on pages 76 and
77, are owed 10 the Company as a whole, They have a
statutory responsibility to report to the members of the
Company as a whole in relation to the truth and fairness
of the Company's state of affairs and profit or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g)}

The assets of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Valuation Policy. The
Investment Committee which has been set up by the
AIFM in respect of the Company and its assets adds a
further level of oversight 10 the valuation process as get
out in the Corporate Governance section of the Annual
Report.

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i))

The Company incurs costs in the form of depositary fees,
custodian fees, bank fees and charges, marketing fees,
auditors fees, lawyers’ fees, fund administration fees,
company secretarial fees and other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j))

No preferential rights have been granted to any
existing shareholder.

The Company and the A[FM are committed 1o ensuring
that all shareholders are treated fairly and in accordance
with UK company law. They have not and will not enter
into any arrangement with one shareholder which
could result in any overall material disadvantage to the
other shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23(1X1))

The Company is clesed-ended and does not provide for
redemption of repurchase of the interests of ordinary
shareholders at their request

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
(k), 23(1)(m) and 23(1)(n))

The historic performance of the Company, to the extent
available, has heen disclesed to sharehelders in the
Company's Annual and Half Yearly Reports, which

will be sent to shareholders and are available from
httpf/civitassocialhousing.comy/

The latest NAV of the Company is published in the
latest Annual or Half Yearly Report or quarterly
NAV anncuncement.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(o))

The Company does not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

Information about the Company's risk profile and risk
management, total leverage and any material change to
the arrangements for managing the Company's liquidity,
the proportion of assets (if any) subject to special
arrangements arising from liquidity, the maximum
permitted leverage or the grant of rights of re-use of
collateral or guarantees In refation to leverage will be
provided in the Company's Annual Reports or on the
Company's website hitp://civitassocialhousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23(4){c))

The appointment of the AIFM as the AIFM of the
Company under the AIFMD means that it is responsible
for risk management and the ongoing process of
identfying, evaluating, monitoring and managing

the risks facing the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the AIFMD. The Board keeps the AIFM's
performance of these responsibilities under review as
part of its overall responsibility for the Company’s risk
managemernt and internal controls.

The principal risks of the Company are set out in the risk
management section in the Annual Report. The AIFM's
risk management system incorporates regular review

of these risks and the establishment of appropriate risk
limits and internal control processes 1o Initigate the
risks. The sensitivity of the Company to relevant risks is
further detailed in the risk management section in the
Annual Repart,

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified in the investment objectives and policy in
the Annual Report, the Company has the ability to put up
tc a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Asset Value and the AIFM oversees the use of leverage 1o
ensure that the use of borrowing is consistent with this
requirement. Leverage is calculated using gross assets,
with various adjustments. divided by net assets.

Under AIEMD. the Company is required to calculate
leverage under the two rmethodologies specified by
the Directive, the "Gress Method" and the "Commitment
Method", the difference being that the Commitrment
Method allows certain exposures to be offset or netted.
Disclosures are made on the website of the Company.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion

In our opinion;

s Civitas Social Housing PLC's group financial statements
and company financial statements (the “financial
statermnents”) give a true and fair view cf the state
of the group's and of the company's affairs as at
31 March 2023 and of the group's profit and the group's
cash flows for the year then ended;

e the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internaticnal
accounting standards as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Cormnpanies Act 2006;

e the company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included
within the Annual Report and Accounts (the "Annual
Report™), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Financial Position as at 31 March 2023,

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the
Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes

in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description cf the
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit
and Management Engagement Connuniltee.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs {(UK)") and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant tc our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes
the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public
interest entities, and we have tulfilied our other ethical
responsibilities in accerdance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare
that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in note 9.0 to the Consolidated
financial statements, we have provided no non-audit
services to the company or its controlled undertakings in
the period under audit.

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

In forming cur opinion on the financial statements,
which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 to the Consolidated
financial statements and note 2.0 to the Company
financial statements concerning the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern,
respectively. On 9 May 2023 the Board of Directers of
Civitas Social Housing PLC ("CSH" o1 "the group”) and the
Board of Directors of Wellness Unity Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited)
(collectively referred to as "CK") announced that they
have reached agreement on the terms and conditions

of a recommended all cash offer for the group. On

23 June 2023, the offer became unconditicnal. The group’s
existing committed debt facilities contain a standard
change of control clause which. from that point forward,
could result in the existing committed debt facilities
being withdrawn. The Directors have not had detailed
visibility of CK's post completion funding for the group
and company or the detailed plans behind the intentions
statements included within the announcement These
conditions, along with the cther matters explained in
note 2.2 to the Consclidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the group's and the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, The financial
statements do not include the adjustments that would
result if the group and the company were unable to
continue as a going concern.
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In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded
that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparaticn of the financial statements
is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s
and the company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included:;

e We cbtained managements latest forecasts that
support the Board's assessment and conclusicns with
respect to the going concern basis of preparation of
the financial statements.

e We checked the mathematical accuracy of
management’s forecasts.

a  We evaluated and challenged forecasts and sensitivity
analysis prepared by management to ensure they
are reflective of both the current environment and
considering the risk of a severe and proionged
economic downturn. We have assessed the extent
and plausibility of these scenarics in light of current
circumstances. We evaluated the directors’ plans
for future actions in relation to thelr going concern
assessment, shouid these be required.

s We agreed the inputs to these analyses 1o the audited
financial information or obtained corroborative
support for key assumptions as applicable.
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» We have assessed the debt covenants as well as
marnagement’s assessment of possible breach of
covenants agreeing the inputs to the audited results.
We have evaluated management’s stress tests on the
covenants.

e We also considered whether Civitas' debt financing
would impact the ability of the group and company to
continue as a going concern. Specifically we have had
consideration around any debt that is coming due in
the going concern period.

In relation to the directors’ reporting on how they have
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, other than
the material uncertainty identified in note 2.2 to the
financial statements. we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the directors statement
in the financial staternents akbout whether the directors
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting, or in respect of the directors’
identification in the financial statements of any other
material uncertainties to the group's and the company's
ability to continue to do so over a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
directors with respect 1o going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

e We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed encugh work 1o be able to give an cpinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into
account the structure of the group and the company,
the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which they operate. The group consists of
a single reportable segment.

Key audit matters

e« Material uncertainty related to going concern
» Valuation of investment property (group)

Materiality

e Overall group materiality: £10.0 million
(2022: £10.4 millicn) based on 1% of total assets.

e Overall company materiality: £8.2 million
(2022: £8.2 millicn) based on 1% of total assets.

» Performance materiality; £7.5 million (2022: £7.8 rillion}
{group) and £6 2 million (2022: £6.2 million) {company).

« Specific group materiality: £1.3m (2022: £1.5m) for
certain financial statermnent line items that impact
adjusted profit before tax {APBT) - based on 5% of
APBT. APBT is equal to profit before tax adjusted for
the fair value movements in investment property and
fair value movements on interest rate derivatives.

The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality
and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those rnatters that, in the auditors’
professional judgement, were of most significance

in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)}
identified by the auditors, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit

of the financia!l statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

In additicn to going concern, described in the Material
uncertainty related to geing concern section above, we
determined the matters described below tc be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report. This is
not a complete list of all risks identified by cur audit.

Ability to continue as a going concern (Continuation
Resolution), which was a key audit matter last year is no
longer included because the Continuation Eesclution
vote was passed in September 2022. Otherwise, the key
audit matters below are consistent with last year.
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Key Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Property (Group)

Reter to the Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, note 3.1to the Consolidated
tinancial statements, Significant estimate — valuation of
investment property and note 15.0 to the Consolidated
financial statements, Investment property.

Investment properties are held at a fair value of £953.4 millicn
as at 31 March 2023 in the Consclidated Statement of
Financial Position. The valuation of the group's investment
property is the key component of the net asset value and
underpins the group's result for the year. The result of the
revaluation this year was a gain of £2.6 million, which is
accounted for within ‘Change in fair value of investment
properties’ in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The group’s investment property portfclio consists of
specialist social housing properties located in England and
Wales which are let to Approved Providers of sacial housing
on long-term leases,

Investment praoperty valuations were carried cut by a third
party valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle {JLL or the "Valuer). The
Valuer was engaged by the Directors and performed their
work 1n accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) RICS Valuation — Professional Standards and
the requirements of Internaticnal Accounting Standard 40
‘Investment Property’.

In determining the value of a property, the Valuer has

taken into account property-specific information including
the lease term and rental income payable. They applied
assumpuons o arrtve at the discount rate which is another
key input to the valuation, This has reference to net initial
vield and CPI growth rate which are influenced by prevailing
rmarket conditions and comparable transactions where
appropriate.

The valuation of the group’s investment proeperty portfolio
was denufied as a key audit matter given the valuation

is inherently subjective due to. among other factors, the
individual nature of each property, its location and the
expected future rental streams for that particular property.
The significance of the estimates and judgements involved,
coupled with the fact that gnly a small percentage difference
in individual property valuations, when aggregated, could
result in a material misstatement, warranted specific audit
focus in this area.

Given the inherent subjectivity involved in the valuation

of the property portfolic, and therefore the need for deep
market knowledge when determining the most appropriate
assumptions and the technicalities of valuaticn methodology,
we engaged our internal valuation experts (gqualified
chartered surveyors) to assist us in our audit of this area.

Assessing the Valuers’ Expertise and Objectivity

We read the Valuer's report and confirmed that the approach
used was consistent with the RICS guidelines. We assessed
the Valuer's qualifications and expertise and read their terms
of engagement with the group, determining that there were
no matters that atffected their independence and cbjectivity
or imposed scope limitaticns upon them. We also considered
fees and other contractual arrangements that might exist
between the group and the Valuer. We found no evidence to
suggest that the objectivity of the Valuer was compromised.

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

In our testing, which involved the use of cur internal real
estate valuation experts, we considered the assumptions
utilised by the Valuer within the valuation, including
understanding how these assumpticns were developed.
We also performed benchmarking where observable
market evidence was available. We challenged the Valuer
regarding the impact of the regulatory environment cn
investor sentiment and asset values. We attended meetings
with management and the Valuer. at which the valuation
methodoelogy and the key assumptions were discussed.
We challenged their approach 1o the valuations, and the
rationale behind the more significant valuation assumptlons
adopted. Where assumptions were outside the expected
range, we undertock further investigations. held further
discussions with the Valuer and obtained evidence 10
support explanations received. We also challenged the
Valuers as to the extent they have taken into account the
impact of climate change and related ESG considerations
within the valuations. The responses provided by the
Valuer and supporting evidence, enabled us to consider
the property specific factors that may have had an impact
on value, including recent comparable transactions
where appropriate. We conciuded that the assumptions
used by the Valuer were consistent with our expectations
and comparable henchmarking and market transacticn
information for the asset type.
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Data Used by the Valuer and Legal Title

We validated the data used by the Valuer and found that it
was consistent with the information we audited. This data
included inputs such as current rent, rent indexation (CPl cr
CPI+1%) and lease term, which we have agreed on a sample
basis to executed lease agreements as part of our audit
work. We verified legal ownership of properties through
independent title deed confirmations on a sample basis.

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuaticns

e . 5e
by the Valuers were supportable in light of the evidence ==
obtained and the disclosures within the Annual Report are =x
sufficient and appropriate. We have no issues to report in za
respect of this work. S a
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How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able 1o give an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate

The group's properties are spread across 159 statutory entities with the group financial statements being a
consolidation of these entities. The group's property pertiolio represents a coherent and diversified portfolio with
similar economic characteristics and, as a result, the whole portfolio of properties represents a single operating
segment or component, and we have scoped cur work accordingly. All work was carried cut by the group audit team
with additional procedures performed on the consolidation to ensure sufficient coverage and appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole.

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

In planning our audit, we made enguiries with management tc understand the extent of the potential impact

of climate change risk on the financia! statements. Our evaluation of this conclusion included challenging key
judgements and estimates in areas where we considered that there was greatest potential for climate change

impact. We particularly considered how climate change risks would impact the assumptions made in the valuation

of investment properties as explained in our key audit matter above. We also considered the consistency of the
disclosures in relation to climate change made within the Annual Report, and the knowledge obtained from our audit.
Using our knowledge cf the business, we evaluated management's risk assessment and resulting disclosures where
significant.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and
in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate cn the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement. we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements - company
Overall £10.0 mithon (2022: £16.4 million). £8.2 million {2022: £8.2 milion).
materiality
How we 1% of total assets 1% of total assets
determined it
Rationale for The key measure of the greup's performance isthe  The company's main activity is the holding of
benchmark valuation of investment properties and the balance  investments in subsiciaries. On this basis, we set
applied sheet as a whole. Given this, we set an overall an averall company materiality level based on
group materiality level based on total assets. total assets.

In addition to overall group materiality, a specific group materiality was alsc applied to certain financial statement
[ine items that impact Adjusted Profit Before Tax (APBT) which is based on profit before tax, adjusted to exclude
fair value movements on investment property and derivatives. We set a specific overall materiality level of £1.3
million (2022: £1.5 million), equating to 5% of APBT. In arriving at this judgement, we considered the fact that APBT is
a secondary financial indicator of the group which is disclosed as EPRA Earnings in the Annual Report {refer to the
Group Strategic Report where the term is defined in full).

We use perfermance materiality 1o reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds gverall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality
in determining the scope of our audit and the nature and extent of cur testing of account balances, classes of
transactions and disclosures, for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75%

(2622: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £7.5 million (2022: £7.8 million} for the group financial statements and
£6 2 million (2022: £6.2 million) for the company financial statements.
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In determining the performance materiality, we
considered a number of factors - the history of
misstaternents, risk assestémoent and aggregation risk
and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that
an amount at the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate

We agreed with the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee that we would report tc them misstatements
identified during our audit above £500,000 (for iterns
audited using overall materiality) and £64,100 (for items
audited using specific group materiality) (group audit)
(2022: £519,000 and £74.500) and £413,000 {company

audit} (2022: £411,000) as well as misstatements below
those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Reporting on Other Information

The other information comprises all of the information

in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Gur opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion aor,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
matenally inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify

an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement
of the financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we

have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this othey information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to repert based on
these responsibilities.

With respect to the Group Strategic Report and Report of

the Directors, we also considered whether the disclosures

required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been
included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit,
the Companies Act 2006 requires us also 1o report certain
upinions and martters as described below.

Group Strategic report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the
course of the audit, the information given in the Group
Strategic Report and Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2023 is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material
misstatements in the Group Strategic Report and Report
of the Directors.

Directors' Remuneration

In our cpinion. the part of the Directors Rernuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’
statermnents in relation to going concern, longer-term
viability and that part of the corperate governance
statement relating to the company's compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review. Cur additicnal responsibilities
with respect to the corperate governance statement as
other information are described in the Reporting on other
information section of this report.
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Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governarce statement is materially consistent
with the financial staternents and our knowledge obtained
during the audit, and, except for the matters reported

in the section headed ‘Material uncertainty related to
going concern, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation 1o

e The directors' confirmation that they have carried out
a robust assessment of the emerging and principal
risks:

e The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe
those principal risks, what procedures are in place to
identify emerging risks and an explanation of how
these are being managed or mitigated,

s The directors’ statement in the financial statements
about whether they considered it apprepriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing them, and their identification of any
material uncertainties to the group’s and company's
ability to continue to do so over a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements;

e The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of
the group's and company’s prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the pericd is appropriate;
and

s The directors’ statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the company will be able
to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the pericd of its assessment. including
any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary gualifications or assumptions

Qur review of the directors’ statement regarding the
longer-term viability of the group and company was
substantially less in scope than an audit and only
congsisted of making inquiries and considering the
directors’ process supporting their statement; checking
that the statement is in alignment with the relevant
provisions of the UK Corperate Governance Code;
and considering whether the statement is consistent
with the financial statements and our knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit

In addition, based on the work undertaken as part of
our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance statement is
materially consistent with the financial statements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit:

e The directors’ statement that they consider the
Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for the members to assess the group’s and
company's position, performance, business model and
strategy.

e The section of the Annual Report that describes the
review of effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems; and

e The section of the Annual Report describing the
work of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of cur responsibility
to report when the directors’ statement relating to the
company's compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose a departure from a relevant provisicn of the
Code specified under the Listing Rules for review by the
auditors.

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine
is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
respeonsible for assessing the group's and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless

the directors either intend to liguidate the group or the
company or 10 cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative butto do sc
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Our objectives gre 1o ohtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with [SAs (UKj will always detect a material misstaternent
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
errcr and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
preecedures in line with cur responsibilities, cutlined
above. 1o detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry.
we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and reguiations related to compliance with

the Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) status Part 12 of

the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the UK regulatory
principles, such as these governed by the Financial
Conduct Authority, and we considered the extent 1o

which non-compliance might have a material effect on
the financial statements. We also considered those laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, We evaluated
managements incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (inciuding the
risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure,
and management bias in accounting estimates and
judgmental areas of the financial statements such as the
valuation of investment properties. Audit procedures
perfcrmed by the engagement team included:

e Discussions with management, including
consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.
and review of the reports made by management;

& Understanding of management's internal controls
designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

e Assessment of matters, if any. reported to the Audit
and Management Engagement Comrmittee;

s Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including
those of the Board of Directors and the Audit and
Management Engagement Comimittee;

» Review of tax compliance with the involvemnent of our
tax specialists in the audit;

e Designing audit procedures 1o incorporate
unpredictability over the nature, timing and extent of
our testing of expenses;

e Procedures relating to the valuation of investment
properties described in the related key audit matter
above; and

e ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular
any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinaticns and words.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances cf non-compliance with laws and regulations
that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Alsc, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may invoelve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intenticnal misrepresentations, or
through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete
populaticns of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it
typically invelves selecting a limited number of itemns for
testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will
often seek to target particular items for testing based on
their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will
use audit sampling tc enable us to draw a conclusion
about the population from which the sample is selected.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
descripticn forms part of our auditcrs’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpese or to any ¢ther person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our pricr consent in writing.
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Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companties Act 2006 we are required to report
to you 1f, in our opinion:

e we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not heen kept by
the company. or returns adequate for our audit have
rnot been received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specilied by law are not made; or

¢ the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report (o be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns,

We have no excepions to repor: arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Foliowing the recommendation of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appointed by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the
financial staiements for the year ended 17 November 2016
and subsequent financial periods. The period of tota:
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4.1.14R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard {ESET RTS). This audilors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESEF RTS.

N

Saira Choudhry {(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the Forthe

years ended year ended

31 March 2623 31 March 2022
£'00 £00

. Note

Revenue

Ekental income 50 54,607 51,636
Less direct property expenses 50 (1,941) (9?8)
Net rental income 52,666 50658
Directors' remuneration 6.0 211 (206)
Investmen:t advisory fees 8.0 (6,217) (6.132)
General and administrative expenses 9.0 (_Séﬁ - (3‘90_9_)
Total expenses (11,821) (10,247)
Change in fair value of investment properties 15.0 2640 12269
Operating profit 43,485 52,680
Finance income 10.0 148 7
Finance expense 1.0 (15,335) (10.608)
Change m fair valgre of interQS} rate denvatves 21.0 (Z,BEQ 2675
Profit before tax 25,472 44,754

Taxation 12.0 - -
25472 44754

Profit g.lld total comprehensive income for the year

i-:-arnings per share — basic and diluted S 1350 4.19p 7.23p

All amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income above arise from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 84 t¢ 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

31March 2023 31March 2022
£'000

_ Note £°000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment property 13.0 953.364 545,237
Qther receivables 17.0 24,783 23519
Interest rate derivatives 21.0 8,129 2131

986276 970,887
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 17.0 11,260, 12,863
Cash and cash equivalents ) o 18.0 35,588 53,337
- B 46848 66202
Total assets ) ~1,033123] 1037.089
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19.0 (9.300) (9.492)

Non-current liabilities

Bank and loan borrowings 20.0 (361.915) (352,050}

Total liabilities - ) o 7 (72159 (361542 3
Totaljgt assets L . - o 661,909 675,547 . ;
Equity : g
Share capital 22.0 6,225 6.225 3
Share premium reserve 23.0 292,626 282,626 a
Capital reducticn reserve 240 317,714 322,365 E
Retained earnings 7 ) o _ 250 45344 5433 E
Total equity B 661,909 ] 675,547

Net assets per share — basic and diluted _ o S 26.0 109.16p 110.30p

These consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 110 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas Social Housing
PLC and authcrised for issue and signed on its behalf by:

Wi )

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
28 June 2023

Company No: 10402528

£202 SINNOIDV ONV 140414
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The notes on pages 84 1o 113 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Balance at 1 A|;l 2021
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Shares reissued from treasury
Shares bought back into treasury
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2022

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Shares reissued from treasury

Shares bought back into treasury

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2023

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share

Share premiumn

capnal 1858IVE

Nate £'000 £000

6225 292463
230 - 163
24.0 - -
Mo - -
6225 292,626

23.0 - -
240 - -
14.0 - -

The notes on pages 84 to 110 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

322,365

6.225 292626

Capital

reduchion
Teserve
€000
331140

484
{9,259)

(4,651)

E T

RE\al‘rned To!al
S ote “Toad
T 43670 673498
44754 44754
- 647
- {9.259)
(34.093) (34,093
54331 675547
25,472 25,472
- {4.651)
(34459)  (34.459)
45344 661,909




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the

For the year ended
S a0 Restated
Nate £000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities o T T o
Profit for the year befcre taxation 25,472 44,754
— Change in fair value of investment properties (2,640) (12,269)
- Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives 2,826 (2,675)
— Rent and incentive straight line adjustments 436 397
— Bad debt expense/{credit) 50 429 17
Finance income {148) (7)
Finance expense 15,335 10.608
Increase in lease incentive receivable (1,700) {2.011)
Decreaseflincrease} in trade and cther receivables 1,044 (236)
(Decrease)/increase in tracte and cther payables (1,725) 551
Cash geneﬁfé'ci Hﬁ'operatién;ﬁ B o - T 39,329 _39‘095
Interest received 148 7
Net cash flow generated from _opefatihg activities o 39,477 39102

Investing activities

Improvements and purchases of investment properties (4.679) (27,695)
Acquisition costs 211) (1.640)
Purchase of subsidiary - including property - 13,559
Sale proceeds on sale of subsidiary_'_f excluding property 7 - 2695

Net cash flow used in investing activities

(4.890)  (40199)

Financing activities

2
2
2
g
;
d

Cost of shares bought into treasury 24.0 {4,651) {9.259)
Proceeds from shares reissued from treasury 24.0 - 919
Dividends paid 10 eguity shareholders (34,576) (33,928)
Interest rate derivative premium paid 210 (8.841) -
Proceeds from the disposal of interest rate derivatives 210 17 -
Bank borrowings advanced 20.0 70,875 -
Bank borrowings repaid 200 {60,000) -
Bank borrowing issue costs paid {(3.148) (1,803}

Interest and security fees paid on bank borrowings and derivatives {12.012) (8,590}

(52336)  (52663)

Net cash flow used in ﬁnancing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17,749) (53.760)
Qash and cash equivalents at the start of the year ) . 180 53,337 107,(_]_5_3?
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18.0 35,588 53,337

* Cash and cash equivalents and monies held in restricted accounts and deposits have been restated as at 31 March 2022 following clarification by IFRIC on
classification of funds with externally imposed restrictions, Pleaze refer to details in note 2.4.

£20Z SLNACIIV ONV LHO43Y
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The notes on pages 84 to 110 are an integral part of these conselidated financial staternents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1.0 Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (the "Company”) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 as a public
company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company niumber 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC, which was
subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 October 2016,

The address of the registered office is 6th Floor, 65 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7NQ. The Company is registered as an
investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 in England and Wales and is domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange ("LSE").

The Company's Ordinary shares are admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authorty (‘FCA7) and traded on
the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidianes (the “Group”) is to provide shareholders with an attractive level of
income, together with the potential for capital growth from mvesting in a portfolo of sacial homes.

2. Basig ol preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards and with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable tc companies reporting under those standards.

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified for the Group's
investment properties and derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or ioss.

2.4 Punchonal and prasentation SurrHaney
The financial information is presented in Pounds Sterling which is also the functional currency of the Group. and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000s), except where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Going cancern
The Group benefits from a secure incormne stream from long leases with the Approved Providers. The Group's cash balances as
at 31 March 2023 were £35,588,000. of which £2.949.000 was held as restricted cash. Details of this can be found in note 18.0.

The Company and its Investment Adviser, Civitas Investment Management Limited ("“CIM") continue to werk closely with the
Company's major counterparties 1o monitor the position on the ground and. should it be needed, to cffer assistance and
guidance where possible. The Board of Directers believes that the Company operates a robust and defensive business model
and that social housing and specialist healthcare are proving to be some of the more resilient sectors within the market, given
that they are based on non-discretionary public sector expenditure and that demand exceeds supply.

On 17 November 2022, an extension was granted for the facility with HSBC Bank plc, which now expires cn 28 November 2025.

On 13 February 2023, the Company closed a new five year term debt facility of £70,875,000 with Deutsche Bank AG. The facility
has been deployed ¢ redeem the Company's revolving credit facility with Lloyds Bank plc of £60,000,000 as well as providing
additional liquidity. As a result, now all debt facilities have fixed or capped rates.

On 1 December 2022, the Company signed a facility with an institutional lender. Subsequent to this, on 21 June 20253, the
Company recetved credit approved terms for an additional £61.0 million fixed facility based on a 3-year SONIA rate at the
date of draw down +195bps margin with a marturity date of 3 August 2026. The evental drawdcwn on the facility is subject to
certain standard closing conditions.

Cash flow forecasts based on severe but plausible downside scenarios have been run, in particular the financial performance
of tenants and a reduction 1in contracted rent. As at 31 March 2023, the rent would have 1¢ drop by apprcximately 10% befcre
any of 1ts loan covenants are breached. At the date cf approval of this report. the Company has sufficient headroom within its
financial loan covenants. The Company alsc benefits from a secure income stream frem leases with lang weighted average
unexpired term leases. As a result, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its financing and other
business risks and that the Group will remain viable, continuing tc operate and meet its habilities as they fall due.

The Company's arucles of association include a requirement for the Board to propose an crdinary resclution at the annual
general meeting following the fifth anniversary from the initial public offering of the Company for the Company to continue
n 1ts current form {the Centinuation Resolution). This vole was passed in September 2022 so the Company will ccntinue its
business as presently constituted and will propose the same resolution at the AGM in September 2027 ana every fifth annual
general meeting thereafter.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

On 9 May 2023, an announcement was made to the market for an all-cash offer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (CSH) from
Wellness Unity Limited, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Assets Holdings Limited (CKA). The offer became
unconditicnal on 23 June 2023. The Group's existing committed debt facilities contain a standard change of control clause
which has now been triggered due to the offer becoming unconditional. This could result in the existing committed

debt facilities being withdrawn. Furthermore, the Directors do not have visibility of the post completion funding for the

Group and Company at this time. The Directors note the detailed intentions statement included within the announcement

on 9 May 2023 which states that CKA does not envisage making any changes to the management team nor any disruption

to any counterparties or te the underlying tenants. However, the conditions outlined above indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt upen the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, The Independent
Auditors' Report included within the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 also highlights this material
uncertainty. Therefore, notwithstanding the material uncertainty arising from the offer frorn CKA, the Directors are satisfied that
the going concern basis remains appropriate for the preparation of the financial statements. The financial staternents do not
include the adjustments that would result if the Group and the Company were unable (o continue as a going concern.

2.3 New standards, amendments and interpretations
The following new standards are now effective and have heen adopted for the year ended 31 March 2023.

» [IFRIC Agenda Item: Following clarification by IFRIC on the classification of monies held in restricted accounts, monies
that are restricted by use only are classified at 31 March 2023 as "Cash and cash equivalents” As detailed in note 24, the
comparative balances have been restated where applicable to reflect this change in classification.

o IFRIC Agenda Item: In October 2022, the IFRIC 1ssued an agenda decisicn in respect of ‘Lessor forgiveness of lease
payments (IFRS 9 and IFRS 16) {'the IFRIC Decision on Concessions'’). This concluded that losses incurred on granting
retrospective rent concessions should be charged to the income statement on the date that the legal rights to income are
conceded (ie immediate recognition in full rather than smoothed over the hife of the lease). The clarification has nothad a
material impact on the financial statements.

» Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2022) - gives
clarification on the recognition of contingent liabilities at acquisition and clarifies that contingent assets should not be
recognised at the acquisition date. The amendments have not had a significant impact on the preparation of the financial
statements.

s Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022) — gives clarification on costs 1o include 1n estimating the cost of fulfilling a contract for the purpose of
assessing whether that contract is onercus. The amendments have not had a significant impact on the preparation of the
financial statements.

« Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effecuve for periods beginning on cr after 1 January 2022) - gives
clarification on the fees an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or medified financial liability are
substantally different from the terms of the criginal liability The amendments have not had a significant impact on the
preparation of the iinancial statements.

&
;
i
Bl
|

2.4 Restatement

IWRIC Agends Decision - RBecogrunian of restricied cash as Cash and caxh equivalen's
In March 2022, the IFRS Interpretaticns Committee ('IFRIC") finalised a decision on the classification of monies held in restricted
accounts, such that monies that are restricted by use only. are classified at 3t March 2023 as "Cash and cash equivalents”.

The Group holds restricted cash for tenant deposits and retention monies in relation to deferred payments subject o
achievement of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund repair, maintenance and improvement works
to bring the properties up to satsfactory standards for the Group and the tenants.

As a result of the IFRIC decision. the Group has revisited its policy and includes these monies within the classification "cash
and cash equivalents”. The adjustment has no impact on the classification of the net assets of the Group on the Statement
of Financial Position, however the movements on these balances are now reported in the Statement of Cashflows and
comparative figures have been restated.

Comparative figures for “cash and cash equivalents” have increased by £4,362.000 (31 March 2021: £3278.000). This has
resulted in an increase to the comparative figure for cash generated from operations by £1613.000 concerning movements
on depacsit balances and an increase to the net cash flow used in investing acuvities of £529.000 concerning movements on
retenuon monies.

The Group has not presented revised balance sheets as at 1 April 2021 within the financial statements, in accordance with 1AS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements and [AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The following table shows the impact of these adjustiments in the prier year:

31 March 2022

31Masch 2022 Restatement Restated
e £000 £'000 £_U£
Groub?ﬁash ﬂovnftateﬁx:ti(éxtract)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 37489 1,613 39,102
Net cash flow used in investing activities 7 (39@?@ (529) (40199}
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 103,819 2278 107,097
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48975 4362 53,337
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (54,844) 1.084 (5@

2.5 New standards, amendments and interpretauons effective tor future accounting periods
The fcllowing are new standards, interpretations and amendments, which are naot yet effective and have not been early
adopted 1n this financial information, that will or may have an effect on the Group’s future financial statements:

e Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' (effective for penods beginning on or after 1 January 2023) - clarify how compames
account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decomimissioning obligations. The amendments are not
expected to have a significant impact on the preparation of the financial statements.

s Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effecuve for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023) - are intended to help entities 1n deciding which accounting policies to disclose in their financial statements. The
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the preparation of the financial statements

s Amendments to LAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023} — introduce the definiticn of an accounting esiimate and include other amendments
1o help entities distinguish changes 1n accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies The amendments are
not expected to have a significant impact on the preparation of the financial statements.

« Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ {(effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024)
— clanty that Labulities are classified as either current or nen-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the
reporting pericd and not expectations of or actual events after the reporting date. The amendments alse give clarification
to the definition of settlement of a liability. The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the
preparation of the financial statermnents.

2.6 Segmental infoarmation

IERS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basts of internal {inancial reports about
compeonents of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, which in the Group's case is
delegated to the Investiment Adviser who has formed an Executive Team, in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess their performance.

The internal financial reports received by the Investment Adviser's Executive Teamn contain financial information at a Group
level as a whole and there are no reconciling items between the results contained in these reports and the amounts reported
n the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors consider the Group's property portfalio represents a coherent and diversifieg portfolio with similar economic
characteristics and, as a result, the whole portfolio of properties represents a single operating segment. [n the view of the
Directors there is accordingly cne reportable segment under the provisions of IFRS 8

All of the Group's properties are based in the UK. Geographical informaticn is provided to ensure ccmpliance with the
diversification requirements of the Company. other than this no geographical grouping is contained in any cf the internal
financial reports provided to the Investument Adviser's Executive Team and. therefore, no geographical segmental analysis is
required by IFRS 8.

The Directors note the requirements in IFRS 8 Paragraph 34 pertaining 1o entities under common control and confirm that

both Auckland Home Solutions and Qualitas Housing (as lessees of the Company's investment real estate) are under commaon
control of The Sccial Housing Family CIC ("TSHF). The percentage and sum total of the Company's annual contracted rent roll
pertaining to these counterparues as if they were considered ¢ be a "single custcmer” can be icund in note 28.0 and on page 9
cf the Annual Report.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

30 Significant accounting jadgements. estimatas and assumptions

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described 1n note 4.0, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year are outlined belaw:

3.1 Significant estimate - valuation of invesunent property

The Group uses the valuation carried out by its independent valuer as the fair value of its property portfolio. The valuation is
based upon assumptions including future rental income and the appropriate discount rate. The valuers alsc make reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. Further information is provided in note 15.0.

The Group's properties have been independently valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited ("JLL" or the "Valuer™) in accordance
with the current Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Global Standards, incorporating the IVS, and the RICS
Valuation - Glabal Standards 2017 UK national supplement {the RICS "Red Bock). JLL is a well recognised prefessional firm
within social housing valuauon and has sufficient current local and national knowledge of both social housing generally and
Specialist Supported Housing (*SSH" and has the skills and understanding 1o undertake the valuaticns competently.

With respect to the Group's consolidated financial statements, investment properties are valued at their fair value at each
balance sheet date 1n accordance with IFRS 13, Fair value measurements should be presented and classified using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in the measurements, according to the following levels:

Levell Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in actve {typically quoted) markets.

Level 2 Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either dlrectly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable lnputs) Value 18 the
Directors’ best estimate, based on advice from relevant knowledgeable experts, use of recognised valuation
techniques and a determination of which assumptions should be applied in valuing such assets and with
particular focus on the specific auributes of the investrents themselves.

Glven the bespake nature of each of the Group's investments, the particular requirements of due diligence and financial
contribution obtained frorm the vendors together with the recent emergence cf SSH, all of the Group's investment properties
are included in Level 3.

;
3
-
d

3.2 Significan: estimate  valuation of interest rate derivatives

The fair value of Group’s interest rate derivatives 1s recorded in the Group Statement of Financial Position and is determined
by the respective counterparties. The counterparties use a number of assumpticns in determining the fair values, including
estimations over future interest rates and future cash flows using cbservable yield curves.

3% Significant iudgement - business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own investment properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether each
acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acguisition of an asset. Management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition
to the property. Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisiton of a business, they are not treated as business
combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corperate entity 1s allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
entity based upon their relative fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

There were no corporate acquisitions made in the year.

During the previous year. the Group entered into a transacuon to acquire the freehold properties cperated by CPI Care Limited.
Upon the acquisition of the company; the properties were transterred into other group companies and the company acquired,
along with its assucialed operations, was sold to Envive Corundum Bidceo Limited. Further details are shown in note 16.0 to the
financial statements.

The acquired companies met the definition of a business under [FRS 3, and the transaction was therefore recorded as a
business combination.

Because the Group acquired the company with the intent tq sell the business, management applied the short-cut method
under IFRS 3 — Subsidianes acquired with a view to resale. Under this method, the subsidiary is recorded at fair value less costs
to seli, and there is no requirement to fair value the subsidiary’s individual assets and liabilities.
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3.4 Significant judgement - operating lease contracls - the Group as lessor

The Group has acquired investment properties that are subject 1o commercial property leases with Approved Providers. The
Group has determined. based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangernents, particularly the duration
of the lease terms and minimum lease payments, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and so accounts for the leases as operaung leases,

34 Signapreani jadgemem - KEIT Swams

Clvitas Social Housing PLC 1s a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT). The UK REIT regime applies when entities meet certain
conditions with the effect that the income profits and capital gains of the gualifying property rental business are exempt from
tax. Within these conditions at least 90% of the Group's property income must be distributed as dividends to shareholders and
the Group must ensure that the property rental business represents more than 75% of total profits and assets.

Following the completion of the offer, there is a level of uncertainty that the Group will remain in the REIT regime.

4.4 Sommary of significant accounting polivies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented. unless otherwise stated.

4.} Basiz af consoiidation
The consalidated financial statements comprise the financial informaticn of the Group as at the year end date.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed o,

or has rights to, variable returns from 1ts involvernent with the entity and has the ability 10 affect those returns through its
power to direct the acuvities of the entity. All intra-group transacticns, balances, Income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The financial information of the subsidiaries is included in the consclidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases

If an equity interest 1n a subsidiary is transferred but a controlling interest continues to be held after the uanster then the
change in ownership interest 15 accountied for as an equity transaction.

Accounting policies of the subsidianes are consistent with the policies adopted by the Company

4.2 Investment property

Investment property. which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciaticn, is iniually measured at cost. being
the fair value of the consideration given, including expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment
property. After initial recogniion, investment property is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses
arising from changes i1n the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure 1s capitalised cnly when it is probable that future econcmic beneflts are associated with the expenditure.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Overheads and operating expenses are not capitalised.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the dispesal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
tcalculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is incurred in profit or
loss in the period 1n which the property 1s derecognised.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions made for the valuation of investment properues are discussed
1 note 3.1

4.3 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

The Company has determined that it retains all the sigruficant nisks and rewards of cwnership of the preperues and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases as discussed in note 34,

Propernies leased out under operaling leases are included in investment property in the Consclidated Statement of Financial
Positon. Rental income from operating leases is recognised cn a straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

Lease incentive costs are recognised as an asset and amortised over the life of the lease.
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4.4 rinancial Assers

Clhassiheabion

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

s« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (gither through other comprehensive income or through profit or less); and
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the ennty's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

Trade and arhar recaivalides
Trade and other recelvables are amcunts due in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in cne year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non—-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment pravision. The Group holds the trade receivables with the cbjective to ccllect the contractual
cash flows.

MBI
The Group's financial assets are subjact to the expected credit loss model.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
10 be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables

The expected 1055 rates are hased on the payment profiles of lease income over a period of up to 12 months betare 31 March
2023 or 1 April 2022, respectively, and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The histonical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect curtent and forward-looking information on macroeconamic factors atfecting the liability

of the tenants to settle the receivable Such forward-looking informauocn would include: changes in economic, regulatary,
technological and environmental factors (such as industry outlook, GDP, employment and politics); external market indicators:
and tenant base.

Based on the assessment and the specific work that is underway around collection of aged arrears, a provision of
£459,000 (2022: £239.000) has been reflected in the annuai results

Trade receivahles are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include. among others, the probability of insclvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

iZash and cash equlvalents
Cash and cash equivalents include Cash in hand, cash held by lawyers and liquidity funds with a term of no more than three

months that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Restricted cash represents amounts held for specific commitments, tenant deposits and retention money held by lawyers in
relation to deferred payments subject 1o achievement of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund

repair. maintenance and improvement works tc bring the properties up 1o satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants.

Derwvaiive mancial mstrumenis

Derivative financial instruments, which comprise interest rate caps and swaps for hedging purposes. are initially recognised
at fair value at acquisition and are subsequently measured at fair value, being the estimated amount that the Group would
receive or pay to sell or transfer the agreement at the period end date, taking intc account current interest rate expectaluons
and the current credit rating of the lender and its counterparties. The instrument may be an asset or a liability. The gain or loss
at each fair value remeasurement date is recognised in the Group's Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivative financial instruments are derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the agreement have expired
or have been transferred, and the Group has transferred substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership. The difference
between the carrying amount and consideration received is recognised as a gain or loss in the Group's Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 1s available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Other than derivative financial instruments which are not designated as hedging instrurments, the Group does not have any
assets held for trading nor does it voluntarily classify any financial assets as being at fair value through profit or loss.

a
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4.5 Financial lHabiljvies
The Group recognises a financial liability when 1t first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligations in the contract.

All financial liabilities are initally recogrused at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at fair value
through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, unless the Group opted to measure a liability at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligauon under the hability is discharged. cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payvabies

Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment 1s due within one year or less. If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost until settled. The fair value of a non-interest bearing hiability is its discounted repayment amcunt. If the due
date of the liability is less than one year. discounting is cmitted.

Hank and ather Borrowrigs

All bank and other borrowings are initally recognised at fair value less direcily attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, all bank and other borrowings are measured at amertised cost, using the effective interest method. Any
atiributable transaction costs relating to the issue of the bank borrowings are amortised through the Group's Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the life of the debt instrument on a straight-line basis.

Borrowings are remaved from the conselidated statement of financial position when the obligauon specified 1n the centract
18 discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised 1n profit or loss as a finance cost.

4.6 Provisiolis

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or construcuve) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obhigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best esumate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date. taking 1nto account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the obligauon

47 Taxaghan

Taxation on the profit or loss for the period not exempt under UK REIT regulatons is comprised of current and deterred tax. Tax
15 recognised in the Consoclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income except 1o the extent that it relates t¢ items recognised
as a direct movemernt in equity. in which case it is recognised as a direct movement in eguity. Current tax s expected tax
pavable on any non-REIT taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. and any adjustment 1o tax payable in respect of previous periods.

The current tax charge is calculated on profits arising in the period and 1n accordance with legislation which has been
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax that is provided 1s based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substanuvely enacted at the balance sheet date.

4.8 Capital management
The Group's cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going ccncern 1n order 1o
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an opumal capital structure to reduce the cost ¢f capital.

Capital assels comprise the following:

31 March 2623 31 March 2022
£000

£000
Proceeds from the 1ssue of Ordinary shares and retained earnings 661,909 675.547
Bank and loan porrowings o ) 361915 352050
Total L023.824 10273597




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Directors may use gearing to enhance equity returns. The level of borrowing will be on a prudent basis for the asset class
and will seek to achieve a low cost of funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying security requirements and the
structure of the Group.

The Group may, following a decision of the Board. raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the aggregate
borrowings of the Group will always be subject to an absolute maximum, calculated at the time of drawdown, of below 40% of
the Gross Asset Value on a fully invested basis.

4.9 Dividends payable to shareholders
Dividends are included in the financial statements in the year in which they are paid.

4.10 Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of ongoing leases and 1s shown
gross of any UK income tax. Lease incentives are spread evenly over the lease term. Losses incurred on granting retrospective
rent concessions are charged to the income statement on the date that the legal rights to income are conceded (le. immediate
recognition in full rather than smocthed over the life of the lease).

Insurance recharges and other similar receipts are recognised under IFRS 15 Revenue from coniracts with customers’, and are
inciuded 1n net rental and property income gross of the related costs as the Directors consider the Group acts as principal in
this respect.

411 Finanoe income
Finance income is recognised as interest, and is accrued on cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Group

.12 Finante co5ts

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with hank and other borrowings. Bank
interest and bank charges are recogrused on an accruals basis. Borrowing transaction costs are amortised using the effectve
interest rate.

4.13 Fypenses
All expenses, including Investrnent Advisory fees, are recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income cn
an accruals basis.

4.14 Share izssue costs
The costs of issuing or reacquiring equity instrumernts (cther than in a business combination) are accounted for as a deduction
from equity.

4.1% Exvephipnal items
Exceptional items relate to amounts which do not normally occur in the normal course of business.

Exceptional professional costs for two major projects have been disclosed separately. These relate to costs associated with the
offer for the purchase of the entire share capital of the Company by a subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited (CKA) and costs
agsociated with a planned bond issue which was postponed.

4.16 Share held in treasury

The costs, inciuding directly attributable transactions costs. of purchasing the Company’s own shares to be held in treasury
are deducted from equity and the costs are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Consideration
received, net of transaction costs, for the resale of these shares is also included n equity. Whilst the Company holds shares in
treasury, the calculations for net asset value and earnings per share are adjusted to exclude these shares.

%
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5 ¢ Rentalincoms

Rental income from inves(rﬁem proinenif
Rent straight ine adjustments

Lease incentive amortisation
Rechargeable costs received

Rental income

Less direct property expenses
Insurance and service charge costs
Bad debt

Direct property expenses
Net rental income

Rechargeable costs received represent insurance and service charge costs paid by the Group and recharged w0 the

Approved Providers and are accounted for under I[FRS 15 ‘Revenue fram contracts with customers’

For the Fcr the

St s iraen S0s

£'000 £'000

53,531 51,038

586 529

(1,022) (926)

1,512 995

T 54,607 51636

(1,512} (995)

{429) 17

B (1,941) (978)
o | 52666 50658

As per the lease agreements with the Group and Approved Providers, the Approved Providers are responsible for the
settlement of all present and future rates, taxes and other impositions payable in respect of the property. As a result, no further

direct property expenses were incurred.

A0 Inreciors remanersnion

Directors' fees

Employer's Naticnal Insurance Contributions
Total

For the

For the
year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000
194 180
17 16
21 206

The Directors are remunerated for their services in accordance with the Remuneration Policy which sets parameters within

which Directors’ remuneration may be set. The Remuneration Policy is approved by shareholders.

Disclosures required by the Companies Act 2006 on Directors remuneration, including salaries, share opticns. pension
contributions and pension enttlement and those specified by the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authcrity are included

on pages 64 to 67 in the Remuneration Report and form part of these Financial Statements.

JG Parniculars ot empliosyeasy
The Group had no employees during the year (2022: nil) other than the Directors
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8.0 investment advisory feey

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- o - o o £000 £'0
Advisory lee 6,206 6.132
Disbursements 1 -
Totalr o 76.217 6132

Civitas Investment Management Limited ("CIM") is the appointed Investment Adviser of the Company. Under the current
Investment Management Agreement, the Advisory Fee shall be an amount calculated in respect of each quarter, 1n each

case based upon the Net Asset Value most recently announced to the market at the relevant time (as adjusted for issues or
repurchases of shares in the pericd between the date of such announcement and the date of the relevant calculation), on the
following basis:

a) on that part of the Net Asset Value up to and including £250.000.000, an amount equal to 1% of such parn of the Net Asset Value;

b} on that part of the Net Asset Value over £250,000,000 and up to and including £500.000.000. an amount equal to 0.9% of such
part of the Net Asset Value;

) on that part of the Net Asset Value over £500,000.000 and up 1o and including £1,000,000,000, an amount equal to 0.8% of
such part of the Net Asset Value;

d) on that part of the Net Asset Value gver £1,000,000,000, an amcount equal to 0.7% of such part of the Net Asset Value.

The appointment of the Investment Adviser shall continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the
other net less than 12 months’ written notice, such notuce not to explire earlier than 30 May 2025.

90 Generaiand administrative expenses

Farthe Fot the

year ended year ended
31March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 ‘000

or
E..
a
:
;

Legal and professional fees - ' 7 - ' 1,250 1.459
Exceptional professional costs 1,816 -
Administration fees 1,044 1037
Consultancy fees 143 136
Audit fees 441 340
Abortive costs 48 156
Valuation fees 96 100
Depositary fees 71 71
Grants and donations 65 26
Insurance 97 84
Marketing 225 343
Regulatory fees 21 25
Sundry expenses 76 92
Total - ) - T o 5.39;_ 3909

Abortive costs represent legal and professional fees incurred in relation to the acquisition of investment properties and
proposed share issues that were considered but subsequently aborted.

General and administrative expenses for the current year contain exceptional professional costs of £1816.000 (2022; £Nil) These
costs pertain to two strategic projects the Company has been evaluating and comprise of £1.294.000 {2022: £nil) associated with
the cifer for the purchase of the entire share capital of the Company by a subsidiary of CK Asset Holdings Limited (CKA} and
£522,000 (2022: £Nil) associated with a planned bond issue which was postponed.
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sarvices provided by 1ne Group's auditors and their associates
The Group has obtained the following services from the Group's auditors and their associates:

Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
Audit of the Group's financial statements!

Total fees payable for audit services

Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for other services:
Audit related services — review of the half year financial statements

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£'0o0

Cther serwjf:eﬁi
Total fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates

1 Inciudes £64,000 (2022 £18,000) cost in relation to the previous year audit
2 This amount was recognised within exceptional legal and professional costs in the year ended 31 March 2022

1.0 Finance income

interest and dividends received on liquidity funds
Bank interest received

For the
vear ended
31 March 2023

148

Total

LG Finande gapenss

Bank charges
Interest paid and payable cn bank borrowings and derivauves
Amortisation of loan issue costs
Cests of early repayment of debt
Loan security lees

Total

For the

year ended
31March 2023
£004Q

8

12,151
1,869

1271

36

15335

£000

Far the

year ended

31 March 2022
£000

2%
296

44
62
402

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
£000

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
_E000
[+
8.907
1653

_f?Z
10608

During the year the Lloyds Bank plc £60.000.000 revolving credit facility was repaid. Costs of early repayment of debt include

break costs and the write off of the remaining unamortised loan issue costs.

120 Tazxauoen

As a UK REIT. the Group is exempt from corpcration tax on the prefits and gains from its property investment business,
provided it meets certain conditicns as set out in the UK REIT regulations. For the current year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
did net have any non-qualifying profits and accordingly there is no tax charge n the year. If there were any non-qualifying

profits and gains. these would be subject 10 corporaticn tax.

Deferred tax has not been recognised on temporary differences relating ¢ the property rental business. No deferred tax asset
has been recegnised in respect of the unuulised residual current year losses as 1t 1s not anticipated that sufficient residual
profits will be generated in the future. In the event that Civitas property portfolic was tc be scold at valuation. any gaing
realised on such disposals may be subject to taxation in the UK Generally, disposals by a REIT of assets held for the purpose

of a property rental business shculd be exempt from UK corporation tax. The Directors do not believe that any properties
within the Civitas property portfclic meet the condiuons for assets held as part of the property rental business being subject to
corporation tax on disposal. Accordingly, if the Civitas property portfolio was 1o be sold at valuation, the Directors estimate that

no corporation tax liability would arise on that sale.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Following the completion of the offer, there is a level of uncertainty that the Group will remain in the REIT regime.

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£00 £'000

Corporaticon tax charge for the year - ' -
Total - -

The tax charge for the year is less than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. The differences are explained below.

Farthe For the

year ended year ended
) . 31 Marchclzuugg 31 Marchgg(’uzz
Group
Profit before taxation ~ 25,472 44,754
UK corporation tax rate 19% 19%
Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 4,840 8.503
Effects of:
Change in value of exernpt investment properties (502) (2.331)
Exempt REIT income (6,019} (6,598)
Amounts not deductible for tax purposes 1,081 (230)
Unutilised residual current year tax losses 600 656

Total T o o - -

A deferred tax asset of £2.877,000 {2022: £1,268.000). calculated using the forthcoming tax rate of 25%, has not been recognised in
respect of the unutilised residual current year losses as it is not anticipated that sufficient resicual profits will be generated in
the future.

The standard rate of corporation tax is currently 19%. The standard rate of corporation tax increased to 25% with effect from
1 April 2023.

REIT exempt incame includes property rental income that is exempt from UK Corporation Tax in accordance with Part 12 of
Corperation Tax Act 2010,

13.0 Earnings per shate
Earnings per share ("EPS™ amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to Ordinary equity holders of the
Company by the welghted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the [cllowing:

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2023 31 March 2022

B e £'000 £000
Calculation of earnings per share

Net profit attributable to Qrdinary shareholders (£'000) 25472 44 754

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares (excluding shares held in treasury) 608,552,681 615797942

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 419p 7.23p

:
3
5
4
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14.0 Dyvidends

Dividend of 1.3875p for the 3 months to 31 March 2022
(13500p 3 months to 31 March 2021)

Dividend of 1.4250p for the 2 months to 30 June 2022
(13875p 3 months to 30 June 2021)

Dividend of 1.4250p for the 3 months to 30 September 2022
(13875p 3 months to 30 September 2021)

Dividend of 1.4250p for the 3 months to 31 December 2022
(1.3875p 3 months to 31 December 2021)

Total

For the

For the
yeal ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
—— o £'00 £opo
8.474 8403
8,703 8637
8,641 8,555
8,641 6498
(34459 34093

Cn 9 May 2023, the Company announced a dividend of 1425 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January 2023 to 31 March
2027% totalling £8.641,000. The dividend payment was made on 9 June 2023 to shareholders on the register as at 13 May 2023. The
financial statements do not reflect this dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT property income distribution ("PID").

1.0 Investmanrt maoperoy

iBaiance at beginning of year

Property acquisiions

Improvements to investment properties

Lease incentives and rent straight line adjusuments recognised
Change in fair value

Value advised by the property valuers

Less lease incentive assets and rent straight line assets
Total o o T

For the

year ended
31 March 2023
£'000

Far the

year ended

31 March 2022
£00

968756 915589
543 33466
4944 5,818
1,264 1614
2,640 12,269
978147 968756
(24.783)  (23519)
953364 945237

Improvements tog Investment properties includes capital expenditure incurred of £128,006 (2022: £12.000) in respect of climate

change initiatives.

Durnng the previcus year, the Group acquired a property holding company from Herleva Properties Limited which held
assets totalling £8.611.000. These are included within Property Acquisitions in the note above. Herleva Properties Limited is
a subsidiary of Specialist Healthcare Operations Limited ("SHO"). Andrew Dawber and Tom Pridmore (both directors of the
Investment Adviser) are 14.99% shareholders in SHO. They are not directors of SHO, and have no operational role in that
business. SHO does not meet the definition of a related party under IAS 24

Vaiuaticn

In accordance with “1AS 4C: Investment Property”, the investment property has been independently valued at fair value by JLL,
an accrecited external valuer with recognised and relevant professional qualitications and recent expenence of the lccation
and category of the investment property being valued, however, the valuations are the ultimate responsibility of the Directors

JLL valued the Civitas Social Housing PLC property portfolio on the basis of each individual property and the theoreucal sale of
the properties without the benefit of any corporate wrapper at £978147.000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022: £968,756,000).

JLL has previded valuation services to the Company with regards to the properties during the year. JLL has provided additional
valuation services on the acquisition of investment property by the Company dunng the year. The Directors have ensured

that JLL has appropriate procedures in place to ensure there are no independence conflicts with the services provided to the
Company. In relation Lo the year ended 31 March 2023, the proportion of the total fees payable by the Company to JLLs total fee
income was less than 5% and 1s therefore minumal Additionaily JLL has a rotation policy in place whereby the signatories on

the valuations rotate after seven years.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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With the exception of the acquisition detailed in note 16.0. all corperate acquisitions during the year and the comparative year
have been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations because following review of the IFRS 3 concentration
test, they are considered to be acquisitions of properties rather than businesses (note 3.3).

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy for investment preperty:

Quoted prices in Signiticant Significant

active markets observable unobservable
Tatal {Levell) inputs(Level2) inputs(Level3)
. o o o £000 £'000 £'000 __ EQpD
Investment properties measured at fair value:
31 March 2023 953,364 - - 953,364
31 March 2022 945237 - - 945,237

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during any of the years, nor have there been any transiers between
Level 2 and Level 3 during any of the years.

The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards {incorporating the
Internatuocnal Valuation Standards) by JLL, one of the ieading professional firms engaged in the social housing sector,

As noted previcusly all of the Group's investmenlts are reported as Level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13 where inputs are not
based on observable market data and the value is based upon advice from relevant kncwledgeable experts.

In this instance, the determination of the fair value of investment property requires an examination of the specitic merits of
each property that are in turn considered pertinent 1o the valuation.

These include:

i) the regulated social housing sector and derand for the facilities offered by each 5SH property owned by the Group:

ii) the parucular structure of the Group's transactions where vendors, at their own expense, meet the majority of the
refurbishment costs of each property and certain purchase costs;

iii) detailed financial analysis with discount rates supporting the carrying value of each property;
iv) a full repairing and insunng lease with annual indexation based on CPI or CPI+1%.

The following descriptions and definitions relating to valuation technigues and key unobservable inputs made in determining
fair values are as follows:

Valuation jechnigues: incoms: aporoach
Fair value 15 defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

The valuation methodology used by the valuers follows the income approach. This approach considers the rental income
currently payable; the next uplift due on that Income on review; the likelihood ef a continuation of that rental incorne - with
growth in accordance with the leases — over the remaining terms; and then a long-term reversion which considers the likely
ability of the properties 1o continue 10 generate rent through supported housing occupation, as distinct from a reversion to
vacant possession value

Risks are involved in both assessing the value of the indexed rental income over the remaining terms of the leases and 1n also
predicting that income will continue beyond the end of the existing leases. This 1s a balanced judgment, which can properly
be reflected in the exit yield applied to the final year's income and in the overall return to a purchaser.

Appropriate taxation calculations are adopted for every property based on its value and on the assumpticn of the sale of
the property assets directly as opposed to shares of a subsidiary company helding the property and have considered the
individual characternstics of the properties.

There are two main unobservable inputs that determine the fair value of the Groups invesunent property:

i) The rate of 2% per annum has been used for CPl over the term of the subject properties’ leases in line with the Bank of
England's long-term inflation targets for CPI It should be noted that all leases benefit fram either CPl or CPI+1 indexation.

ii) The discount rate applied to the rental flows.

‘é.
g
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Key factors in determining the discount rates applied include the regulated social housing sector and demand for each SSH
property owned by the Group. casts of acquisition and refurbishment of each property, the anticipated future underlying cash
flows for each property. benchmarking of each underlying rent for each property (passing rent), impact of clinate change, and
the fact that all of the properties within the CGroup's peortfolic have the benefit of full repairing and insunng leases entered into
by an Approved Provider.

As at the balance sheet date. the lease lengths within the Group's portfolic ranged from an effective 14 years to 35 years (2022
15 years to 36 years) with a weighted average unexpired lease term of 215 years (2022: 221). The greater the length of the lease,
then, all other metrics being equal. the greater the value of the property.

Sensgitivities of measurement ot significant unobservable inpuls

As set out within sighificant accounting estimates at 3.1 above, the Group's property investment valuation is open to inherent
uncertainties in the Inputs that determine fair value. Management has re-considered the sensiuvity ranges and widened them
for the current year as a result of macroeconomuc uncertainty. As a result, the following sensitivity analysis has been prepared:

Average discounl rate and range

The average discount rate used by the valuer 1n the Group's property Portfolio Valuation 1s 6.38% (2022: 5.5%). In setting the
discount rates adopted in the valuation. the valuers have considered market standard and antcipated returns to set a
benchmark for the portfolio as a whole They have then considered the various characteristics of the individual properties in
order to adjust those rates for each property. JLL will keep yields, and therefore discount rates, under regular review.

The range of discount rates used by the valuer in the Group's property Portfolio Valuaton 1s frorn 4.6% to 117% (2022 4 6%

to 11.5%). In assessing the range of discounts. the valuer considers the hkely net initial yield which would be sought by the
invesiment market and builds additional discounts to reflect added risk into the discount rate of the term and. in some cases,
the discount rate for the reversion. For example, where larger rental growth is allowed during the lease. an additional discount
1s built into the reversion because of the greater risk of a fall in the rent at the end of the lease.

Similarly additional discounts are considered where properties are in the process of peing re-purposed and premiums are
considered where residential care assets are funded by back-to-back leases with care providers.

The table below illustrates the change to the value of investment properties if the discount rate and CPI used for the portfclio
valuation calculations are changed:

-10% in +1.0%1n

discount rate  discount rate +0 5% wn CPI -0 5% 10 CPI
o . EO00 _fooo £000 £000
Increasef{decrease) in the IFRS fair value of investment Broperties at: o )
31 March 2023 71,929 {62,507) 56,676 {52,583)
31 March 2022 73‘955_ (64,020) 58,150 (53,815)

16.0 Subsidiary resale

31March 2023 31 March 2022
o o _ . o ED000 £000

Acquisition of subsidiary cbmpanies (iné]uding mEérchpany loan) - 13‘5597
Acquisition costs - 765

Transfer to investment property - (11,629)
Sale proceeds - {2.695)
Total ) ST I T ] - T

During the previous year, the Group entered into a transaction 1o acquire the freehold properties operated by CPl Care Limited.
Upon the acquisition of the companies for £13553.000 plus transaction costs, the properties were transferred into other group
companies and the company acquired, along with its asscclated operations, was sold to Envive Corundum Bidco Lirited for
£2 695,000 Envivo Corundum Bidco Limited is a subsidiary of Specialist Healthcare Operaticns Limited ("SHO"). Andrew Dawber
and Tom Pridmore (both directors of the Investment Adviser), are 14.99% shareholders in SHO. They are not directors of SHO,
and have no cperational role. SHO does not meet the definition of a related party under 1AS 24,
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17 U Trade and other receivables

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
& UUU £'UUU

Amounts falling due in less than one yea;

Trade recelvables 6.676 4960
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables (459) (239)
Accrued income 3,313 4,982
Prepayments and other receivables 1,730 3162
Total o 11,260 12.865

Prepayments and other receivabie amounts include prepaid legal and professional fees of £Nil (2022: £34 000} that have been
incurred in connection with acquisitions yet to be completed and £286.000 (2022: £1,046,000} in respect of ongoing works on
the property portiolic.

Accrued income relates mainly to rent accrued for the year but not yet demanded.

31March 2023 31 March 2022
) £000 £°000

Kr'noums"f'a_xiling due after more than one year

Straight line adjustments 2,639 2,083
Lease incentives B 22144 21466
Total B ) 7 ) 24,7537 23.51i

The aged analysis of trade receivables was as follows:

3iMarch 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Debtors past due

3
5
:
H|
£l
3

Current 2.518 1777
< 30 days 862 355
30-60 days 275 105
> 60 days 3,021 2723

6,676 74.960

Debtors past due '
Less provision for impairment ) ) (4590  (239)

Total ) ) ) 6,217 4721

The Directors consider the fair value of receivables eguals their carrying amount.
Other categories within trade and other receivables do not include impaired assets.

The provision for impairment rmovement was as [ollows:

For the For the

year ended year ended

3iMarch 2023 31 March 2022

— . - . [ . _fooa _ £000
Balance at beginning of year 239 256
Impalrment provision made 306 109
Amount recovered 67 (126)

Amounts written off ) o _ ) (19) -
Balance at end of year 459 239
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18 0 Cash and cash sguivalents

31March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000

Cash held by solicitors o 64 376
Liquidity funds 15,636 10,489
Cash held at bank 16,939 38,110
Unrestricted c-ash and cash equivalents S o 32,639 o 48975
Restricted cash 2,949 4362
Total ' T 35588 53337

Licquidity funds refer to money placed in money rmarket funds. These are highly hquid funds with accessibility within 24 hours
and subject to ingignificant risk of changes in value

Cash held by solicitors is money held in escrow for expenses expected (¢ be incurred in relation to investment properties
pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

Restricted cash represents amounts held for specific commitments, tenant deposits and retention money held in relation
10 deferred payments subject to achievemnent of certain conditions. cther retentcons and cash segregated to fund repair.
malntenance and improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants,

19.0 Trade and other payables

31 March 2022

31 March 2423 {Restated*)

£:000 £000

Deferred income o S e 260
Acquisition costs accrued 600 560
Finance costs 3.688 1,840
Dividend withholding tax payable 940 1057
Accruals and other creditors 773 2202
Tenant deposits 2,538 2,573
Total T S o © 8300 9492

Acquisition coste accrued alsc include monies retained at the poimnt of acquisition to be paid at a later date totaliing £383.000
12022 £262,000).

* Comparatives have been restated to correct the analysis of £1.896,000 of tenant deposits which had previously been included in acquisition costs accrued

20.0 Bank and inan borrowings

Bank borrowings are secured by charges over individual investrnent properties held by certain asset-hclding subsidiaries. The
banks also hold charges over the shares of certain subsidiaries and any intermediary holding companies of those subsidiaries.
Any associated fees in arranging the bank berrowings unamortised as at the year end are offset against amounts drawn cn
the faciliies as shown in the table below:

CIVITAS SOCTAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

—
o

Bank borrowings drawn at start of year
Bank barrowings advanced
Bank b@rrowipg; repaid

Bank borrowings drawn at end of year

Unamaortised costs at start of year
Less: loan issue costs incurred

Add. Loan issue costs amortused upon repayment of bank loan

Add. loan issue costs amortisation
Unamortised costs at end of year
At end of year

For the For the

yearl ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

__ Eoo0 __Eboo

357,050 357,050
70,875

(60,060) -

367,925 357.05C

{5,000) (4.930)

(3.549) 1.723)
665 ,
1869 1653

_ (6010)  (5000)
361,915 352,050
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Loan Balance' Loan Balance' Loan Principal Loan Principal
31 March 2023 3! March 2022 31March 2023 31 March 2022

e o . £000 £000 . £'000 I L
Matunty ot bank borrowings

Repayable within 1 year - - - -
Repayable between 110 2 years 59,600 158.746 60,000 160,000
Repayable between 2 10 5 years 302,315 59,365 207,925 60,000
Repayable after 5 years - 133939 - 137,050
Total S B 361915 352050 367925 357,050

i Loan balance net of unamortised costs.

The Group has been party to the following loan facility agreements in the yearn

loan Principal
£00

Facility 0 Expiry Date Interest rate
Summ of Borrowings - S
Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility Term loan 52500 02/11/2027 2.9936% fixed
Lloyds Bank plc Revolving credit facility - - SONIA + 167%!
Deutsche Bank AG Loan Notes 70,876 03/02/2028 5.69% fixed
HSBC Bank plc Revelving credit facility 100.000 28/11/2025 SONIA + 2.15%!
National Westminster Bank Plc 5-year facility Revolving credit facility €0,000 14/08/2024 SONIA + 2.00%?
ME&G Investment Management Limited 7-year facihity Term loan 84 550 24/02/2028 3.137% fixed i
o o 367,925 S o g
Borrowings are secured on investment properties to the value: g
— - — — ]
31 March ;023 31 MarchE_Zgég E
Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility principal £52.500.000 I 173510 173777 1
Deutsche Bank AG Loan Notes principal £70,875,000 168,610 - §
HSBC Bank plc facility principal £100.000.000 231,116 2227453
National Westminster Bank Plc 5-year facility principal £60,000,000 137,827 135330
ME&G Investment Management Limited 7-year facility principal _£84,550,00U L 230,279 7 230487
At 31 March 2023, the Group is in compliance with all covenants.
The covenants in place under the five agreements are summarised in the table below:
- T Histarical and proje:-:te“d nterest cover Loan 1o Value Ratio
Loan: T B
Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility At least 325% Must not exceed 40%
Deutsche Bank AG Loan Notes At least 175% Must not exceed 50%
HSBC Bank plc facility At least 250% Must not exceed 50%
National Westminster Bank Plc 5-year facility At least 250% Must not exceed 50%
ME&G Investment Management Limited 7-year facility At least 250% _ Must not exceed 55%

£20Z SLNNODIV ANV L¥Cd3d
O71d DNISOOH TYI208 SVLIAID

1Interest rate caps have been purchased to cap interest costs on this facility as per details in notes 21.0 and 31.3,
2 Fixed by way of an interest rate swap as detailed in note 21.0.

101



CIVITAS SCCIAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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21.0 Interest rate derivatives

The Group has entered into an interest rate swap with NatWest Markets in order to mitigate the nsk of changes in interest rates
on its loan with Naticnal Westminster Bank Plc under which £60 million is currently drawn. The swap has a notional value of
£60,000,000 and fixes interest at 2.60% (including the 2% margin on the bank loan)

During the year. the Group has entered into three new interest rate cap arrangements for a total cost of £8.841,000:

An interest rate cap that capped the £60,000,000 Lloyds Bank plc facility at 3.92% {(including the 1.67% margin on the loan
tacility) for the period from 16 September 2022 to 20 February 2023. This arrangement was scld upon the repayment of the loan
with proceeds of £17000.

An interest rate cap that capped the SONIA interest rate on the £100.000,000 HSBC Bank pic facility at 2.60% for the period from
21 September 2022 to 17 April 2023.

An interest rate cap transaction to mitigate the risk of the SONIA interest rate exceeding 245% p.a on the principal of
£100,000,000 HSBC Rank ple facility for the period from 17 Apnl 2023 to 28 Novernber 2025, This instrurment covers the remaining
term of the revolving credit facility with HSBC Bank plc and its extension to Novemnber 2025

For the For the

yearended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

_________ - o B - £000 £000

Interest rate derivative assets/{liabilities)

At start of year 2,131 (544)

Interest rate cap premiums paid 8,841 -

Disposal proceeds a7z -

Realised loss on disposal (187) -

Change in fair value during the year (2,639} 2675

Atend of year B B.129 2131
The table below shows the fair value measurement hierarchy for interest derivatives:

T i B i Q-ul;;_DIES mn Significant Sgnmcam

Active Markets Observable Unobservable

(Leveil) Inputs {Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)

. [ I e . £008  £ODG0 £000

31 March 2023 - 8,129 -

31 March 2022 7 - 2131 -

The fair value of Group's interest rate derivauves is recorded in the Group Statement of Financial Position and is determined
by the respective counterparties. The counterparties use a number of assumptions in determining the fair values, including
estimations over future interest rates and future cash flows using chservable yield curves. The fair value represents the net
present value of the difference between the cash flows produced by the contracted rate and the valuation rate. This valuation
technique falls within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as defined by IFRS 13

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during any of the pericds. ncr have there been any ransiers
between Level 2 and Level 3 during any of the periods.

22.0 Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Cempany for the issue of Ordinary shares.

Far the Far the year

year ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £c00

Share capital o
Al beginning and end Of,?’,ei{ ) o L 777 G_ZZi o 6,225
Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

At beginning and end 9???%“,, 622.51§L380 622.461380
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During the year. the Company purchased 6,050,000 Ordinary shares to be held in treasury at a cost of £4,651,000 (31 March 2022:
10,025,000 Ordinary shares for £9,259,000).

Durning the previcus year, the Company reissued 565000 Ordinary shares held in treasury for £647.000. The cost of purchasing
these shares into treasury of £484 000 has been credited to the capital reduction reserve with the gain credited to the Share
premium reserve.

At 31 March 2023, the Company held 16,075,000 (31 March 2022: 10,025000) Ordinary shares in treasury. The shares will continue
1o be held in treasury until either reissued or cancelled.

At 31 March 2023, the number of Ordinary shares used to calculate the net asset vaiue per share is 606,386,380 (31 March 2022
612.436,380} which excludes the shares held in treasury.

23.0 Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve represents the amounts subscribed for Ordinary share capital in excess of nominal value less
associated issue costs of the subscriptions.

For the For the

year ended vyear ended

31March 2023 31March 2022

. _ e . I '000 £000

At beginning of year 292,626 292.463
Premium arising on shares reissued from treasury - 163

At end of year 292,626 292,626

For movements in the year, please see details in note 22.0.

24.0 Capital reduction reserve

The capital reducuon reserve 1s a distributable reserve to which the value of the cancelled share premium was transferred.
Pursuant to Article 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Share Capital) Order 2008, the balance held in the capital reduction
reserve is to be treated for the purposes of Part 23 of the Companies Act 2006 as a realised profit and therefore available for
distribution in accordance with section 830 of the Companies Act. The Company has used this reserve for the costs of buying
back shares to be held in treasury and payment of dividends.

Forthe For the

year ended vear ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2022
£'000 £'0

Ebeginr;i;{g of year B - - 322,365 331140
Shares reissued from treasury - 484
Shares bought back into treasury {4,651) {9,259)
At end of year T - B - ' 7714 322365

For movements in the year, please see detalls in note 22.0.

25,0 Retained carnings
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Group.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2022

o e - £'000 £'000

Al beginning of year 54,331 43,670
Profit for the year 25472 44 754
Dividends paid ~ - B (34.459) (34.093)
Atend of year 45,344 34,331

SININILVLS TVIONVNLI
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26.0 Net asset value

Basic NAV per share is calculated by dividing net assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position attributable to
Ordinary equity holders of the parent by the number of Ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the year.

Net asset values have been calculated as follows:

Net assets (£000)

Number of Ordinary shares in issue at end of year
Number of Ordinary shares held in treasury

Number of Ordinary shares excluding treasury shares held by the _(_:_Bmpgllt

NAV per share — basic and diluted

37 0 Analysis of hinancial HaDibues and aszes ansing Dom finanamng asoviues

At beginning of year

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan issue costs paid

Interest rate derivative premiums paid

Proceeds from the sale of Interest rate derivatives
Bank berrowings advanced

Bank borrowings repaid

Non cash movements

Loan issue fees accrued

Amortisation of loan issue costs

Unamorused loan arrangement fees written off
Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives

At end of year

31March 2023

31 March 2022

At _beginm;{g of year

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down

Non cash movements
Loan issue fees payable

Amcrtisation of loan issue costs

At end of year

661909 675547

622461380 622461380

{16.075,000) {10,025.000)

T 606386380 512436380

- "T109a8p  103Cp

For the

ereatve:  borrowings 31 March 3093
£°000 £000 £'0

T (213) 352050 349919

- (3.148) (3.148)

(8.841) - (8.841)

17 - 17

- 70.875 70,875

- (60,000) (60.000)

- (396) (396)

- 1,869 1,869

- 665 665

2,826 - 2,826

| (8129 361915 353786

" Ferthe

Interest rate Bank year ended

deuvz_t:jvsos bcrrovzfggg 31 March 2':?025

544 352020 352664

- (1,805) 1,805)

- 82 82

- 1653 1653

(2.675) (2.675)

T sy 352080 349919
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28 60 Dperating wasas
The Group 1s party to a number of operating leases on its investment properties with Approved Providers. The future minimum
lease payments nnder non-rancellahle oparating leases receivable by the Croup are as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'0600 _ £'000

Arnounts recelvable

<1year 57,262 53,821
1-2 years 57,352 53,879
Z-5 years 172,536 161,940
> 5 years 958,286 928,210
Atend of year - - 1245436 1197.850

Leases are direct-let agreements with Approved Providers for a term between 20-40 years with indexed linked annual rent
reviews. All current leases are full repairing and insuring leases; the tenants are therefore cbliged to repair, maintain and
renew the properties back to the original conditions.

The tollowing table gives details of percentage of annual rental income per Approved Provider:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %

Auckland Home Solutions and O'ualitas”Housmg 249 244
Falcon Housing Association CIC 19.1 187
Bespoke Supportive Tenancies 12.5 12.6
Inclusion Housing CIC 9.4 93
Westmoreland Supported Housing Limited 5.6 59
Encircle Housing Limited 5.2 5.9
Trinity Housing Association Limited 5.2 51
Fivotal Housing Association 40 z8
Chrysalis Supported Association Limited 3.7 36
New Walk Property Management CIC 2.7 2.8
Harbour Light Assisted Living CIC 23 36
My Space Housing Solutions 13 13
Tlysium Ilealthcare Limited 11 -
IKE Supported Housing Limited 10 11
Hilldale Housing Association Limited 1.0 10
Windrush Alliance UK CIC 0.7 a7
Lilly Rose Supported Housing 0.2 [oh}
Blue Square Residential Ltd 01 01
Total o - T i 100.9;?7 1000

Auckland Home Solutions and Qualitas Housing are both members of the Social Housing Family CIC and subject to cormmon
control Their annual rent figures have therefore been aggregated in the table above. The percentage relating to Auckland
Home Sclutions and Qualitas Housing was 16.5% and 8.4% (2022: 16.3% and 8.1%) respectively. The annual rent at 31 March 2023 for
Auckland Home Salutions and Qualitas Housing was £9,266,000 and £4,730,000 (2022: £8,679.000 and £4,334,000) respectively.

The Group is also party to a number of operating leases on its long leasehold properties. The ground rent payment
commitments under these operating leases are negligible so the future minimum lease payments under these leases have not
been disclosed in these financial statements.
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29.0 Controlling parties
Asg at 31 March 2023, there is no ultimate controlling party.

30.0 Reiasted party disclosures
A list of all subsidiary undertakings including the address of the registered office is detailed in note 8.0 to the Company
accounts on pages 115 tc 118,

30,1 Tronsactwons with Directors

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shall from time 1o time determine. The aggregate
remuneration and benefits in kind of the Directors of the Company (in each case, solely in their capacity as such) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023 payable out of the assets of the Company is not expected to exceed £250.000.

Tees cf £194,000 (2022: £190,000) were incurred and paid to the Directors.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Directors held the following number of shares:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary Ordinary
B - o shares  shares
Director T B o
Michael Wrobel Chalirman 200.000 120,598
Alastair Moss Director 11,766 11766
Alison Hadden Director 31,937 -
Caroline Gulliver Audit and Management Engagement Committee Chair 58,832 58.832
Peter Baxter Dhrector 82,065 82,065

Romumeratio

The Investment Adviser has reviewed its remuneraticn policlies and procedures 1o ensure incentives are aligned with the
requirements of AIFMD. It includes measures 1o avoid contlicts of interest such as providing staff with a fixed monthly
salary and determining discretionary payments by the performance of the invesunent Adviser as a whole and not linked
to any one AlF 1n particular. The Investment Adviser and 1its staff receive no remuneration through profit share, carried
interest, co-investment ¢r other schemes related to the Company's performance.

30.2 Transaclions with the investment Adviser
On 1 November 20186, Civitas Investment Management Limited ('CIM") was appointed as the Investment Adviser ¢of the Company.
Its address is shown on page 131 to the Report.

Fees of £6,206,000 (2022: £6,132,000) were incurred and paid to CIM. In addition £11,000 (2022: £nil) disbursements were paid in
the year.

The Investment Adviser agreed to contribute £nil (2022: £100.000) towards legal and professional fees incurred This amount
was offset against legal and professional fees in note 9.0

As at 31 March 2023, a net amount of £48 000 (2022: £151.000) was due from CIM, which has since been received.
As at 31 March 2023, CIM helad 167,664 (2022: 50,00C) Ordinary shares in the Campany
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31.0 Financial risk management

311 Fmancial fastruments

The Group's principal financial assets and habilines are those that arise directly from its cperations: trade and other
receivables. trade and other payables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group's other principal financial liabilities are bank
borrowings, the main purpose of which is to finance the acquisition and development of the Group’s investment property
portfolic, and interest rate derivatives as detailed in notes 20.0 and 21.0.

All financial liabilities are measured at amartised cost, except interest rate derivatives, which are measured at fair value. All
financial instrurents were designated 1n thelr current categories upon initial recognition.

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying arnounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are
carried in the financial statements:

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
o B 31Marc!? E;';Jﬁ 31 Marcnsgggg 31 Marr_'hE_Zuﬂg.g 3 Marchﬂ_zuﬂg.g
Ein;i;:ia] assets ) - ' -
Interest rate derivatives 8,129 8,129 2,131 2131
Trade and other receivables! 34,949 34,949 34,580 34,580
Cash and cash equivalents 35588 35,588 _ 53337 53337
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables? 7,599 7,599 8.632 8.632
Bank borrowings . 361.?& ) __350.179 _ 352.080 34940_@

1 Excludes prepayments
2 Excludes deferred income and dividend withholding tax payable.

The Group has five bank loans as detailed in note 20.0. The fair value of the fixed rate loan is determined by companng the
discounted future cash flows.

Financial risk managemant

The Group is exposed to market risk, interest rate risk. credit nisk and liquidity risk in the current and future years. The Board of
Directors oversees the management of these rigks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks that are summarised below.

217 Market risk
The Group's activities will expose it primarily to the market risks associated with changes in property values and changes in
interest rates.

sk relating to ivesimaent in property

Investment in property s subject tc varying degrees of risk. Some factors that affect the value of the investment in property
include:

e changes in the general economic climate;

e competition for available properties;

e obsolescence; and

e government regulations, including planning, environmental and tax laws.

Variations in the above {actors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence the financial
performancea of the Group.
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Risk redaitng o hguidity funds iassiied as cash and cash emunvalanss

The Group holds positions in two AAA rated liquidity funds that invest in a diversified range of government and
non-government money market securities, which are subject to varying degrees of risk. Some factors that affect the value cf
the liquidity funds include:

e the performance of the underlying government and non-government money market securities; and
s interestrates

Variauons in the above factors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence the financiat
performance of the Group.

313 Inleregt rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

At 31 March 2023 all long-term borrowings are either at fixed rate or have an interest rate cap cr interest rate swap in place
which has mitigated the risk of rising interest rate. Interest rate derivative instruments are in place to the loan maturity date on
the variable rate loans.

The table below shows the bank loans, derivative ingtruments and interest rates,

Maximum

Loan Principal Denvative mstrument interest rate
Summary of Borfowings £'000 Expiry Date interestrate in place payable
Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility ’ T 52800 02/11/2027  2.9936% fixed ' O 2.99%
Deutsche Bank AG 70,875 03/02/2028 5.69% fixed 5.69%
HSBC Bank plc 100,000 28/11/2025 SONIA + 215%  Interest rate cap' 4.75%
National Westminster Bank Plc S-year facility 60,000 14/08/2024 SONIA + 2.00% Interest rate swap 2.60%
M;LG,I,QYQS,tmem Management Limited 7-year facility 84,550 24/02/2028 ZET% fixed 3.]4?’{”

367,925

1 Maximum interest rate reduces to 4.6% from 18 April 2023

The exposure of the Group 1o variable rates of interest is considered upon drawing of any new loan faciliues, to ensure that the
Group's expasure to interest rate fluctuations 1s within acceptable levels.

The Investrnent Adviser monitors the Group's exposure to any changes in interest rate on an ongoing basis, with the Board
updated on a quarterly basis of the current exposure of the Group's loan facilities.

As at 31 March 2023, 1f interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/(lower) with all other vanables held constant the impact
on profits after taxation for the year would be as below. The Investment Adviser anticipates these levels are reasonably
possible based on the gbservation of current market conditions that interest rates would not fluctuate more than 1%.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
‘g00 £'000

Increase/ (dec;é;;;j i:h;i'ofits due to interest rates
100 basis points higher 256 (1.066})
100 baslis points lower o o ) 210y 1572

The average eifective interest rates of financial instruments at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

31March 2023 31 March 2022
% . %

Bank borrcwmg;; fixed rate ' 2.65 204
Bank borrowings — variable rate! 6.07 2.23
0.82 005

Cash and cash equivalents o

1 Vanable rate borrowings are subject 1o a maximum interest rate of 4 75% due to an interest rate cap The maximum nterest rate reduces to 4 8% from 18 Apnl 2023,
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314 Creditiisk

Credit nisk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligauons under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to 3 financial loss. The Group ie exposod to crodit ricks from both it leasing activities and financing activitica.
including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

Debtors and accrued income represent rent due or accrued These amounts due are diversified between a number of different
Approved Providers of differing financial strength, see note 28.0 for detalls of the different counterparties. None of the
Approved Providers have a credit rating, however. the diversified nature of this asset supports the credit quality.

The Group has pclicies in place to ensure that rental contracts are entered into only with lessees with an appropriate credit
and operational history, and limits exposure to any one tenant. The credit risk is considered to be further reduced as the
source of the rents received by the Group is ultimately provided by the Government, by way of housing benefit and care
provisicn, via a diverse range of local authorities.

For details of provisions for impairment please refer to note 17.0.

Crec sk relaied o finanoal instments and cash deposis

One of the principal credit risks of the Group will anse with the banks and financial instituticns. The Board of Directors believes
that the credit risk on short-term deposits and current account cash balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
considered to be of good credit quality. In the case of cash deposits held with lawyers, the credit nsk is limited because the
cash is held by the lawyers within client accounts at banks with high credit quality.

The credit ratings {or banks where balances are held by the Group are as [ollows:

Lloyds Bank plc A+/F1
HSBC Bank plc AA-/Fi+
RBS International Limited A/FI

National Westminster Bank plc A+/F1

Ratngs advised by Fitch

Ne balances are held with Deutsche Bank AG.

315 Liguidity rigk

The Group manages 1ts liquidity and funding risks by considering cash flow forecasts and ensuring sufficient cash balances
are held within the Group to meet future needs. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the avallability of financing through appropriate and adequate credit lines, and the ability of customers
to settle obligations within normal terms of credit. The Group ensures, through forecasting of capital requirements. that
adequate cash is available.

The follewing takle details the Group's maturity profile in respect of its financial instrument liabilines based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

On demaﬁd <1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
£000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000
31 March 2023 - ’ ’ T )
Trade and other payables 7.599 - - - 7,599
Bank borrowings - 14,482 407,770 - 422252
- - - 7509 14482 407970 - 429851
31 March 2022
Trade and other payables 8,032 - - - 8.632
Bank borrowings - 9,336 245974 144,602 399912
) - T '  88%: 9336 245374 144602 408.544

The profile above shows the maturity profile at 31 March 2023 and included within the contracted payments is £54,527,000
(2022: £42 862.000) of loan interest payable up 1o the point of maturity.
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32.C Capital commitments
At 31 March 2023, the Company had funds committed totalling £Nil (2022: £92,000 concerning capital expenditure for a property
in Surrey).

3%.0 Post balance sheel events

Dividends

On 9 May 2023. the Company announced a dividend of 1425 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January 2023 to
31 March 2023 totalling £8.641.000. The dividend payment was made on 9 june 2023 to shareholders on the register as
at 19 May 2023 The financial statements do not reflect this dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT property income
distribution ("PID).

Financing

On 1 December 2022, the Company signed a facility with an institutional lender. Subsequent to this, on 21 June 2023, the
Company received credit approved terms for an additional £61.0 million fixed facility based on a 3-year SONIA rate at the
date of draw down +195bps margin with a maturity date of 3 August 2026. The eventual drawdown on the facility is subject to
certain standard closing conditions

Recommended cash oiter lor the Group

On 9 May 2023 an announcement was made ¢ the market for an all-cash affer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (Civitas) from
Wellness Unity Limited. a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CKA Asset Holdings Limited (CKA) The offer of 8C pence

per share received values the entire issued share capital (excluding treasury shares) of CSH at approximately £485 million.
This represents a 44.4% premium to the share price of 554 pence per share on 5 May 2023 (the last trading day prior to
announcement of the offer), and 26 7% discount tc 31 March 2023 NAV of 109.16p. This provides shareholders the opportunity 1o
exit in full and in cash at a significant premium t@ the current share price. The offer will be implemented by way of a takeover
offer within the meaning of Part 28 of the Companies Act.

On 22 May 2023, the QOffer Document was made available The offer became unconditional on 23 June 2023 Payment of
consideration due to shareholders who have submitted valid acceptances will be made no later than 14 calendar days

after the date the Offer becomes or is declared unconditional, or, in relation 1w valid acceptances received after such date,
within 14 calendar days of receipt of that acceptance. According to the Gifer Document. it is intended that Civitas Investment
Management Limited ("CIM") is malntained as the Investment Adviser to Civitas so that the day-to-day management of

the Civitas porifolic will continue uminterrupted, and Civitas be re-registered as a private limited company as soon as
practicable following the cancellation of the Listing and trading of Civitas shares. At the balance sheet date. CKA. as an indirect
investor in CIM, was not a related party t¢ the Group as per [AS 24. On 23 June 2023, when the offer became unconditional,

CKA subsequently became the ulurnate controlling party of the Campany. and a related party under 1AS 24.



Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

L - I _ - . __ Noe = EO00 __ £00C
Assets
Fixed assets
Investment 1n subsidiaries 7.0 794,733 793284
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9.0 2,599 4310
Cash and cash equivalents ) 100 26,193 23438

28,792 27748

823,525 821,032

Total ;ssets

Liabilities

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

Tradﬁe’and gther payables - ) - N o o 771"1.0 B _(318.414) (274,020)
B o ) i i i _ (318414)  (274,020)

Total liabilities (318,414) (274.020)

Total net assets T 505111 547,012

Equity

Share capital 12.0 6,225 6.225
Share premium reserve 13.0 292,626 292626
Capital reduction reserve 14.0 317.714 322,365
Accurmnulated losses 150 (111,454) (74,204)
Total equity ) ) T o 7 o ffsfos.m 547012

The Company has taken advantage of the provisions of Companies Act 2006 5408 and does not disclose the Company's
individual profit and loss account. Loss for the year was £2791,000 (2022: profit £21,362,000).

The Company financial statements on pages 111 1o 120 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas Social Housing PLC
and authonsed for 1ssue and signed on its behalf by:

Wi )

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
28 June 2023

Company No 10402528

" .:
3
E.
:
8
3

£20Z SLNNODJDOV INY 1HOd3d
DTd ONISNOH TYID0S SYLIALD

111



CIVITAS SOCIAL HQUSING PLC
REPCRT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

Y
-
N

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance at?ipril 2021 o
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Shares reissued frorn treasury

Shares bought back into treasury

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2022

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
Shares reissued from treasury
Shares bought back intc treasury
Div1dendﬁsﬁpaid

Balance atusi_l\!lfch 2023

_ Note

6,225

Share Capital
premijum reduction  Accumulated Total
oce " reas o T
292,462 331140 (61473) 568354
- - 21362 21362
164 484 - £48
- (9.259) - (9.259)
- ~ (34093  {34.093)
292626 322365 (74204) 547012
- - 2,791 @791
- (4.65) - (4,651
- - {34459) (34459
292,626 317714  (111454) 505111

The Company's distributable reserves comprise retained earnings/{accumulated losses) and the capital reduction
reserve These in aggregate had sufficient realised distzibutable reserves to suppert dividends paid to date.

The notes cn pages 113 t¢ 120 are an integral part of these financlal statements.



Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

LG {Lorporate information

Civitas Sectal Housing PLC ("the Company”) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 as a public
company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC, which was
subsequently changed ta the existing name on 3 October 2016.

The address cf the registered office is 6th Floor. 65 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7NQ. The Company is registered as
an investment company under secticn 833 of the Companies Act 2006 in England and Wales and is domiciled in the
United Kingdern.

The Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange {"LSE").

The Company's Ordinary shares have heen admitted t¢ the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA"), and are
traded on the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate parent company of its subsidiaries (the "Group’) and to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income, together with the potential for capital growth frem investing in a portfolio of
social homes.

2.0 Basis of preparation
The financial statemnents have been prepared on a historical cost basis and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framewaork ("FRS 1017 and the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using FRS 101

In preparing these financial statermnents, the Company applies the recognituon, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘Adopted IFRSg"). but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and has set ogut below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS 101
Therefore, these financial statements do not include:

s certain comparative information as ctherwise required by IFRS;

» certain disclosures regarding the Company's capital management;

s certain disclosures in relation to [FRS 15 Revenue Contracts with Customers:

e a staternent of cash flows;

s the effect of future accountng standards not yet adopted,;

s 1he disclosure of the remunerauon of key management personnel; and

o disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of Civitas Social Housing PLC.

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent disclosures
are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. These financial statements do not include certain
disclosures in respect of:

» financial instruments; and

e fair value measurement other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial instruments at fair value.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its own Income
statement ar statement of comprehensive income.

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations
After a review of new accounting standards which are now effective, none are relevant to be adopted in the preparation of the
Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

As discussed in the Group financial statements above, the underlying assets of the Company beneflt from a secure income strear.

The Company financial statements show an accumulated loss, however this is due to a time-lag on profits from subsidiary
companies being moved up the structure in the form of dividends.

The Company has net current liabilities of £289622.000 (2022: £246,272,000). Thus balance arises due to the intercompany
balances totalling £316,128,000 (2022: £271,632.000) with the Company's subsidiary companies. The amounts principally relate to
bank loans drawn in the Company's subsidiary companies in order 1o finance the purchase of new acquisitions in accordance
with the Group's business model The directors of the subsidiary companies have provided a letter of comfiert that they will not
seek repayment of these balances within 12 months from the date of approval of the Company's financial staternents.

|
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company's articles of asscciation include a requirement for the Roard tc propose an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting following the fifth anniversary from the imtial public offering of the Company f{or the Company to continue
in its current form (the Continuation Resolution). This vote was passed in September 2022 so the Cempany will continue its
business as presently constituted and will propose the same resclution at the AGM in September 2027 and every fifth annual
general meeting thereafter,

0On 9 May 2023, an announcement was made to the rnarket for an all-cash offer of Civitas Social Housing PLC (CSH) from
Wellness Unity Limited. a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Assets Holdings Lirmted (CKA). The ofter became
unconditicnal on 23 Juns 2023. The Group's existing commutted debt facilities contain a standard change of control clause has
now been ttiggered due to the offer becoming unconditional. This could result in the existing committed debt faciliies being
withdrawn. Furthermore, the Directors do not have visibility of the post completicn funding for the Group and Company at
this time. The Directors note the detailed intentions statement included within the announcement on 9 May 2023, which states
that CKA does not envisage making any changes to the rnanagement team nor any disruption o any counterparties or 1o

the underlying tenants. However, the condinons outlined above indicate a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's and Cempany's ability to continue as a going concern. The Independent Auditors’ Report included
within the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 also highlights this matenal uncertainty. Therefore,
notwithstanding the material uncertainty arising from the offer fromn CKA, the Directors are satished that the going concern
basis remains appropriate for the preparaticn of the financial statements. The financial statements do not include the
adjustments that would result if the Group and the Company were unable to cortinue as a going concern.

Sigaificant judgementsy and sources of esntmation unceriainiy

The key source of estimation uncertainty relates to the Company's investment in Group companies, and is stated in the
Company’s separate financial statements at cost less impairment losses, if any. Impairment losses are determined with
reference 1o the investment’s fair value less estimated costs of disposal. Investment properties held by the subsidiary
companies are supported by independent valuation. Judgements and assumptions associated with the property values of the
investments held by the subsidiary companies are detailed in the Group financial staternents.

3.0 Accounting pelicies
The financial statements ¢f the Company follow the accounting policies laid out in the Group's consolidated financial
statements along with the following accounting policies which have been consistently applied.

investments tn sebsidiagries

The investments in subsidiary companies are included in the Company's Statement of Financial Positicn at ¢ost less provision
for impairment. Impairment losses are determined with reference to the investment's fair value less estimated selling costs. On
disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount is included in the income statement

The 1nvestment in a subsidiary company may include both the purchase of shares and an intercompany loan which is
subsequently capitalised 1n return for shares in the subsidiary company. The intercompany loan capitalised is disclosed in
note 7.0 as a transfer between the shares and locan columns

Loans to subsidiaries

Loans made to subsidialy compames which arse as part of the transactions for the acquisition of investments and are
subsequently capitalised by the issue of shares are reccgnised as investrmnent in subsidiaries at cost. At the point the loan is
capitalised. this transaction is recognised as a transfer within the table in ncte 7.0.

Amounts due to subyidiary companies
Balances arising with subsidiary companies of a temporary nature are initlally recogrused at fair value and subsequently
rmeasured at amoertised cost.

4.0 Dividends
Dividends are included in the financial statements in the year In which they are paid Details cf dividends paid and preposed
are inciuded in note 14.0 of the Group's consclidated financial statements.

5.0 Empicyee nformation
Details of Directors’ rernuneration are included in note 6.0 of the consolidated financial statements. The Company had no
employees during the year (2022 nil).

6.0 Audit fees
Audit fees 1n relation 1o the Company's financial statements total £358,000 (2022, £256.000). For further details, please refer o
note 9.0 of the Group hnancial statements
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10 nuestment in subsidiaries

For the

Shares in Leans e year ended

subsidiaries subsidiaries 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2023 N . . £'000 £000_ £:000
Balance at the beginning of the year 768,075 25,209 793,284
Increase in investments 1,090 600 1,690
Loans transferred 7.727 (7,727 -
Impairment (241) - {241)
At the end of the year _ 776,651 13,082 794,733

o ) o For the year

Shares in Loans to ended

subsidianes subsidianes 31 March 2022

Year ended 31 March 2022 . . o £°000 £'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 703.435 17.483 720,918
Increase 1n iNvestments 41,712 31,013 72.725
Loans transferred 23287 (23.287) -
Impairment ) o {359 - (359
At the end of the year 768,075 ) 25,209 79}5@4

Following a review comparing cost of investments to the underlying net assets of subsidiary companies, an impairment
provision has been made of £241,000 (2022: £35%,000).

8.6 Subsidiary entities

The Company has provided a guarantee under s479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the financial year ended

31 March 2023 for a number of its subsidiary companies (as indicated in the table on the focllowing pages). The guarantee is
over all outstanding habilities 1o which the subsidiary companies are subject at 31 March 2023 until they are satisfied in full
The Group consists of a parent company, Civitas Social Housing PLC, incorperated in England and Wales (company number
10402528} and a number of subsidiaries held directly by Civitas Social Housing PLC, which operate and are incorporated in
England and Wales or Jersey.

The Group owns 100% equity shares of all subsidharies listed below and has the power tc appoint and remove the majority of
the board of directors of those subsidiaries The relevant activities of the below subsidiaries are determined by the Board of
Directors based on the purpose of each company.

.az
g_
g
i

Therefore, the Directors concluded that the Group has control over all these entities and all these entities have been
consaolidated within the consolidated financial statements

A list of all related undertakings included within these consoclidated financial statements are noted below. indirectly held
subsidiary companies are marked by an indentation in the table below:

NEI‘;’]E o R Registered number . Pnincipal acuvity ; ) Country of incorpaoration _
Crvitas Sorial Housing Finance Company 1 Limited* 10957707 Finance company England & Wales
Civitas Social Housing Jersey 1 Limited 124129 Holding company Jersey
Cwvitas SPV1 Limited* 10518729 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV2 Limited* 10114251 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPVI1 Limited* 10546749 Property investment England & Wales
Cwitas SPV15 Limited* 09777380 Properny investment England & Wales
Ciwitas SPVZS Limited* 10791473 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV27 Limited* 10883112 Property iInvestment England & Wales
Civitas SPV33 Limited* 10546407 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV3% Limited” 10588530 Property investment England & wWales E0
Civitas SPV38 Limited*® 10748518 Property invesiment England & Wales § §
Civitas SPV39 Limited* 10547333 Property investment England & Wales E o
Civitas SPV40 Lirmnited® 10738510 Property investment England & Wales =] 8
Civitas SPV41 Limited” 10738542 Property investment England & Wales ﬁ E
Crwitas SPV50 Limited* 10775419 Property investment England & Wales ] e
Civitas Social Housing Finance Company 2 Limited” 10997698 Finance company England & Wales é %
Civitas Social Housing Jersey 2 Limited 124876 Holding company Jersey § g
Civitas SPV3 Limited® 10156529 Property investment England & Wales “a
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Name

Civitas SPV4 Limited*
Civitas 3PV5 Limited®
Civitas SPV6 Limited*®
Civitas SPV9 Limited®
Civitas SPVIO Limited*
Clvitas SPVI2 Limited®
Civitas SPV17 Limited*
Civitas SPV18 Limited*
Ciwvitas SPV19 Limited*
Civitas SPVZ0 Limited”
Civitas SPV22 Limited”
Civitas SPV24 Limited*
Civitas SPV26 Limited*®
Ciwvitas 8PV29 Limited*®
Civitas 5PV30 Limited”
Civitas SPV31 Limited?
Civitas SPV32 Limited*
Civitas SPV34 Limuted”
Civitas SPV36 Limited*
Civitas SPV42 Limited*
Civitas 5PV43 Limited”
Civitas SPV45 Limited”
Civitas SPV46 Limited”
Civitas SPV47 Limited*®
Civitas SPV48 Limited”
Civitas SPV5! Limited*®
Civitas SPV52 Limited*
Civitas SPV63 Limited”
Civitas SPV64 Limited*
Civitas SPV70 Limited*
Civitas SPV71 Limited”
Civitas SPV72 Limited*
Civitas SPV74 Limited*
Civitas SPV7/5 Limited*®
Civitas SPVE0 Limned*
Civitas SPV163 Lirmited*

Civitas SPVS Limited*
Civitas SPV28 Limited*
Civitas SPV53 Limited”
Civitas SPV55 Limited*®
Civitas SPV57 Limited*
Civitas SPV60 Limited*
Civitas SPVal Limited®
Clvitas SPV66 Limited*
Civitas SPV// Limited”
Civitas SPV78 Limied*
Civitas SPV79 Limited*
Civitas SPV81 Limited*
Civitag SPVB2 Limited*®
Civitas SPV8Y Limited”
Civitas SPVES Limited*
Civitas SPV9S Limned?
Civitas SPVSY Limited*
Crvitas SPV103 Limited*

Civitas Social Housing Finance Company $ Limited*®

Fnincipal activity

Registered number

10433744
10479104
10674493
10536388
10535243
10546753
10479036
10546651
10548932
10588735
10743958
10751512
10864336
10911565
10936025
10974889
1007173
10738381
10588792
10748556
10534877
10871854
10871910
10873270
10873295
10826693
10827006
10857803
10938411
10770201
10888639
108358022
11001855
11001834
11001998
14527873
10997714
10536157
10895228
11021625
11056455
11091444
11111908
10937662
109%/898
1166491
11170099
11236544
11192811
1138079€
11371128
11300749
11208184
11463880
11500596

Country of incorporation

Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property Investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property invesiment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Preperty investment
Prcperty investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Praoperty investment
Property imnvestment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Finance Company

Property tnvestment
Praperty investment
Property investmnent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Freperty investment
Froperty immvestment
Procperty investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property invesumernt
Property investment
Property investment
Property invesiment

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Engtand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
tngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
kngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
tngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
rngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
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Civitas SPVI05 Lirnrted®
Civilas SPVI06 Limited”
Ciwitas SPV107 Limited*
Civitas SPV116 Limited*
Civitas SPVI1Y Limited*

Crvitas Social Housing Finance Company 4 Limited*
Clvitas SPV23 Limited*
Civitas SPV54 Limited*
Civitas SPV5S Limited*
Civitas SPVEY9 Limited*
Civitas SPV73 Limited®
Civitas SPV84 Limited*
Civitas SPV86 Limited*
Civitas SPV87 Limited*
Civitas SPV8E Limited*
Civitas SPVI0 Limated*
Civitas SPVIl1 Limited*
Civitas SPV92Z Limited*
Civitas §PV93 Limited”
Civitas SPV94 Limited*
Civitas SPV96 Limited*
Civitas SPV100 Limited”
Civitas SPVI01 Limited*
Civitas SPV102 Limited*
Civitas SPVI09 Limited*
Civitas SPV112 Limited*
Civitas SPV1l4 Limited*
Civitas SPV11Y Limited*
Civitas SPV118 Limited*
Civitas SPV1Z1] Limited"
Civitas SPV122 Limited*
Civitas SPV126 Limited®
Crvitas SPVI27 Limited*®
Civitas SPV129 Limited*
Civitas SPV130 Limited*
Civitas SPV131 Limited*
Cvitas SPV132 Limited*
Crvitas SPV145 Limited*

SPV153 Limuted (previously Fieldbay Limited)*
Crvitas SPV148 Limited*
Civitas 5PV149 Limited*
Cwvitas SPV150 Limited*
FPI CO 324 Lig*

Civitas Social Housing Finance Company 5 Limited*
Civitas SPV7 Limited*
Civitas SPV13 Limited*
Civitas SPV37 Limited*
Civitas 3PV44 Limited*
Civitas SPV4S Limited*
Civitas SPV56 Limited*®
Ciwitas SPV64 Limited*
Civitas SPV6S Limited*
Civitas SPV67 Limited*
Cvitas SPVEB Limited*®
Civitas SPV98 Limited*

Registered number
13532177
11532179
11532182
11504389
11504445
11906660
10746881
11039750
11111912
1142372
10939075
N381455
11418432
10888903
10939044
10939131
109413577
11449913
110434111
11208105
11270786
11069703
09978282
11521558
11532120
11579750
11579733
1522178
11411498
1109991/
11482646
11459821
10941401
11664994
11705074
11675132
11474735
11842306
5218012
11632633
11462691
11462558
11633019
15083077
10536308
09517692
10/38450
10588783
11031549
11056465
10583/528
10538467
10937929
10938269
11478695

Principal activity

Country of incarporation

Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Property investrnent
Property investment
Finance Company

FProperty investment
Property invesiment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investrnent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investrnent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investrent
Property investment
Froperty invesunent
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Holding company

Froperty investrment
Property investment
Property investrnent
Property investment
Property investment
Finance Company

Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Froperty investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment

England & wales
kngland & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wwales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & wales
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Name a - T 77777Rég|slemd numht;r o VPVI:nclpal activity _ Coun_l‘rlg_i ::}'-\;;I-x;o_lauol R
Civitas SPV99 Limited* 11478707 Property investment England & wales
Civitas SPV104 Limited* 11532174 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV108 Lirmited* 11532135 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV1l3 Lirmited* 1580068 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV123 Limited* 08253452 FProperty investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV135 Limited® 11698972 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV134 Limied* 11689461 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV135 Limited* 11579880 Property investment England & Wales
Ciwvitas SPV136 Limited* 11579760 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV14% Limited* 11546808 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas 5SPV144 Limited* 11546696 Property mmvestment England & Wales
Civitas SPV146 Limited® 11861500 Holding Company England & Wales
Bryn Eithin {2019) Limited* 11844898 Property mmvestment England & Wales
Civitas SPV147 Limited® 11861974 Holding Company England & Wales
Mynydd Mawr (2019) Limited* 11844917 Property imvestment England & Wales
Civitas SPV152 Limited* 11955719 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV15% Limited* 12044281 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV156 Limited* 12081093 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV157 Limited* 12188610 Property investment England & Wales
Crvitas SPV158 Limited* 122026774 Property investment England & Wales
Crvitas SPVIBD Limited® 12272906 Property investment England & Wales
Bedford SPVI Limited* 12315518 Property investment England & Wales
Bridge Property Herts Limited* 124355985 Property investmert England & Wales
Bridge Propco Limited* 12445439 Property investment England & Wales
FPI Co 294 Lid* 11519226 Froperty investment England & Wales
Civitas SPv14 Limited* 10479041 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV HP Ld.” 12784898 Property investment England & Wales
Crvitas SPV16 Limited® 0991/557 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas SPV2] Limited® 10631541 Property imvestment England & Wales
Civitas SPV15%8 Limited* 12258313 Property mvestment England & Wales
Civitas Financing PLC* 13546154 Holding Company England & Wales

* These entities are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of that
Act. These are all entities that have a year end of 31 March 2023.

The registered addresses for the subsidiaries are consistent based on their country of incorperation and are as {ollows:

» England & Wales entities: Link Company Matters Limited, 6th Floor, 65 Gresharn Street, London ECZV 7NQ

e lersey entities: 12 Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey JE2 3RT

9.0 Trade and other receivabies
31March 2023 51 March 2022
) £o00 £00G

Trade receivables S ' ' 1544 1150
Prepayments and other receivables 420 1.902
Accrued income 635 1258
Total . 2599 4310

Prepayments and other receivable amounts include prepaid legal and professional fees of £N1l (2022: £34 000) that have been
incurred 1n connection with acquisitions yet to be completed and £286,000 (2022: £1,046.000) 1n respect ¢f uncompleted works
on the property portfolio.
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16 G Cash Ang cash equavatents

31March 2023 31 March 2022
~ & LUU

E UUU
Cash held by solicitors ' i - 64 376
Liquidity funds 15.636 10489
Cash held at bank 10,239 12,258
Cash and cash equivale-r_i_t; o - 25,939 23.i2?
Restricted cash- ) 254 315
Total cash held athank o - 26193 23438

Liquidity funds refer to money placed in money market funds. These are highly liquid funds with accessibility within 24 hours
and subject to insignificant risk cf changes in value.

Cash held by solicitors is money held in escrow for expenses expected to be incurred in relation to investment properues
pending completion. These funds are available immediately cn demand.

Restricted cash represents amounts held for specific commitments, tenant deposits and retention money held by lawyers in

relation to deferred payments subject to achievernent of certain conditions, cther retentions and cash segregated to fund repair,
maintenance and improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants.

1.0 Trade and other payabies

31 March 2022

31 March 2023 Restated

o . - £'000 £000
Retentions* - 7 ’ 20 &0
Accruals 745 685
Dividend withholding tax payable 940 1.057
Deferred income 374 358
Amounts due 10 subsidiary companies 316,128 271632
Tenant deposits held” 207 228

Total 318414 274020

* Comparatives have been re-analysed to correct the analysis of £228.000 of tenant deposits which had previously been included in retentions.

2.0 Share capitai
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary shares.

For the Far the

year ended year ended

31March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £0

Sharé Vcapital
At beginning and end of year ) 6225 6223

Numbper of shares a-ohansed. issana and Laily paid

For the Forthe
year ended year ended

31Marcn 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
At beginning anq end of year - ) 6?2.461.38_(_'._1_ 62_2,461,380

During the year, the Company purchased 6,050,000 Ordinary shares to be held in treasury at a cost af £4651.000 (31 March 2022:
10,025,000 Ordinary shares for £9,259.000).

During the previous year, the Company reissued 565,000 Ordinary shares held in treasury for £647.000. The cost of purchasing
these shares into treasury of £484 000 has been credited to the capital reduction reserve with the gain credited to the share
premium reserve.

At 31 March 2023, the Company held 16,075,000 (31 March 2022: 10,025,000) Ordinary shares in treasury. The shares will continue
to be held in treasury until either reissued or cancelled

At 31 March 2023, the number of Crdinary shares used to calculate the net asset value per share 15 606.386.380 (31 March 2022:
612.436.380) which excludes the shares held in treasury.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

12.8 Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve represents the amounts subscribed for Ordinary share capital in excess of nominal value less
associated issue costs of the subscnptions.

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2023 31 March 2022

. o - o . 000 £'000

At beginning of year 292.626 292462

Prernium arising on shares reissued from treasury 7 - 164

Atend of year 292626 292626

For movements in the year, please see details in note 12.0.

14.80 Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is a distributable reserve to which the value of the cancelled share premium was transterred
Pursuant to Arucle 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Share Capital) Order 2008, the balance held in the capual reduction
reserve is to be treated for the purposes of Part 23 of the Companies Act 2006 as a realised profit and therefore available for
distnibution in accordance with section 830 of the Companies Act. The Company has used this reserve far the costs of buying
back shares tc be held in reasury.

For the Forthe
year ended year ended
51 March 2023 31 March 2022
I _ _ _ o [ . fooe  E000
At beginning of year 322,365 331,140
Shares reissued from treasury - 484
Shares bought back into treasury o (47,75571)7 (3.259)
At end of year 317,714 322,365
For movements in the year, please see detalls in note 12.0.
15.C Avcumuiated iosges
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Company.
) T o o T forthe  Forme
year ended year ended
3t March 2023 31 March 2022
__£000 I

At beginming of year ©(74204)  (61473)
(Loss)/profit for the year (2,791) 21362
Dividends paid (34,459) (34‘093_)

¢ ﬂ' (1454)  (74204)

At end of year

16.0 Controlling parties
As at 31 March 2023, there is no ultimate centrolling party.

170 Relared partly fransachions
For all related party transacuons and transactcns with the Investment Adviser please make reference to notes 30.1 and 30.2 of
the Group's consolidated financial statements and amounts due to subsidiary companies in note 11.0 above.

18.C Post balance sheet events
Flease refer to note 33 0 of the Group Consclidated financial statements on page 110.

Since the year end, Civitas Social Housing Jersey 1 Limited and Civitas Social Housing Jersey 2 Limited have issued dividends to
the Company tctalling £10,246,0CC.
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures

The Group has chosen 1o adopt EPRA best practice guidelines for calculating key alternative performance measures. Notes 1.0
to 7.0 support the EPRA metrics disclosed on pages 28 and 29 of the Report where the defirution and purpose of each metric

are outlined.

1.6 EPRA Earmings

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

Earning_s_ from oi:)erational activities

Profit after taxation (E'000) 25,472 44,754
Change In fair value of derivative financial instruments (£'000) 2.826 (2.675)
Changes in value of investment properties (£'000) {2,640) (12.269)
Costs of early repayment of debt (£000) 1,271 -
EPRA Earnings (£000) ' T 26,929 29,810
Weighted average number of shares 1n issue (adjusted for shares held in treasury) 608,552,681 618797942
EPRA Earnings per share (EPS) — hasic & diluted S 7 ' o o Za 7—47829
2.0 EPRA NAV Metrins
T T EPRA Net EPRA Net EPRA Net
Reinstatemnent Tangible Disposal
Value Assets Value
31 March 2023 o
Net assets (£000) 661,909 661,909 661,909
Fair value of dernvative financial instruments (£'000) {8,129} (8,129) -
Adjustment to fair value for bank borrowings (£000) - - 11,736
NAV (£'000) o 653,780 653780 673,645
Number of shares in issue (adjusted for shared held in treasury) 606,386,380 606,386,380 606,386,380
NAV per share 107.82p  107.82p  111.09p
EPRA Net T EPRA Net EPRA Net
Reinstatement Tangible Disposal
Value Assels _ Value
31 March 2022 o -
Net assets (£'000) 675547 675,547 675,547
Fair value of derivative financial instruments (£000} 12,131} (2,131) -
Adjustment to fair value for bank borrowings (£E000) - - 2644
NAV (£000) 673416 673416 678191
Number of shares in 1ssue (adjusted for shared held in treasury) 612436380 612436380  £12436380
NAV per share 10996p 169.96p 110.74p
3.0 EPRA Net initial Yield
o 7 o For the Forthe
51 Matcn 3023 51 March 2032
Investment propért? iE'GOO) o 978,147 968.756
Allowanece for estimated purchasers’ costs (E00C) 59,973 56.412
Gross up completed property portfolio (£'000) 1,038,120 1025168
Annuahsed net rents (£000) S - 57654 5409
Add: noticnai rent expiration of rent free periods or cther lease incentives (£'000) - -
Topped-up net annualised rent (€000} ' 57654 54091
EPRA NIY T 555% | 528%
EPRA Topped-up NIY 7555% 528%




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

4.0 EPRA Vacancy Rate

Esumnated Market Rental Value (ERV) of vacant spaces (E000)
Estumated Market Rental Value (ERV) of whole portioho (E‘OOO)f
EPRA Vacancy R%lf

5.0 EPRA Costs Ratio

Pue T

Total administrative and operating expenses
Direct property expenses

Less property expenses recovered through rents
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs)
Direct vacancy costs

EPRA Costs (excluding direct vécancy costs)

Rental income
Less rechargeable costs received

Gross rental income

EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs)

EPRA Cpst Ratio (g;clug'ﬂg direct vacancy_costs)_

The Group has not incurred any direct vacancy costs.

6.0 EPRALTV

Net Debt
Borrowings from financial institutions (£000)
Cash and cash equivalents (£000)

year ended year ended
31March 2023 31 March 2022
10 -

57.654 54,091
0.02%  0.00%

For the] For the

year ended| year ended
31March 20238 31 March 2022
~ £'0 £0

=

11,821 10,247

1,941 978

{1.512) (995)

12.25? 10230
12258] 10230
54.605 51,636
{1.512) (995)
53,095 50,6417

23.07% 20.20%
23.07% 20.20%

Total Property Value
Investment properties at fair value (E'C00)
Net receivables (E'ODQ)ﬁW

EPRA LTV

367,925 357.050
(35588  (53337)

332,357 303713

Net receivables co;\i:nses
Other receivables

Trade and other receivables
Less trade and other payables
Total B

953364 945237
26743 26.892
980,107 972129

33.91%  3124%
31 March 2023 SIMan:h 2022

. i £'000
24,783 23519

11,260 12865
(9300)  (9.492)

26743 26,892

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
©_£000 £000

»
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued

| in EPRA LTV calculation

Investment properties at fair value

Components of Net Assets use

Net receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Less borrowings from financial institutions
Net assets used in the EPRA LTV calculation
Less armnounts excluded from the calculation
Interest rate derivatives
Unameortised loan issue costs

Net assets

0 EPRA Table of Capital Expenditure

Acquisitions mcludmg iht_:igiental costs of purchase
Development
Investment properties

Incremental lettable space

Enhancing lettable space

Tenant incentives

Other material non-allocated types of expenditure
Capitalised interest

Total Capita} Vl'-f'gpgnditure

Conversion from accruals to cash basis

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

The Group has not capitalised any overhead or operating expenses.

The Group has no Jeint Ventures so there is no joint venture property to disclose in the above table.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_ €000 £000

953,364 945237
26,743 26.892
35,588 53,337

(367,925)  (357.050)

647,770 668416

8129 2131
6,010 5.000

661909 675547

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
_ &900 ‘000
543 33,466

4,944 5.818
1,700 1614

7,187 40898
597 1312
6,590 42210




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued

B.0 Leveraged internai Rale of Returp (IRR}
This is the annual growth rate. based on growth in net asset value per share since launch and dividends paid to

COrdinarv shareholders

EAV;: sha;e

31 May 2017

31 August 2017

30 November 2017
9 March 2018

8 June 2018

7 Septernber 2018
30 November 2018
11 January 2019

28 February 2019

7 june 2018

6 September 2019
29 November 2019
28 February 2020
12 June 2020

7 September 2020
4 December 2020
1 March 2021

11 June 2021

10 Septemnber 2021
13 December 2021
11 March 2022

28 June 20722

9 September 2022
9 December 2022
11 March 2023

Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interirn dividend
Interirn dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend
Interim dividend

31March 2023 31 March 2022

109.1600p 110.3000p

0.7500p
0.7500p
0.7500p
0.7500p
1.2500p
1.2500p
1.2500p
1.1100p
0.1400p
1.3250p
1.3250p
1.3250p
1.3250p
1.3250p
1.3500p
1.3500p
1.3500p
1.3500p
1.3875p
1.3875p
1.3875p
1.3875p
1.4250p
1.4250p
1.4250p

0.7500p
0.7500p
0.7500p
0.7500p
12500p
12500p
12500p

11100p
0.1400p
13250p
1.3250p
1.3250p
13250p
13250p
1.3500p
13500p
1.3500p
1.3500p
13875p
13875p
1.3875p

NAV per share at launch
Leverad IRR

139.0100p 1344875p
98.0000p 98.0000p

6.63%
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Five Year Financial Results

Group Statement ot Comprehansive Income

For the For the For the For the For the

vear ended year ended year ended year ended year ended

31 March ?023 31 Marchs;utluzé 31 MaIChE ;’0002(; N Ma:lchs%ggg 31 Malcr‘i‘zout}g
Revenue - - | T ' -
Rental income 54,607 51636 49,020 46165 35738
Less direct propertly expenses B (1,941) _ﬂﬁ) {1175) (259) -
Netrental income ) 52666 50658 47845 45306 35738
Directors remuneration 211) (206) (198) (176) 163)
Investment advisory fees (6,217) (6,132} (6117} {6,183) (6457
General and administrative expenses _ (5,393) (3.909) (3.183) (3.501) (3,022
Total expenses o © .82) (0247, (9498)  (9860)  (3.642)
Change in fair value of investment properties 2.640 12,269 5,511 9389 3652

43485 52680 43858 45435 29748

Operaiir;g Profit

Finance incorme ) " ' 148 7 20 10 491
Finance expenses - relating 1o bank borrowings (15,335) {10,608) (7737 (7.342) (3,975)
Finance expenses - relating to C share amortization - - - - (6,400
Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives (2,826) 2,675 (66) {478} -
Profit before tax o 25472 "F?s}; _S—EES 37‘7'5 o 19{5@;
Taxation - - - - -
Profit bei;\g total Eomprehensiire income ] - 25.4?£ j?étl 7736.0777577 3775 19,864
Earnings per share - basic 4.19n 7.23p 5.80p 6.06p 4.67p
Earnings per share — diluted 4.19p 723p 5.80p 6.06p 4.22p
Dividend declared (per share) o 5.70p 5.85p 5.40p 530p _ 560p

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
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Five Year Financial Results
Continued

Group Statement of Financial Position

31March 2025 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
_ £000 : £'000

£000 E0QQ0
Assets T - B B
Non-current assets
Investment propearty 953,364 945 237 8593.684 867988 820.094
Other receivables 24,783 23,519 21,905 10,755 6.824
Interest rate de_r_ivatjves 8,129 2131 - - -

- _ 986276 omo@e7 915589 /a3 826316

Non-current assets

Trade and cther receivables 11,260 - 12,865 12821 10,838 5723
Cash and cash equivalents _ o _ 35,588 53337 107097 58374 54347
46.848 66,202 119.918 69,212 60.070

Total assets 1033124 1037089 1035507 947955  886.988

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (9,3500) (9.492) (9,345} (7.74%)  (15324)
Bank and loan borrowings - - {59.937) (59,730) -
o - T @300 (949 (69282 (67473 (5324)
Non-current liahilities

Bank and loan horrowings (361915)  (352050)  (29218% (209440)  (205.156)
Interest rate derivatives - - (544 1478) -
N T T T (361915) (352080) (2927270 (209.918) (205156)
Total labilities T @N2S) (361542)  (362,000) (277391 (220.480)

661909 675547 673498 670564 666508

Total net és;ets

Assels

Share capital 6,225 6.225 6,225 6.225 6225
Share premium reserve 292,626 292,626 292463 292,408 292405
Capital reduction reserve 317.714 322.365 331140 330926 331,625

Retained earnings 45,344 54,331 43,670 41,008 36253

»
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Total equity 661909 675547 673498 670.564 666508
Net assets per share — basic 109.16p 110.30p 108.30p 107.87p 107.08p
Net assets per share - diluted 109.16p 110.30p 108.30p 107.87p 107.08p
Share price 53.70p 87.40p 107.80p 96.40p 96.00p
Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis) 41.84% 37.23% 29.56% 23.64% 17.45%
Leverage 35.61% 3443% 34.48% 26 9% 22.00%
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of 1p each are quoted

on the Official List of the FCA and traded on the premium
segment of the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange
(LSE).

SEDOL number BDS8HBD3

ISIN  GBOOBDSHBD32 N
Ticker/TIDM  CSH - -
LEI 213800PGBG84]5GMEEIS

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAV is reieased to the LSE on a quarterly
basis and published on the Company's website:
www.civitassocialhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Copies of the Company's Annual and Half-Yearly Reports,
Stock Exchange announcements and further informaticn
on the Company can be obtained from its website:
www.civitassocialhousing.com.

Share Register Enquiries

The register for the Company's Ordinary shares is
maintained by Link Group. In the event of queries
regarding your holding, please contact the Registrar

on 0371 664 0300 (calls are charged at the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider; calls outside
the UK will be charged at the applicable international
rate). Lines are open between 5.0Cam and 5.30pim,
Monday to Friday. excluding public holidays in England
and Wales. You can also email enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk.

Changes of name and/or address must be notified in
writing to the Registrar: Link Group, Central Square,
29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL

Key Dates
June Al_rua_l results announced B
o ~ Payment cf fourth interim dividend
September __ Company's half-year end
_ _Annual general meeting . ____
] Payment of {irrst interim dividend
December I—}ali—ygarly results armgl.ﬂced

L ~ Payment of second_.'}merim div_idﬁern_gi N
February Payment of third interim dividend
March Company's year end

Association of Investment Companies

The Company is a member of the AIC, which

publishes statistical information in respect of

member companies. The AIC can be contacted on

020 7282 5555, enquiries@theaic.co.uk or visit the website:
www.theaic.co.uk,

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Shareholders now have the opportunity ¢ be notified by
email when the Company’s Annual Report, Half-Yearly
Report and cther formal communications are available
on the Company's website, instead of receiving printed
copies by post. This has environmental benefits in the
reduction of paper, printing, energy and water usage, as
well as reducing costs to the Company.

If you have not already elected to receive electronic
communications from the Company and wish to do so,
please contact the Registrar,



Glossary

AIFM means the Alternative Investment Fund Manager.

AIFMD means the Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Regulations 2013 (as amended by The Alternative
Investment Fund Managers (Amendment etc) (EU Exit)
Regulations 2019) and the Investment Funds Sourcebcok
forming part of the FCA Handbook.

ALMO means an arm’s length management organisation,
a not-for-prefit company that provides housing services
on behalf of a local authority.

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) means a
financial measure of historical financial performance,
financial positicn, or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Annual contracted rent roll means the annual
contractual rental income currently receivable on a
property as at the Balance Sheet date.

Approved Provider means Approved Providers, local
autherities, ALMGOs, Community Interest Companies,
Registered Charities and other regulated organisations
directly or indirectly in receipt of payment from local or
central government inciuding the NHS.

Care Provider means a provider of care servigces to the
occupants of Specialist Supported Housing, registered
with the Care Quality Commission.

CIM means Civitas Investment Management Limited cr
CIM {formerly known as Civitas Housing Advisors Limited
until its change of name on 7 May 2020).

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the Regulator of
Community Interest Companies as a community interest
company and registered as such with Companies House.

Company means Civitas Social Housing PLC, a company
incerperated in England and Wales with company
number 10402528.

CMA Order means the Statutory Audit Services Order
2014, issued hy the Competition and Markets Authority.

Current Leverage means the percentage taken as total
bank berrowings drawn over total assets.

Dividend Yield means the ratio of total annual dividends
declared for the financial year cver market price per
share.

EPRA means the European Public Real Estate Association.

EPRA EPS is the EPRA earnings divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue in the period.

EPRA LTV is the EPRA loan to value ratic calculated as
debt net of cash balances divided by the market value
of property (including net receivables) as defined in the
EPRA Best Practice Guidelines.

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY”) is calculated as
the annualised rental income based cn the cash rents
passing at the balance sheet date less non-recoverable
property operating expenses, divided hy the gross
market value of the property.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™) is an
EPRA NAV metric which assumes that entities never sell
assets and aims to represent the value required to rebuild
the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA”) is an EPRA
NAV metric which assumes that entities buy and sell
assets, thereby crystallising certain levels of unavoidable
deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV™") is an EPRA

NAV metric which represents the shareholders’ value
under a disposal scenario, where deferred tax, financial
instruments and certain other adjustments are calculated
to the full extent of their liability, net of any resulting tax

Gross Asset Value means total assets.
Group means the Company and its subsidiaries.

Housing Association or HA means an independent
society, body of trustees or cormpany established for
the purpose of providing iocw-cost social housing for
people in housing need generally cn a non-profit
making basis. Any trading surplus is typically used to
maintain existing homes and to help finance new ones.
Heusing Associations are regulated by the Regulator of
Social Housing.

Investment Adviser means Civitas Investment
Management Limited ("CIM"), a company incorporated in
England and Wales with company number 10278444, in its
capacity as investment adviser to the Company.

IPO means [nitial Public Offering.
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IRR means internal rate of return.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of return including
the impact of debt.

Local Authority or LA means the administrative bodies
for the local government in England comprising 326
authorities (including 32 London boroughs).
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Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means the net asset value of the
Group on the relevant date, prepared in accordance with
IFRS accounting principles.

Net Initial Yield means the ratio of net rental income
and gross purchase price of a property.

NHS means the publicly funded healthcare system of
the United Kingdom comprising The National Health
Service in England, NHS Scotland, NHS Wales and Heaith
and Soclal Care in Northern Ireland, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, NHS Trusts.

NHS Trust means a legal entity, set up by order of the
Secretary of State under section 25 of, and Schedule 4 to,
the Naticnal Health Service Act 2006, to provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service.

Ongoing Charges means the figure published annually
by the Company which shows the drag on perfarmance
caused by cperational expenses. More specifically, it is
the annual percentage reduction in sharehoclder returns
as a result of recurring operational expenses assuming
markets remain static and the portfolio is not traded.
Although the Ongoing Charges figure is based on
historical information, it provides sharehaolders with an
indication of the likely level of costs that will be incurred
in managing the Company in the future.

Portfolio means the Group's portfolio of assets.

Portfolio Valuation means an independent valuation of
the Portfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited or such other
property adviser as the Directors rmay select from time

to time, based upon the Portfclio being held, directly or
indirectly, within a corporate vehicle or equivalent entity
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
otherwise prepared in accordance with RICS "Red Book™
guidelines.

REIT means a qualifying real estate investment trust in
accordance with the UK REIT Regime introduced by the
UK Finance Act 2006 and subsequently re-written into
Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010.

RICS means Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

RSH means the Regulator of Social Housing. the
executive non-departmental public body, sponsored
by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government, which is the regulator for Sccial Homes
providers in England and Wales.

Social homes or social housing means social rented
homes and other accommeoedation that are offered at
rents subsidised below market level or are constituents
of other appropriate rent regimes such as exempt rents
or are subject to bespoke agreement with entities such as
NHS Trusts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or SSH means social
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancillary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corporate vehicle
in which the Group's properties are held.

Target Return means the target return on investment.

Total Return means Net Total Return, being the change
in NAV over the relevant pericd plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return means a measure of the
return based upon share price movement over the period
plus dividend paid.

Valuation means an independent valuation of the
Portfclio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited or such other
preperty adviser as the Directors may select from
ume to time, prepared in accordance with RICS "Red
Book™ guidelines and based upon a valuation of each
underlying investment property rather than the value
ascribed to the portfolio and on the assumption of

a theoretical sale of each property rather than the
corporate entities in which all of the Company's
investrent properties are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
is the product of annual contracted rent roll at period end
and the time in years to when the lease expires for each
given lease, summed across leases, and then divided by
the total annual contracted rent roll of the portfolio. The
regult is expressed in years. WAULT is a key measure of
the quality of the Company's portfolic. Long lease terms
underpin the security of the Company's income strearn.
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Alison Hadden
Alastair Moss

Registered Office

Link Company Matters Limited
6th Floor

65 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7NQ

Registered no: 10402528
www.civitassocialhousing.com

Alternative Investment Fund Manager

G10 Capital Limited
3 More London Riverside
London SE1 2AQ

Investment Adviser

Civitas Investment Management Limited
25 Maddox Street
London W1S 2QN

Joint Corporate Brokers

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropemaker Place

25 Ropemaker Street
London EC2Y SLY

Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited
One New Change
London EC4M SAF

Company Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited
6th Floor

65 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7NQ

Administrator

Link Alternative Fund Administrators Limited
Broadwalk House

Southernhay West

Exeter EX11TS

Depositary

INDOS Financial Limited
5th Floor

54 Fenchurch Street
London EC3M 3]¥

Registrar

Link Group

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds 151 4DL

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
7 More London Riverside
London SE12RT

Legal and Tax Adviser

Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP

Dashwood House
69 Old Broad Street
London EC2M 1QS

Public Relations Adviser

Buchanan
107 Cheapside
London EC2V 6DN

Tax Adviser

BDO LLP
55 Baker Street
London WiU 7EU
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Civitas Social Housing PLC
Link Company Matters Limited
6th Flocr

65 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7NQ

T 020 3058 4840

E enquiries@civitasim.com

W www.civitasim.com




